# CONTRACT FOR PUBLIC BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE SERVICES

# <u>PROJECT MANUAL</u>:

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

INVITATION FOR BID #OC-PH020170914

Bid Opening Date: October 11, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

SEPTEMBER 2017

Amy Zarechian, Executive Director

# **SPECIFICATION TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

		Page#
Cover l Table c	Page of Contents	1 2
<u> Part 1 -</u>	Bidding Documents, Contract Forms, and Conditions of the Contract	
1.	- Invitation for Bid	3
2.	- Instructions to Bidders	4-6
4.	<ul> <li>Bid Form</li> <li>Itemized Bid Sheet</li> <li>Bidder's Qualifications and Reference Form</li> <li>Certificate of Non-Collusion</li> <li>Debarment Letter</li> <li>IRS Form W-9</li> <li>Contract Forms (Informational only. Not required with bid submittal)</li> <li>Owner - Contractor Contract</li> <li>Certificate of Authority - Corporate</li> <li>Performance Bond</li> <li>Payment Bond</li> </ul>	7-9 10 11-12 13 14 15 17-19 20 21 22
5.	- General Conditions of the Contract	23-65
6.	- Wage Rate Requirements	67
Docu	ument attachments:	
•	artment of Labor Minimum Wage Rates  Weekly Payroll Report Form Davis Bacon – Dept. of Labor Wage Rates  2 - General Requirements and Work Specifications	
1.	- Work Specifications	68-74

# **END OF SECTION**

# NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY INVITATION FOR BID #OC-PH20170914

The Newton Housing Authority invites sealed bids from Contractors for

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

Bids will be received until 2:00 p.m., October 11, 2017

at the Newton Housing Authority, 82 Lincoln Street, Newton Highlands, MA 02461. Immediately following the deadline for bids all bids received within the time specified will be publicly opened and read aloud.

Contract Documents will be electronically available by either emailing or calling Christine Long, Capital Improvement Coordinator at <u>clong@newtonhousing.org</u> or (617) 552-5501. Bidders are responsible for submitting their company Name, Address, Email address, Phone & Facsimile number and bid # (OC-PH20170914) with their request.

During the bidding period, the Newton Housing Authority shall make all facilities available for viewing between the hours of 10:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.by appointment with designated Authority personnel. The Authority strongly encourages each bidder to visit each site; bidders will be responsible for all work under this Contract whether they visit the facilities or not. Bidders may contact Christine Long to arrange viewing at (617) 552-5501.

The term of this contract shall extend from October 17, 2017 through October 16, 2018.

All bids must be accompanied by a bid deposit in an amount that is not less than five percent (5%) of the value of the bid, including all add alternates. Bid deposits, payable to the Newton Housing Authority, shall be either in the form of a bid bond, or cash, or a certified check, or a treasurer's or cashier's check issued by a responsible bank or trust company. Bidders are reminded that the bid deposit covers the Authority for damages when a bidder withdraws its bid after the bid submission date. Please be advised that the Authority will retain all bid deposits for withdrawn bids to the extent permitted by the law.

#### All bids shall be submitted as one ORIGINAL and one COPY.

All bids are subject to the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 149, Section 44 A-J. Wages are subject to minimum wage rates determined by the Massachusetts Department of Labor and Industries pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 149, Sec. 26 to 27H. The schedule of wage rates applicable to this contract is included in the bidding documents. In addition, the prevailing wage schedule will be updated annually for all public construction works lasting longer than one (1) year. You will be required to pay the rates set out in any updated prevailing wage schedule. Increases in prevailing wage schedules will not be the basis for change order requests. The successful bidder will be required to provide a Certificate of Insurance demonstrating current coverage of the type and amounts set forth in the Work Manual. The successful bidder will be required to furnish a Performance and Labor and Materials Payment Bond each in the amount of 100% of the contract total.

It is the sole responsibility of the bidder to ensure that they have received any and all addenda prior to the bid opening. Addenda will be available online by either requesting the document by telephone at (617) 552-5501 attention: Christine Long, Capital Improvement Coordinator or by email @ clong@newtonhousing.org.

The Authority will reject any and all bids in accordance with the above referenced General Laws. In addition, the Authority reserves the right to waive minor informalities in any or all bids or to reject any or all bids (in whole or in part) if it be in the public interest to do so.

NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 82 Lincoln Street Newton Highlands, MA 02461 Amy Zarechian Executive Director September 14, 2017

# **INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

#### ARTICLE 1 - BIDDER'S REPRESENTATION

- 1.1 Each General Bidder (hereinafter called the "Bidder") by making a bid (hereinafter called "bid") represents that:
  - 1. The Bidder has read and understands the Bidding Documents, Contract Forms, Conditions of the Contract, General Requirements and Work Specifications (collectively, referred to as the "Contract Documents") and the bid is made in accordance therewith.
  - 2. The Bidder has visited the work site(s) and is familiar with the local conditions under which the work has to be performed.
- 1.2 Failure to so examine the Contract Documents and work site(s) will not relieve any Bidder from any obligation under the bid as submitted.

# ARTICLE 2 - REQUEST FOR INTERPRETATION

- 2.1 Bidders shall promptly notify the Authority of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or error which they may discover upon examination of the Contract Documents, the site and local conditions.
- 2.2 Bidders requiring clarification or interpretation of the Contract Documents shall make a written request to the Capital Improvement Coordinator by email to <a href="mailto:clong@newtonhousing.org">clong@newtonhousing.org</a> or by facsimile at (617) 552-5507. The Authority will only answer such requests if received by noon, Wednesday, October 4, 2017.
- 2.3 Interpretation, correction, or change in the Contract Documents will be made by written addendum which will become part of the Contract Documents. The Authority will not be held accountable for any oral communication.
- 2.4 Addenda will be emailed to every individual or firm on record as having taken a set of Contract Documents.
- 2.5 Copies of addenda will be made available for inspection at the location listed in the Invitation for Bids where Contract Documents are on file.
- 2.6 Bidders or proposers contacting ANY AUTHORITY EMPLOYEE regarding an Invitation for Bid (IFB) or a Request for Proposal (RFP), outside of the CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COORDINATOR and defined procurement process once an IFB or RFP has been released, may be disqualified as a bidder from the procurement process.

Bidders are solely responsible for obtaining any addenda prior to the bid opening. If the bidder makes itself known to the Capital Improvement Coordinator via facsimile (617) 552-5507 or by email at <a href="mailto:clong@newtonhousing.org">clong@newtonhousing.org</a>, it shall be placed on the bidder's list. Bidders must provide the Capital Improvement Coordinator with their company's name, street address, city, state, zip, phone, fax, email address and INVITATION FOR BID #OC-PH081619.

#### ARTICLE 3 – MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

3.1 Notice is hereby given that all Commonwealth of Massachusetts programs certified by the Supplier Diversity Office (SDO) and formerly known as SOMWBA, that are in effect at the time of this solicitation are applicable to all Authority contracts for goods and services in excess of \$50,000.00.

# **ARTICLE 4 - PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION OF BIDS**

- 4.1 Bids shall be submitted on the "Bid Form" as appropriate, furnished by the Authority.
- 4.2 All entries on the Bid Form shall be made by typewriter or in ink.

- 4.3 Where so indicated on the Bid Form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures. Where there is a discrepancy between the bid sum expressed in words and the bid sum expressed in figures, the words shall take precedence.
- 4.4 Bid Deposits shall be submitted in the amount specified in the Invitation for Bids. They shall be made payable to the Authority and shall be either in the form of cash, certified check, treasurer's or cashier's check issued by a responsible bank or trust company, or a bid bond issued by a surety licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts; and shall be conditioned upon the faithful performance by the principal of the agreements contained in the bid. Bidders are reminded that the bid deposit covers the Authority for damages when a bidder withdraws its bid after the bid submission date. Please be advised that the Authority will retain all bid deposits for withdrawn bids to the extent permitted by law. Bid deposits of the three (3) lowest responsible and eligible Bidders shall be retained until the execution and delivery of the Authority-Contractor agreement
- 4.5 The Bid, including the bid deposit, shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope with the following plainly marked on the outside:
  - \* GENERAL BID FOR: #OC-PH20170914 attn: Christine Long, Capital Improvement Coordinator
  - \* NAME OF WORK: Servicing, Repairing & Maintenance of Plumbing and Related Systems
  - \* BIDDER'S NAME, BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND PHONE NUMBER
- 4.6 Date and time for receipt of bids is set forth in the Invitation for Bids.
- 4.7 Timely delivery of a bid at the location designated shall be the full responsibility of the Bidder. In the event that Newton Housing Authority is closed on the date or at the time that bids are due, the date and time for receipt of bids shall be on the next business day following that the Newton Housing Authority is open.
- 4.8 Bids shall be submitted with one original and one copy.
- 4.9 Please be advised that Massachusetts law now requires all those employees who work on Massachusetts public works construction sites to possess a minimum of 10 hours of OSHA-approved safety and health training. See Chapter 306 of the Acts of 2004, which became effective July 1, 2006.
  - 1. This requirement will apply to any general bid or sub bid submitted.
  - 2. This law directs the Massachusetts Attorney General to restrain the award of construction contracts to any contractor who is in violation to this requirement and to restrain the performance of these contracts by non-complying contractors.
  - 3. The contractor and all subcontractors on this work will be required to provide certification of compliance with this requirement. Non-compliance with this law will disqualify you from bidding on public contracts.

# **ARTICLE 5 - ALTERNATES**

- 5.1 Each Bidder shall acknowledge alternates (if any) in Section C on the Bid Form.
- In the event an alternate does not involve a change in the amount of the base bid, the Bidder shall so indicate by writing "No Change", or "N/C" or "0" in the space provided for that alternate.
- 5.3 Bidders shall enter on the Bid Form a single amount for each alternate which shall consist of the amount for work performed by the Contractor.
- 5.4 The low Bidder shall be determined on the basis of the sum of the base bid and the accepted alternates.

### ARTICLE 6 - WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS

- Any bid may be withdrawn prior to the time designated for receipt of bids on written or electronic request. Electronic withdrawal of bids must be confirmed over the Bidder's signature by written notice postmarked on or before the date and time set for receipt of bids.
- 6.2 Withdrawn bids may be resubmitted up to the time designated for the receipt of bids.
- 6.3 No bids may be withdrawn within sixty (60) days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded, after the opening of the bids.

### ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACT AWARD

- 7.1 The Authority will award the contract to the lowest eligible and responsible Bidder within sixty (60) days, Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays excluded, after the opening of bids.
- 7.2 The Authority reserves the right to waive minor informalities in or to reject any or all Bids if it be in the public interest to do so.
- 7.3 As used herein, the term "lowest responsible and eligible Bidder" shall mean the Bidder (1) whose bid is the lowest of those bidders possessing the skill, ability and integrity necessary for the faithful performance of the work; (2) who has met all the requirements of the invitation for bids; (3) who shall certify that he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work.
- 7.4 Subsequent to the award and within five (5) days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded, after the prescribed forms are presented for signature, the successful Bidder shall execute and deliver to the Authority a contract in the form included in the Contract Documents in such number of counterparts as the Authority may require.
- 7.5 In the event that the Authority receives low bids in identical amount from two or more responsive and responsible Bidders, the Authority shall select the successful Bidder by a blind selection process chosen by the Authority such as flipping a coin or drawing names from a hat. The low Bidders who are under consideration will be invited to attend and observe the selection process to ensure fairness and transparency.

# **ARTICLE 8 - TAXES**

- 8.1 The Bidder shall not include in this bid any tax imposed upon the sale or rental of tangible personal property in this Commonwealth, such as any and all building materials, supplies, services and equipment required to complete the work.
- The Authority is exempt from payment of the Massachusetts Sales Tax, and the Bidder shall not include any sales tax on its bid. The Newton Housing Authority's exemption Number is E-046-006-541.

**END OF SECTION** 

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

# **GENERAL BID FORM #OC-PH20170914**

# TO THE AWARDING AUTHORITY:

<b>A.</b>	The undersigned proposes to furnish all labor and materials required for SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS in Newton, Massachusetts in accordance with the accompanying plans and specifications prepared by the Newton Housing Authority for the contract price specified below, subject to additions and deductions according to the terms of the specifications.				
В.	This bid includes addenda number(s),				
C.	The proposed contract price is:				
	(Total of Items 1 through 3 on the Itemized Bid Form)				
	DOLLARS (\$)				
	For Alternate No. N/A Add \$ N/A; Subtract \$ N/A				
	The undersigned has completed and submits herewith the following documents:				
	A five percent (5%) bid deposit/bid guarantee				
	Signed Bid Form, 2 pages				
	Certificate of Non-Collusion, 1 page				
	Debarment Letter, 1 page				
	IRS form W-9, 1 page				
	Itemized Bid Sheet, 1 page				
D.	Prompt Payment Discounts. Bidders are encouraged to offer discounts in exchange for an expedited payment. Payments may be issued earlier than the general goal of within 30 days of receipt of the invoice only when in exchange for discounted prices. Discounts will not be considered in determining the lowest responsible bidder.				
	Prompt Payment Discount%Days				
	Prompt Payment Discount%Days Prompt Payment Discount% Days				
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				

Total of Item	1: \$		
Item 2. Sub-b	oids as follows:		
Sub-Trade	Name of Sub-bidder	Amount	Bond Required? (Yes or No)
N/A	N/A	\$N/A	<u>N/A</u>

The sub-division of the proposed contract price is as follows:

E.

The undersigned agrees that each of the above named sub-bidders will be used for the work indicated at the amount stated, unless a substitution is made. The undersigned further agrees to pay the premiums for the performance and payment bonds furnished by sub-bidders as requested herein and that all of the cost of all such premiums is included in the amount set forth in Item 1 of this bid.

The undersigned agrees that if s/he is selected as general contractor, s/he will promptly confer with the awarding authority on the question of sub-bidders; and that the awarding authority may substitute for any sub-bid listed above a sub-bid filed with the awarding authority by another sub-bidder for the sub-trade against whose standing and ability the undersigned makes no objection; and that the undersigned will use all such finally selected sub-bidders at the amounts named in their respective sub-bids and be in every way as responsible for them and their work as if they had been originally named in this general bid, the total contract price being adjusted to conform thereto.

F. The undersigned agrees that, if s/he is selected as general contractor, s/he will within five days, Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays excluded, after presentation thereof by the awarding authority, execute a contract in accordance with the terms of this bid and furnish a labor and materials or payment bond, each of a surety company qualified to do business under the laws of the commonwealth and satisfactory to the awarding authority and each in the sum of the contract price, the premiums for which are to be paid by the general contractor and are included in the contract price.

The undersigned hereby certifies that s/he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed on the work and that s/he will comply fully with all laws and regulations applicable to awards made subject to section forty-four A of M.G.L. Chapter 30, s 39M.

The undersigned certifies that he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other elements of labor employed or to be employed in the work; (2) that all employees to be employed at the worksite will have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("OSHA") that is at least 10 hours in duration at the time the employee begins work and who shall furnish documentation of successful completion of said course with the first certified payroll report for each employee; and (3) that all employees to be employed in the work subject to this bid have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States OSHA that is at least 10 hours in duration. The undersigned understands that any employee found on a worksite subject to this section without documentation of successful completion of a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration shall be subject to immediate removal.

The undersigned further certifies under the penalties of perjury that this bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this subsection the word "person" shall mean any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. The undersigned further certifies under penalty of perjury that the said undersigned is not presently debarred from doing public construction work in the Commonwealth under the provisions of section twenty-nine F of chapter twenty-nine, or any other applicable debarment provisions of any other chapter of the General Laws or any rule or regulation promulgated thereunder.

ate	_		
		(Name of General Bidder	)
		BY:	
		(Printed Name and Title o	of Signatory)
		(Business Address)	
		(City, State Zip)	
		(Telephone)	(Fax)
		(E-mail address)	

NOTE: If the bidder is a corporation, indicate state of incorporation under signature, and affix corporate seal; if a partnership, give full names and residential addresses of all partners; and if an individual, give residential address if different from business address.

**END OF SECTION** 

# PUBLIC BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE SERVICE:

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

# **ITEMIZED BID SHEET #OC-PH20170914**

Bidder submits the following itemized pricing for the maintenance and repair services described in the Work Manual.

All quantities shown below are estimates only of the Authority's requirements during the contract term. The Authority will direct the contractor to perform only that work which is actually required. The contractor will be compensated only for that work which is actually performed as agreed upon.

1.	Standard Rate - (Para. 3.4)*		
	Standard Rate \$/HRX 450 HRS	=	\$
2.	Premium Rate - (Para. 3.4)*		
	Premium Rate \$/HRX 150 HRS	=	\$
3.	Allowance for materials (Para.3,3)*	=	\$
	Grand Total (Items 1 through 3)	) =	\$
COMPANY:			
			_
	*See this Section for details		

**END OF SECTION** 

# BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS AND REFERENCES FORM

All questions must be answered, and the data given must be clear and comprehensive. Please type or print legibly. If necessary, add additional sheet for starred items. This information will be utilized by the Authority for purposes of determining bidder responsiveness and responsibility with regard to the requirements and specifications of the Contract.

LII	RM NAME:				
W	HEN ORGANIZED:				
IN	CORPORATED?YESNO	DATE AND STA	TE OF INC	ORPORATION:	
IS	YOUR BUSINESS A MBE?YES	NO <b>WBE</b> ?	YES	NO or <b>MWBE</b> ?	YE
	ST ALL CONTRACTS CURRENTLY ON F ATE OF COMPLETION:	HAND, SHOWING	CONTRAC	T AMOUNT AND A	NTICIP
_	AVE YOU EVER FAILED TO COMPLETEYESNO YES, WHERE AND WHY?	E A CONTRACT A	WARDED T	°O YOU?	
	AVE YOU EVER DEFAULTED ON A CON YES, PROVIDE DETAILS.	VTRACT?	YES	_ NO	
LI:	ST YOUR VEHICLES/EQUIPMENT AVAI	ILABLE FOR THIS	CONTRAC	CT:	
_					
FII	THE SPACES FOLLOWING, PROVIDE II RM SIMILAR IN NATURE TO THE WOR STED. PUBLICLY BID CONTRACTS AR	K BEING BID. A I	MINIMUM	OF FOUR (4) CONTR	PLETEI LACTS

DOLLAR AMOUNT: \$ _		DATE COMPLETED:
PUBLICLY BID?	_YES	_NO
TYPE OF WORK?:		
		TELEPHONE #:)
	ELATION TO WORK?:	
	_	(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
	10	
WORK NAME:		
OWNER:		
CITY/STATE:		
DOLLAR AMOUNT: \$ _		DATE COMPLETED:
PUBLICLY BID?	YES	NO
TYPE OF WORK?:		_
CONTACT PERSON:		TELEPHONE #: ()
CONTACT PERSON'S R	ELATION TO WORK?:	\
		(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
WORK NAME:		
DOLLAR AMOUNT: \$		DATE COMPLETED:
PUBLICLY BID?		
TYPE OF WORK?:		_
CONTACT PERSON:		TELEPHONE #: ()
<del></del>	ELATION TO WORK?:	TELEPHONE #. ()
CONTACT FERSONS R	ELATION TO WORK!	(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
		(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
WORK NAME:		
OTT D TED		
DOLLAR AMOUNT: \$		DATE COMPLETED:
PUBLICLY BID?		
TYPE OF WORK?:		
CONTACT PERSON:		TELEPHONE #:()
CONTACT PERSON'S R	FI ATION TO WORK?	
CONTROLLER	EBMINON TO WORLE.	(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
		(i.e., contract manager, purchasing agent, etc.)
requests any person, firm,		ned herein is complete and accurate and hereby authorizes and ny information requested by the Authority in verification of the cations and experience.
DATE:	BIDDER:	
SIGNATURE:		
PRINTED NAME:		TITLE:

END OF SECTION

10.

# **CERTIFICATE OF NON-COLLUSION**

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this bid or proposal has been made and submitted in good faith and submitted in good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word "person" shall nean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee club, or other organization, entity, or group or ndividuals.			
	(Signature of individual)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	Name of Business		



Tel: (617) 552-5501 Fax: (617) 552-5507 TD: (617) 332-3802

Amy Sutherland Executive Director

Re: Debarment Letter for Invitation For Bid #OC-PH20170914

As a potential vendor on the above contract, the Authority requires that you provide a debarment/suspension certification indicating that you are in compliance with the below Federal Executive Order. Certification can be done by completing and signing this form.

# **Debarment:**

Federal Executive Order (E.O.) 12549 "Debarment and Suspension" requires that all contractors receiving individual awards, using federal funds, and all sub-recipients certify that the organization and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency from doing business with the Federal Government.

I hereby certify under pains and penalties of perjury that neither I nor any principal(s) of the Company identified below is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

		(Name)
		(Company)
		(Address)
		(Address)
PHONE	FAX	
EMAIL		
		Signature
		Date

If you have questions, please contact Christine Long (617) 552-5501.

# Form W-9 (Rev. October 2007) Department of the Treasury

# Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

Give form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

٥i	Name (as shown on your income tax return)			
oßed L	Business name, if different from above			
Print or type Specific Instructions on	Check appropriate box: ☐ Individual/Sole proprietor ☐ Corporation ☐ Limited Eability company. Enter the tax classification (Dedisregarded en ☐ Other (see instructions) ►		X Exempt payee	_
Print	Address (number, street, and a	Requester's n	ame and address (optional)	
pecfi	City, state, and ZIP code			
86	List account number(s) here (options)	•		
Par	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)			_
back	r your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the r up withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (St , sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on p	SN). However, for a resident	ocial security number	
	employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, se		or	
	<ul> <li>If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for ber to enter.</li> </ul>	or guidelines on whose	t	
Par	rt II Certification			
Unde	er penalties of perjury, I certify that:			
1. T	The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification n	number (or I am waiting for a numbe	r to be issued to me), and	
	am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from			

- 2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below).

Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandorment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 4.

### **General Instructions**

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

### **Purpose of Form**

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to you, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to:

- Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued).
- 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or
- 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income.

Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

- An Individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,
- A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States,
- An estate (other than a foreign estate), or
- A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301,7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners' share of income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, a partnership is required to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid withholding on your share of partnership income.

The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States is in the following cases:

• The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity,

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2007)

<b>CONTRACT FORMS</b>
The awarded bidder will be required to complete and submit documents substantially similar in form to the following.
These forms may need to be modified on account of changed circumstances, and are provided for informational purposes only.

# **AUTHORITY- CONTRACTOR**

# AGREEMENT CONTRACT NO. C

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of October in the year Two Thousand and Seventeen by and between the NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY, a duly organized public body politic existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Chapter 121B, hereinafter referred to as the AUTHORITY, acting through its Executive Director, but without personal liability to her, and, hereinafter referred to as the CONTRACTOR.

The parties hereto for the considerations hereinafter set forth agree as follows:

I. SCOPE OF WORK. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials and equipment, and perform all work required in strict accordance with the Contract Documents for the following work:

# SERVICING, REPAIRING AND MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING AND RELATED SYSTEMS

- II. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The Contract documents consist of the following documents which are either attached to this Agreement or are incorporated herein by referenced:
  - a. This AUTHORITY-CONTRACTOR Agreement;
  - b. The Authority's Invitation For Bid #OC-PH20170914 issued by the Executive Director, Amy (Sutherland) Zarechian.
  - c. The Work Manual for Servicing, Repairing, and Maintenance of Plumbing and Related Systems including the Instructions to Bidders; General Conditions; Special Conditions; MBE Requirements, Wage Rate Requirements and Wage Rate Schedule(s) including any updated prevailing wage rate schedules if applicable; The Supplementary Special Conditions; General Requirements and Work Specifications; and Drawings, if included or referenced therein:
  - d. Addendum Number 1;
  - e. The Bid Response of the CONTRACTOR submitted for this Work and accompanying documents and certifications;
  - f. Certificate(s) of Insurance and surety bond(s) submitted by the CONTRACTOR in connection with this Work;
  - g. Duly authorized and executed Amendments, Work Orders, or Change Orders issued by the AUTHORITY after execution of this AUTHORITY-CONTRACTOR Agreement.

This AUTHORITY-CONTRACTOR Agreement, together with the other documents enumerated in this Article, constitute the entire Agreement between the AUTHORITY and the CONTRACTOR.

- III. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS. In the event of inconsistency between the terms of this AUTHORITY-CONTRACTOR Agreement and the Work Manual, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.
- IV. APPLICABLE STATUTES. All applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations are incorporated herein by reference and the Contractor agrees to comply with same.

- VI. AUTHORIZATION OF AND PAYMENT FOR WORK PERFORMED. The execution of this contract does not constitute a notice to proceed or authorization to perform work. No work shall be commenced unless authorized by a written Work Order prepared by Newton Housing Authority specifying the work to be performed. The Contractor will be paid for work performed in accordance with the provisions contained in the Work Manual and applicable state law.
- VII. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK/INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall take all responsibility for the work, and shall take all precautions for preventing injuries to persons and property in or about the work and shall defend, indemnify and hold the Authority harmless from all loss, cost, damage or expense arising from injuries to persons or property in or about the work. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage which may be caused by the failure or insufficiency of any temporary works. He shall effectively protect his work and shall be liable for all damage and loss by delay or otherwise caused by his neglect or failure so to do.
- VIII. WARRANTY. Except as may be otherwise provided in the Work Manual, the Contractor shall replace, repair or make good, without cost to the Authority, any defects or faults arising within one (1) year after date of acceptance of work and materials furnished hereunder (acceptance not to be unreasonably delayed) resulting from imperfect or defective work done or materials furnished by the Contractor.
- IX. PATENT INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor agrees to assume the defense of and shall indemnify and save harmless the Authority and all persons acting for or on behalf of it from all suits and claims against them, or any of them, arising from or occasioned by the use of any material, equipment or apparatus, or any part thereof which infringes or is alleged to infringe on any patent rights. In case such material, equipment or apparatus, or any part thereof, in any such suit is held to constitute infringement, the Contractor, within a reasonable time, shall at its own expense, and as the Authority may elect, replace such material, equipment or apparatus with non-infringing material, equipment or apparatus, or remove the material, equipment, or apparatus and refund the sums paid therefor.
- X. ASSIGNMENT/SUB-CONTRACTING. The Contractor agrees that he will not sell, assign or transfer this Contract or any part thereof or interest therein without the prior written consent of the Authority.
- XI. TERMINATION. If the work to be done under this Contract shall be abandoned, or if this Contract or any part thereof shall be assigned or transferred, without the previous written consent of the Authority, or if the Contract or any claim hereunder shall be assigned by the Contractor otherwise than as herein specified, or if at any time the Authority determines that the conditions herein specified as to the rate of progress are not fulfilled, or that the work or any part thereof, is unnecessarily or unreasonably delayed, or that the Contractor has violated any of the provisions of this Contract, the Authority may terminate this Contract and/or notify the Contractor to discontinue such work or such part thereof as the Authority may designate, and the Authority may thereupon by agreement or otherwise, as it may determine, complete the work, or any part thereof; and for such completion the Authority for itself or for its Contractor may take possession of and use or cause to be used in the completion of the work thereof any of such materials, apparatus, machinery, implements, and tools of every description as may be found upon said work. Termination pursuant to this paragraph shall not entitle the Contractor to any claim for damages on account thereof, nor shall it relieve the Contractor of any liability under this Contract.
- XII. GOVERNING LAW. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- XIII. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this Contract are severable. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Contract shall be finally adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Contract shall be unaffected by such adjudication and all of the remaining provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect as though such section, paragraph, clause or provision, or any part thereof so adjudicated to be invalid, had not been included herein, unless such remaining provisions, standing alone, are incomplete and incapable of being executed in accordance with the intent of the parties to this Contract.

XIV.	AMENDMENTS TO THIS CONTRACT. To manner as this AUTHORITY-CONTRACTOR	This Contract may not be amended except in writing executed in the same Agreement.							
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed under seal the day and year first above written									
		NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY							
	By:	Amy Zarechian, Executive Director							
	Date:	Date:							
	Affix Corporate Seal Here								
	THIN COLPOING SOM TION								
	WITNESSED BY:								
	Printed name:								
	Date:								

# **CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY - CORPORATE**

ı.	I hereby certify that I am the Clerk/Secretary of							
	(i	nsert full name of Corporation)						
2.	corporation, and that (insert the name of officer w							
	(insert the name of officer w	ho signed the <u>contract and bonds</u> .)						
3.								
	(insert the title of the of	,						
4.		t is ON OR BEFORE the date the						
	•	he contract and bonds.)						
	at a duly authorized meeting of the Board of Directors of said cornotice, it was voted that	poration, at which all the directors were present or waived						
5.	the(insert name from line 2) (insert title from line 3)							
	(insert name from line 2)	(insert title from line 3)						
	of this corporation be and hereby is authorized to execute co- corporation, and affix its Corporate Seal thereto, and such ex name and on its behalf, with or without the Corporate Seal, s above vote has not been amended or rescinded and remains i	ecution of any contract of obligation in this corporation's hall be valid and binding upon this corporation; and that the						
6.	ATTEST:	AFFIX CORPORATE						
	ATTEST:(Signature of Clerk or Secretary)*	SEAL HERE						
7.	Name:(Please print or type name in line 6)*							
	(Please print or type name in line 6)*							
8.	Date: (insert a date that is ON OR AFTER the date the							
	(insert a date that is ON OR AFTER the date the officer signed the contract and bonds.)							

<sup>\*</sup> The name and signature inserted in lines 6 & 7 must be that of the Clerk or Secretary of the corporation.

# NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY MASSACHUSETTS PERFORMANCE BOND

Know All Men By These Presents:

That w	e,	, as PRINCIPAL, and	, as SURETY, are held and
firmly bound t	ınto the Newton Housing Au	thority as Obligee in the sum of	
dollars	(\$) to	be paid to the Obligee, for which pay	ments well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves,
our respective	heirs, executors, administrat	ors, successors and assigns, jointly an	nd severally, firmly by these presents.
		_	bearing the date of, 2017 for the
construction o	f	(Work Title)	in Newton, Massachusetts.
and truly keep and performed without notice and perform a alterations, ch alterations, ch full force, virt	and perform all the undertal during the original term of second to the SURETY, and during the undertakings, covenant anges or additions to said con anges or additions being here ue and effect.	kings, covenants, agreements, terms a said contract and any extensions there is the life and any guarantee required us, agreements, terms and conditions contract that may hereafter be made, not eby waived, then this obligation shall	all Sub-contractors under said contract shall well and conditions of said contract on its part to be kept cof that may be granted by the Obligee, with or under the contract, and shall also well and truly keep of any and all duly authorized modifications, tice to the SURETY of such modifications, become null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in
		-	event that the Obligee terminates the employment
	•	the Obligee, take such action as is nec	d SURETY hereby further agrees that said
	ness Whereof, the PRINCIPA	•	r hands and seals thisday of2017.
BY			
	(SEAL)		(ATTORNEY-IN-FACT)(SEAL)
	(Title)		
ATTEST:_		ATTE	ST:

# MASSACHUSETTS PAYMENT BOND

Know All Men By These Presents: , as PRINCIPAL, and That we, SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto the Newton Housing Authority as Obligee, in the sum of ) to be paid to the Obligee, for which payments well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas, the said PRINCIPAL has made a contract with the Obligee, bearing the date of\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2017, for the construction of in Newton, Massachusetts. (Work Title) Now, the conditions of this obligation are such that if the PRINCIPAL and all Sub-contractors under said contract shall pay for all labor performed or furnished and for all materials used or employed in said contract and in any and all duly authorized modifications, alterations, extensions of time, changes or additions to said contract that may hereafter be made, notice to the SURETY of such modifications, alterations, extensions of time, changes or additions being hereby waived, the foregoing to include any other purposes or items set out in, and to be subject to, provisions of M.G.L. c. 30, sec. 39A, and M.G.L. c. 149 sec. 29, as amended, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force, virtue and effect. In Witness Whereof, the PRINCIPAL and SURETY have hereto set their hands and seals this day of 2017. PRINCIPAL SURETY (ATTORNEY-IN-FACT)(SEAL) (SEAL) (Title) ATTEST:\_\_\_\_ ATTEST:

# **GENERAL CONDITIONS**

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# **PAGE**

1. ARTICLE 1: CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	24-28
2. ARTICLE 2: THE AUTHORITY- GENERAL PROVISIONS	29-30
3. ARTICLE 3: THE CONTRACTOR - GENERAL PROVISIONS	31-35
4. ARTICLE 4: OPERATING & MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS & STOCK ITEMS	36-42
5. ARTICLE 5: SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS	42-43
6. ARTICLE 6: WORK ORDERS	43-44
7. ARTICLE 7: PAYMENTS	44-45
8. ARTICLE 8: PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY	45-47
9. ARTICLE 9: LEGAL REQUIREMENTS AND INSURANCE	47-52
10. ARTICLE 10: CHANGES IN THE WORK	52-55
11. ARTICLE 11: CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE OR CONTRACT TIME	55-58
12. ARTICLE 12: GUARANTEES	59-61
13. ARTICLE 13: TERMINATION	62-64
14. ARTICLE 14: DISPUTES	64-65

# (General Conditions For Authority Work Bid Under M.G.L. c. 149)

# **ARTICLE 1 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS**

### 7.1 Use of Terms:

7.1.1 The following terms used in this Section or elsewhere in the Contract Documents, shall have these meanings:

Addendum – A written modification, clarification, correction or other change to the Contract Documents issued by the Authority prior to the date stated for the receipt of bids.

Application for Payment - The form furnished by the Authority to be used by the Contractor in requesting payment, and which shall enclose the affidavit required in the Contract Documents.

Authority – The Newton Housing Authority, a duly organized corporation in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by its Executive Director or her authorized representative.

Business Day - Any day except Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays observed by the Authority. The term "day" means a calendar day.

Change Authorization - A written order executed by the Authority directing the Contractor to make changes in the Work or giving the basis for a potential change in Contract Price or Contract Time for incorporation into the Contract Documents by Change Order.

Change Order - A written instrument which when fully executed by the Authority amends the Contract Documents to provide for changes in the Work, or in Contract Price or Contract Time.

Claim - A written demand of assertion by the Authority or Contractor, which is properly certified according to the requirements of Paragraph 15.2.1, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price and payment of monies due, an extension or shortening in Contract Time, the adjustment or interpretation of Contract terms, or any other relief arising under or relating to the Contract, after a determination by the Authority under the appropriate provision of the Contract Documents.

Contract/Contract Documents - This Agreement, fully executed; the Certificate of Authority; all Addenda; the Letter of Award; the Work Manual including MBE Requirements, Wage Rate Requirements and Wage Rate Schedule including any updated prevailing wage rate schedules as applicable, Supplementary Conditions; the General Conditions; the Drawings; the Specifications; the Invitation for Bids; the Contractor's bid; all bonds submitted; All Change Authorizations and Change Orders when fully executed.

Contract Time - The time commencing upon the date of execution of the Contract by the Executive Director of the Authority and continuing through the date of Final Completion.

Contract Price – The not to exceed lump sum price representing full compensation for everything furnished, done by or resulting to the Contractor in carrying out the Contract.

Contractor - Person or firm named "The Contractor" in the Agreement with whom the Authority has awarded and entered into the Authority-Contractor Agreement.

Correction Period - The period of time within which the Contractor shall in accordance with the Contract Documents, either correct, or if rejected, remove and replace, defective Work.

Date for Commencement of the Contract Time - The date when the Contract Time starts to run.

Day - A calendar day.

Defective Work - Work that is unsatisfactory, deficient or damaged, does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test or approval.

Drawings – The graphic and pictorial part of the Contract Documents depicting the Work including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and diagrams Drawings shall not serve nor be used as Shop Drawings.

Final Acceptance - The Authority's written notice to the Contractor accepting the Work, following the Authority's determination that the Work has been completed and is acceptable.

Laws - Laws, including statutes, by-laws, rules, regulations, codes, resolutions and ordinances, or orders.

M.G.L. - Massachusetts General Laws.

Notice of Claim – A clearly marked written notice that states the general nature of the Claim delivered by the party making the Claim to the other party no later than thirty (30) days after the determination giving rise to the Claim.

Authority – The Executive Director acting on behalf of the Authority in the execution of the Agreement, or his/her authorized representative.

Owner - The Newton Housing Authority: see definition for "Authority."

Partial Utilization - Use by the Authority of a portion of the Work before reaching Substantial Completion for all the Work. . .

Work

Specifications - Parts of the Contract Documents consisting of written requirements for technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work and performance of related services.

Sub-agreement – A subcontract or purchase order awarding part of the Work to a Subcontractor or Supplier.

Subcontractor - A person having a Sub-agreement for performing labor at the site, or for performing labor and furnishing materials/equipment. Filed sub-bid Subcontractor is one who performs a sub trade for which the Authority requested filed sub-bids.

Submittals - Includes Shop Drawings, cut sheets, brochures, samples, and all those other documents required for submission by the Contract Documents. The term Shop Drawings includes drawings, diagrams, illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, and other data prepared by or for the Contractor to illustrate some part of the Work, or by a Supplier and submitted by the Contractor to illustrate items of materials or equipment.

Supplier - A manufacturer, fabricator, distributor, materialman or vendor having a Sub-agreement for furnishing materials and equipment and/or not for performing labor at the site.

Underground Utilities - All pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wells, tanks, tunnels, and appurtenances, or other similar facilities, installed underground to furnish: water, electricity, gases, steam, petroleum products, telephone, communications, cable TV, sewerage and drainage removal, traffic, or control systems.

- Work The entire completed work order or its various parts, as specified in the Contract Documents. Work is the result of performing and furnishing all services, obligations, responsibilities, labor, materials, equipment, temporary facilities, and incidentals necessary to complete the scope under the Contract Documents. Whenever the term "execution" is used with reference to the Work, it includes the performance and/or furnishing of the Work.
- 7.1.2 Any period of time in days will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day. If the last day falls on a non-Business Day, it shall be omitted from the computation. The term "registered mail" includes certified mail with return receipt requested. The term "person" means individuals, firms, partnerships, corporations, receivers, trustees, joint ventures, and any combinations of them. The term "State" or "Commonwealth" means the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- 1.1.3. Other terms used in this Section shall have the meanings assigned to them elsewhere in the Contract Documents, and if not assigned and where the context will permit, as used or defined in Massachusetts General Laws (M.G.L.).

# 1.2 Interpretations:

- 1.2.1. Whenever the term "the Contractor" is used concerning an action, obligation or event, it shall cover, even if not expressly stated, actions or obligations of, events involving, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or anyone for whom any of them may be liable, unless the context requires otherwise.
- 1.2.2. Whenever a provision obligates the **Contractor** to reimburse the **Authority** for certain costs incurred, the **Authority** is entitled to withhold a corresponding set-off against any payment, and to amend the Contract Price accordingly.
- 1.2.3. Whenever a provision covering delay, extension, or acceleration which in the Contract Documents covers delay, rescheduling, extended performance, disruption, interference, inefficiency, productivity, and production losses, acceleration, or hindrance and associated cost(s) for which the **Authority** is not responsible, or which is not unreasonable under the circumstances, or which was within the contemplation of the parties, specifies that "the **Authority** shall authorize the necessary change in Contract Time **only**," the authorized change in Contract Time shall be the **Contractor's** sole and exclusive remedy with respect to the **Authority** for any such delay, extension, or acceleration, however caused, resulting from the event contemplated by that provision.
- 1.2.4 A provision requiring the Contractor to "defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority" or covering claims against or liability of the Authority shall include the Authority, its respective consultants, agents, directors, officers, and employees and any combination of any of them. A provision requiring the Contractor to so defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority shall also require the Contractor to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, as interpreted, from and against all of the specified claims, including those caused in part by the negligence or other liability-creating conduct or omissions of the Authority. The Contractor shall not be required to indemnify the Authority against liability for loss or damage resulting from the sole negligence of the Authority.
- 1.2.5 Any reference to an Article or paragraph in these General Conditions, without identification of the particular Section, shall mean a reference to these General Conditions. Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include terms defined in paragraph 1.1.1 or paragraph 1.1.3.
- 1.2.6 Each Article in this Section contains sub-articles, numbered as this sub-article 1.2 is numbered; parts, numbered as this part 1.2.6 is numbered; and sub-parts all of which are considered "paragraphs". A reference to a paragraph means a reference to the entire sub-article, a part, or a sub-part, or any combination of them, depending on the intent of the reference.

# 1.3 Applicable Law:

- 1.3.1 This Contract is made subject to all laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- 1.3.2 If the Contract Documents contain any unlawful provisions, such unlawful provisions shall be of no effect. Upon the application of either party, the unlawful provision shall be considered stricken from the Contract Documents without affecting the remainder of the Contract Documents.
- 1.3.3 All provisions of law required to be inserted in the Contract Documents shall be and are inserted herein. If through mistake, neglect, oversight or otherwise, any such provision is not herein inserted or inserted in improper form, upon the application of either party, the Contract Documents shall be changed by the Authority, at no increase in Contract Price or extension in Contract Time, so as to strictly comply with the law and without prejudice to the rights of either party hereunder.

#### 1.4 Intent of the Contract Documents:

- 1.4.1 It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe and provide for a functionally complete Work, or Work, to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. In addition to the work expressly called for in the Drawings and Specifications pertaining to any work order, any other Work, materials or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result shall be provided, at no increase in Contract Price or extension in Contract Time, and without requiring any changes in the Work order, whether or not specifically called for.
- 1.4.2 Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, words which have an accepted technical or trade meaning used to describe any Work, materials or equipment, shall be interpreted in accordance with that meaning. Reference to standard specifications, manuals or codes of any technical society, organization or association, whether specifically or by implication, shall mean the latest standard specification, manual, code in effect at the date established for receipt of Sub-Bids, unless otherwise expressly stated.
- 1.4.3 Except as provided by the requirements of M.G.L. Chapter 149, Section 44F, the Divisions and Sections of the Specifications and the identification of any Drawings shall (a) not control the **Contractor** in delineating Work to be performed by specific suppliers, and (b) be complementary, and anything mentioned or shown in a Division or in a specific Drawing shall be of like effect as if shown in all divisions of the specifications and all Drawings.
- 1.4.4 Whenever the terms "as ordered", "as directed", "as required", "as allowed", "as approved" or terms of like effect are used, or the adjectives "reasonable", "suitable", "acceptable", "proper" or "satisfactory" or adjectives of similar effect are used to describe a requirement, direction, review or judgment of the Authority as to the Work, it is intended that the requirement, direction, review or judgment will be solely to evaluate the Work for compliance with the Contract Documents. No use of any such term or adjective mentioned above, or provision of any standard specification, manual or code (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents) shall be effective to change the duties and responsibilities of the Authority, the Contractor, or any of the their consultants, agents or employees from those assigned in the Contract Documents, nor shall it be effective to assign to the Authority, or any of its consultants, agents or employees, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the furnishing or performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of the Contract Documents.

# 1.5 Priority of the Contract Documents:

- 1.5.1 The Contract Documents are complementary, and anything mentioned or shown in a part of the Contract Documents shall be of like effect as if shown in all parts of the Contract Documents. In resolving conflicts, the Contract Documents shall be given the priority determined by the Authority, with regard to matters affecting the design of the Work, as well as with regard to all other matters, to be consistent with their intent and necessary to produce the intended result. Subject to such interpretation by the Authority, the Contract Documents shall be interpreted on the basis of the following priorities, the first listed having the highest priority:
  - .1 Change Orders, Change Authorizations, and written amendments to the Contract, those dated later taking precedent over those dated earlier;
  - .2 Owner-Contractor Agreement;
  - .3 General Conditions:
  - .4 Technical Specifications; and
  - .5 Drawings.
- 1.5.2 If the issue of priority involves the Technical Specifications and the Drawings, figured dimensions shall govern over scaled dimensions. Work not particularly shown, identified, sized, or located shall be the same as similar Work that is shown or specified. Detail Drawings shall govern over general Drawings, larger scale Drawings take precedence over smaller scale Drawings and Contract Drawings govern over Shop Drawings. Whenever notes, specifications, dimensions, details, or schedules in the Specifications or in the Drawings, or between the Specifications and the Drawings, or between Change Order or Change Authorization Drawings and Contract Drawings, conflict, the higher performance requirement shall be furnished by the Contractor at no increase in the Contract Price or the Contract Time.

1.5.3 Compliance with these priority conditions shall not justify any changes in the Work, or any increase in Contract Price or Contract Time, unless any such compliance results in Work that may not reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents as being required to produce the intended result.

# 1.6 Information and Instructions for Contract Documents:

- 1.6.1 The Contractor shall carefully study all contract Documents and other instructions from the Authority as they are delivered, and procure from the Authority such special information, detailed drawings, etc., as may be necessary for the proper performance of the Work.
- 1.6.2 Where drawings show outline or descriptive representations of repetitive features, the **Contractor** shall construe them in exact accordance with the corresponding features which are common to similar items or materials and which are completely drawn and specified.
- 1.6.3 Where the statement "Consult Drawing No. " or "Refer to Drawing No. " occurs in the Specifications, such references to a Drawing have been made solely for the convenience of the Contractor to help identify the item under consideration and to locate the typical detail of such item in the set of Contract Drawings. It is not the intention of such references, however, to list each and every Drawing on which a certain item may occur.

# 1.7 Ownership and Use of the Contract Documents:

- 1.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, the Authority shall furnish to the Contractor one (1) copy of the Contract Documents at no cost.
- 1.7.2 Neither the Contractor, nor any Subcontractor or Supplier shall have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications or other Contract Documents, and they shall not reuse any of them on extensions of the Work or any other work without prior written consent of the Authority. The Contractor, Subcontractors and Suppliers are granted a limited license to use and reproduce portions of the Contract Documents as appropriate for use in the execution of the Work. Copies made under this license shall bear the copyright notice shown on the Contract Documents.
- 1.7.3 All work papers, questionnaires and other written material prepared or collected by the Contractor in the course of completing the Work to be performed under this Contract shall at all times be the exclusive property of the Authority. The Contractor shall not use such materials for any purposes other than the purpose of this Contract without the prior written consent of the Authority.

# 1.8 Relationship with the Authority:

- 1.8.1 The Contractor is retained solely for the purpose of and to the extent set forth in the Contract Documents. The Contractor's relationship to the Authority during the term of this Contract shall be that of an independent Contractor. The Contractor shall have no capacity to involve the Authority in any contract nor to incur any liability on the part of the Authority. The Contractor, its agents or employees shall not be considered as having the status or pension rights of an employee; provided that the Contractor shall be considered an employee for the purpose of M.G.L. Chapter 268A (the Conflict of Interest Law). The Authority shall not be liable for any personal injury to or death of the Contractor, its agents or employees.
- 1.8.2 The Contractor shall be solely responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work unless the Contract Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. Where the terms and conditions for the delivery or provision of goods or services by the Contractor to the Authority are expressly set forth in the Contract Documents or are incorporated herein by reference, those terms and conditions shall be complied with by the Contractor.
- 1.8.3. Before they can be binding on the Parties, all amendments to the Contract must be in writing and signed by the Executive Director and the Contractor, approved as to the availability of a sufficient appropriation and filed with the Authority, and signed by the Executive Director.

### **ARTICLE 2 - THE AUTHORITY- GENERAL PROVISIONS**

# 2.1 The Authority May Stop the Work:

2.1.1 If the Contractor fails to correct work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents or, If the Work is defective, or the Contractor fails to provide sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to execute Work so that in the judgment of the Authority the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, the Authority may order the Contractor to stop all or part of the Work in question, until the problem has been corrected. This right of the Authority to stop the Work shall not create or impose any duty on the Authority to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other party. The Contractor shall remain responsible for maintaining progress, and shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Time or Contract Price, and the Contractor shall reimburse the Authority for all direct, indirect or consequential costs incurred by the Authority and attributable to such an order to stop the Work.

# 2.2 Limitations on the Authority's Responsibilities

- 2.2.1 The Authority is not responsible for the Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures applicable to the Work; nor for safety precautions and programs related to safety. The Authority is not responsible for the Contractor's failure to execute the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents; nor for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier or anyone for whose acts the Contractor or any of the Subcontractors or Suppliers may be liable.
- 2.2.2 Neither the Authority nor the Authority's consultants are responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or anyone for whose acts the Contractor or any of the Subcontractors or Suppliers may be liable.
- 2.2.3 Neither the Authority's responsibility to review the Contractor's certificates and policies of insurance as set forth in the Instructions to Bidders, nor the Authority's decision to raise or not to raise any objections about those certificates and policies, shall in any way give rise to any duty or responsibility on the part of the Authority to exercise its authority for the benefit of the Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or any other party.

# 2.6 No Waiver of Legal Rights:

- 2.6.1 The Authority reserves the right to correct any error in any progress payment that may have been paid. The Authority reserves the right, should proof of defective Work be discovered after final payment, to claim, and recover from the Contractor and his surety, or either of them, sufficient sums to correct, or remove and replace, the defective Work. Further, the Authority reserves the right to withhold payment for errors in billing due to questionable hours, hourly rates or number of workers assigned to a Work Order that seem unreasonable to complete the Work Order as compared to available fair market values.
- 2.6.2 Any waiver by the **Authority** of any provision of the Contract Documents shall be in writing, and shall apply only to the particular matter concerned and not to other similar or dissimilar matters. Any waiver of any breach of this Contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.

### 2.7 Miscellaneous Provisions:

- 2.7.1 Written communications from the Authority to the Contractor will in general be issued directly to the Contractor. Written communications from the Contractor to the Authority shall be issued to the Authority.
- 2.7.2 Any written direction or interpretation issued by the Authority to the Contractor must contain the

formal endorsement thereon by the Authority for it to be considered valid or effective.

- 2.7.3 The Authority shall make payments to the Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents, and as required by Law.
- 2.7.4 The Authority may issue unilaterally, or negotiate, at the Authority's discretion, Change Orders and Change Authorizations as provided in Article 11 of the General Conditions. Except as recognized under paragraph 11.1.3, only the Authority is empowered under the Contract Documents to order or cause changes in the Work.
- 2.7.5 The Authority may unilaterally delay all or any part of the Work and correspondingly adjust or negotiate adjustments in Contract Price or Contract Time for any given Work Order, as provided in Article 11 of the General Conditions. Except as recognized in paragraph 7.5, only the Authority is empowered under the Contract Documents to order or cause Authority caused delays to all or any part of the Work.
- 2.7.6 Decisions for which the Authority is responsible under the Contract Documents shall be made promptly and, in any event, within thirty (30) days after receipt of written submission but if a decision requires extended investigation and study, it will be made as permitted by M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39P.

# 2.8 Rights to Data

2.8.1 All data consisting of, but not limited to plans, drawings designs, specifications, computer programs, technical reports and operating manuals delivered, developed or produced or paid under the requirements of the Contract Documents shall be the property of the Authority. The Authority maintains all rights to such data including the right to use, duplicate, and disclose, it in whole or in part, in any manner and for any purpose. If that data is copyrightable, the Contractor may copyright it subject to the right of the Authority. The Authority reserves a royalty-tree, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to use, duplicate, publish and disclose such data, in whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so. The Authority shall include provisions to implement, maintain and effectuate the provisions of these rights in all Sub-agreements which produce copyrightable data.

# **ARTICLE 3-THE CONTRACTOR -GENERAL PROVISIONS**

# 3.1 General Responsibility

- 3.1.1 The Contractor, all Subcontractors, and all parties employed on the Work, shall perform their Work in a good and workman like manner and in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 3.1.2 The Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the work under this Contract or any monies due or to become due hereunder without prior written consent of the Authority. In the event that the Contractor assigns all or any part of any monies due or to become due under this Contract, the instrument of assignment shall contain a clause substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of the assignee in and to any monies due or to become due to the Contractor shall be subject to prior claims of all persons, firms and corporations for services rendered or materials supplied for the performance of the Work called for in this Contract.
- 3.1.3 The Contractor shall conform to all determinations and directions of the Authority in accordance with provisions of the Contract Documents concerning all questions which may arise relating to the Work.
- 3.1.4 The Contractor shall comply with and give all notices required by laws, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

# 3.2 Supervision and Work Management

- 3.2.1. The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work competently, applying the skills, expertise and attention necessary to perform the work as directed by the Authority. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures applicable to the Work unless a specific means, method, technique, sequence or procedure is indicated by the Authority. The Contractor shall be responsible to the Authority for acts and omissions of the Contractors' employees, subcontractors and their agents and employees and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for or on behalf of the Contractor or any of its subcontract agents. The Contractor shall be responsible to see that the finished Work complies with all applicable inspectional requirements as set forth in local and State laws and as is approved by the Authority. 3.2.2. The Contractor shall retain a competent plumbing journeyman, properly licensed, and able to perform work orders pertaining to all plumbing and mechanical systems as required, for the duration of any given work. If a specialty trade is required for such work a competent journeyman or master plumber shall be retained with all proper licensure provided, for the duration of the work. If the Authority objects to the Contractor's worker assigned to any given work, whether initially or otherwise, the Contractor shall submit a replacement plumbing and/or mechanical journeyman at no increase in Contract Price or Contract Time as established by this Contract. The plumbing/mechanical journeyman shall be the Contractor's regular representative at the site and shall have the authority to act on his behalf.
- 3.2.3. The Contractor's plumbing/mechanical journeyman and similar authorized representatives of any Subcontractor, Supplier or other person or organization, shall attend all work meetings necessary as requested by the Authority at no charge as part of the Work order.
- 3.2.4. The Contractor shall, upon written request of the Authority, remove all individuals from the Authority's premises in the Contractor's employ whom the Authority determines to be disorderly, careless or incompetent or

to be employed in violation of the terms of the Contract Documents as outlined herein.

### 3.3. Personnel, Materials and Equipment:

- 3.3.1 The Contractor shall provide and permanently assign only one competent, properly licensed, suitably qualified and reliable personnel to be available on call for all Work Orders given and furnish and perform the Work as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor's representative shall at all times enforce strict discipline and maintain good order at the site.
- 3.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish, pay for and assume full responsibility for all materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water (including water for testing, flushing, and construction), sanitary facilities, temporary facilities and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the furnishing, performance, testing, start-up and completion of the Work.

NOTE: \*\* CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A FULLY STOCKED TRUCK WITH ALL NECESSARY TOOLS, EQUIMENT AND MATERIALS TO PERFORM THE SCOPE OF WORK IN THE WORK ORDER PROVIDED UPON ARRIVAL AT THE SITE SPECIFICED. ASSIGNED WORKMAN TO NHA WORK ORDER SITES SHALL NOT ARRIVE WITHOUT THE PROPER EXPERIENCE, KNOWLEDGE, TOOLS, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT TO DO THE WORK REQUIRED AT THE TIME OF THE CALL. WORK MUST BE PERFORMED AND COMPLETED WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME AFTER THE ARRIVAL ON THE JOB SITE.

FURTHER, ALL WORK ORDERS MUST BE RESPONDED TO BY THE CONTRACTOR WITHIN A MINIMUM OF ONE HOUR AND A MAXIMUM OF TWO HOURS UNLESS AGREED UPON BY THE AUTHORITY DUE TO UNFORESEEN, UNUSUAL CIRCUMSTANCES. \*\*

The Contractor is solely responsible for providing competent, experienced, licensed workmen that are knowledgeable and able to perform the necessary work that is required to repair or replace any and all plumbing and related mechanical systems such as HVAC system, etc.

3.3.3. All materials and equipment shall be of good quality and new, unless otherwise allowed, and the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to their kind and quality. Materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned and conditioned following the manufacturer's and Supplier's instructions, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All materials and equipment shall be properly protected against damage throughout the furnishing and performance of the Work so that they remain of good quality and in the as-new condition. For each item, the Contractor shall furnish complete information as to preventive maintenance and operating requirements, parts lists in sufficient detail to facilitate ordering replacements, and any applicable special condition. Should the manner or method of installation, specified performance or test results be contrary to the manufacturer's recommendations, the Contractor shall promptly notify the Authority in writing of that conflict before proceeding with that Work; otherwise, he shall be deemed to have certified that Specifications will be met by the materials or equipment.

# 3.4. Wage Rates:

3.5.3.4.1. The hourly wage rate to be paid to mechanics and apprentices, laborers and any other trade employed for Work to be performed under this Contract shall be not less than the rate of wages in the schedule entitled "Schedule of Prevailing Wage Rates," as determined by the Department of Labor and Workforce Development of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts pertaining to State developments. In addition, for work performed on all Federal sites under this contract those wage rates as determined by the Davis Bacon Act shall be applicable. These schedules shall continue to be the minimum wage rate for said employees during the life of this Contract. Attached are both wage rate documents applicable to this Contract. Working Hours:



### 3.6. Equal Employment Opportunity:

- 3.6.1. The Contractor shall assume, and shall require each Subcontractor to assume, the obligation to take whatever affirmative actions are necessary to ensure that employees and applicants for employment under this Contract are treated equally irrespective of race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age or ancestry. The term "treated" shall mean and include without limitation the following: recruited, whether by advertising or other means; compensated, whether in the form of rates of pay or otherwise; selected for training including apprenticeship; promoted; upgraded; demoted; downgraded; transferred; laid-off; and terminated.
- 3.6.2. Neither the Contractor nor any Subcontractor shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religious creed, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, or ancestry.
- 3.6.3. The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall carry out the requirements pertaining to equal employment with the diligence that they apply to any other part of the Contract.

# 3.7. Preference in Employment:

3.7.1. The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall give hiring preference in the employment of mechanics, apprentices, and laborers, first to the citizens of the Commonwealth who have been residents of the Commonwealth for at least six months at the commencement of their employment, and who are veterans as defined in M.G.L.Chapter 4, Section 7, clause 43, and who are qualified to perform the Work to which the employment relates; and secondly, to citizens on the Commonwealth generally, and if they cannot be obtained in sufficient numbers, then to citizens of the United States; and shall give preference to veterans and citizens who are residents of the Newton Housing Authority.

### 3.8. Substitutes or "Or-Equal" Items:

- 3.8.1. Whenever materials or equipment are described in the Contract Documents by using a brand name, make, manufacturer, supplier or specification, the naming or specification of the item is intended to denote the essential characteristics of the item desired pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39M(b). Unless words indicating that no substitution is permitted are used, items from prospective suppliers may be accepted by the Authority if sufficient information is submitted by the Contractor in his written application for the substitution to allow the Authority to determine whether the material or equipment proposed (1) will perform at least equally well the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design concept, (2) is at least of equal materials of construction, quality and necessary essential design features, (3) is suited to the same use as that named or specified, (4) conforms substantially to the desired detailed requirements for that item, including but not limited to, durability, strength, appearance, aesthetics (where aesthetics are essential), safety, service, useful life, reliability, economy of operation and ease of maintenance, (5) evidences a proven record of performance, (6) will yield net savings to the Authority, and (7) will not impact the Construction Progress Schedule and will not extend any Contract Time(s).
- 3.8.2. Each application shall certify whether or not acceptance of the substitute will require a change in any of the Work or any of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures applicable to the Work indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, or in work performed by the Authority or others, and whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty. All variations of the substitute from the item named or specified shall be identified (operation, materials, or construction finish, thickness or gauge of material, dimensions, loads, tolerances, deleted/added features, etc.), and information regarding available maintenance, repair and replacement service will be indicated.
- 3.8.3. The application shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs that will result directly or indirectly from evaluation and acceptance of the proposed substitute, including, but not limited to costs and delays of redesign, or claims of other contractors affected by the substitute, and changes in operating, maintenance, repair, replacement or spare part costs. The Contractor is solely responsible for verifying that substitutes are in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that dimensions, arrangement, design and construction details, and all other features of substitutes are suited to the specified purpose. The Contractor assumes full responsibility for the time and cost required to make substitute items conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, or to implement any changes in the Work or in other work which may be required because of or to accommodate the substitute, or both.
  - 3.8.4. If a substitute item differs from that named or specified, and that difference was not expressly identified in the Contractor's written application, or it results in changes to the Work or in the function or general design

- concept, the Authority shall determine whether to require removal and replacement of the substitute.
- 3.8.5. The Authority's decision regarding a substitution will be made within the time allowed in M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39P. A proposed substitute will be accepted as equivalent or "or-equal" to that named or specified if it meets the substitution criteria and if the deduction proposed by the Contractor reflects the net difference in cost, provided, however, that one hundred percent (100%) of the net savings benefits the Authority. No substitute shall be utilized, ordered, or installed without the Authority's prior written acceptance. The Contractor shall reimburse the Authority for any associated extra costs created as a result of the change whether or not the Authority accepts a proposed substitute,
- 3.8.6. An item will be considered equal to the item so named or described if (1) it is at least equal in quality, durability, appearance, strength and design: (2) it will perform in function at least equally or better imposed by the general design for the Work; and (3) if conforms substantially, even with deviations, to the detailed requirements for the item in the Specifications, pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 30, Section 39M (b).
- 3.9. Shop Drawings, Cut Sheets, Samples and Printed Data:

	Shop I	Drawings o	or other	technica	al Submittal	s consisting	of drawing	gs and s	pecifications	requiring	g profes	sional	engineeri	ng,
land	l surveying	or any oth	ner such	related	disciplines,	shall only b	e prepared	by thos	se registered	as such w	rith the	Comm	onwealth	of
Mas	sachusetts.	•												

# 4.18 Operating and Maintenance Instructions and Stock Items:

- 4.18.1 The Contractor shall collect all operating, service and maintenance instructions of all mechanical, electrical and manually operated equipment required by any Work Order performed under the Contract Documents, bind them into two (2) complete sets properly formatted and indexed, and submit them to the Authority when the Work has reached completion. Failure by the Contractor to provide these instructions will prevent timely payment for work performed upon completion.
- 4.18.2 Upon the date of completion of each work order, the Contractor shall provide verbal instructions and demonstrations to the Authority's representatives at the site concerning maintenance of all applicable building features and equipment.
  - 4.18.3 Upon the date of work completion, all maintenance stock items required to be supplied under this Contract shall be delivered to the job site by the Contractor. All maintenance stock shall be delivered to the job site in unopened containers and stored properly in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. The Contractor shall provide the Authority with storage instructions for all spare maintenance stock supplied.

### 4.19 Record Documents:

- 4.19.1 From the sets of Contract Documents furnished by the Authority, the Contractor shall reserve one set for record purposes.
- 4.19.2 The Contractor shall maintain at the site one (1) record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Change Authorizations, field orders, test records, construction photos, and written interpretations/clarifications, in good order and annotated in a neat and legible manner using a contrasting, reproducible color to show all revisions made and dimensions noted during execution of the Work.

#### 4.20 Instruction Relating to Existing Conditions:

4.20.1 The Contractor represents that he has read the Contract Documents herein and is fully informed in regard to all provisions thereof, including without limitation, the drawings, Contract Time and the provisions for liquidated damages, and that he has visited the premises described in the Contract Documents and made his own examination of the place where the Work is to be performed and of all conditions pertaining to the Work and has made his own estimates. The Contractor agrees that he shall not hold the Authority, its agents or employees responsible for or bound by any schedule, time period, estimate, sounding, boring, or any plan of any thereof and shall assume all liability for the prosecution of the Work and shall bear all losses resulting to him in such prosecution of the Work. No claim for an increase in Contract Price or other damages or any other claim other than for an extension in Contract Time shall be made or asserted against the Authority by reason of any delays unless specifically allowed by the Contract Documents or required by law. The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or to compensation of any kind from the Authority including extended site and home office overhead, for direct, indirect, consequential impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency arising because of delay, disruption or interference from any cause whatsoever. This provision shall not preclude recovery of damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delay due solely to fraud or bad faith on the part of the Authority or its agents. Otherwise, the Contractor shall be entitled only to a non-compensable extension to the Contract Time as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent provided above.

#### 4.23 Materials, Inspection, Disposition and Suitable Storage:

- 4.23.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Specifications, or noted on any Drawings, all materials and equipment shall be new and in manufacturer's original containers, clearly marked as to contents. Upon delivery of materials, copies of the delivery receipts shall be given to the Authority.
- 4.23.2 The Contractor shall allow the Authority's representative to examine materials prior to installation, and he shall furnish labor and equipment to assist in such examination with no change in Contract Price.
- 4.23.3 The Contractor shall store all delivered materials in proper locations as directed by the Authority's representative which will not interfere with the Work. If any stored materials are rejected, a notice of rejection will be given to the Contractor by the Authority in writing. Upon receipt of a rejection notice, the Contractor shall, within twenty-four (24) hours thereafter, proceed to remove all such rejected materials from the site, and completely remove such materials within five (5) working days.
- 4.23.4 Should the Contractor or any Subcontractor install, or permit the installation of, any materials which have not been inspected prior to installation, the Contractor shall be held fully responsible therefore, and if such installed materials are rejected after inspection by the Authority, the Contractor shall, take remove all portions of the Work containing rejected materials, remove all such materials from the site, and immediately replace the rejected materials accordingly at no increase in Contract Price.
- 4.23.5 The Contractor shall provide for the protection and orderly storage of materials, and shall provide sufficient heat and cooling to prevent damage to said materials.
- 4.23.6 In no event shall materials and/or equipment be considered delivered and suitably stored at the site, or some other location approved in writing by the Authority unless the materials and/or equipment are actually scheduled for prompt use, meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor can and will, at his expense, adequately protect and insure the materials and/or equipment until they are incorporated into the Work. No payment will be made by the Authority for related storage charges, insurance and/or costs and expenses.

#### 4.25 Existing Utilities:

- 4.25.1 If existing utility lines, which are indicated in the Contract Documents are damaged by the Contractor or any Subcontractor, including without limitation, cables, ducts, conduits and piping, they shall be immediately repaired, protected, and maintained in use until relocation of same has been completed, or shall be cut or capped or prepared for service connections, as the Contract Documents require, unless they are to be abandoned in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 4.25.2 The Contractor shall notify the Authority if it is necessary to locate any Underground Utilities in advance of any excavation whether shown in any Contract Documents or indicated by exposed components. No excavation work shall be scheduled or performed prior to or within the 72 hour period starting from the time which the Authority has contacted Dig Safe per MGL Chapter 82 Sec. 40-40E. Once Dig Safe has completed marking off all utility lines within the area to be excavated, the Authority will notify the Contractor that work shall be allowed to safely commence.

4.25.3 The Contractor shall notify the Authority in writing, not less than three (3) business days in advance of the proposed time for shutting down or interrupting any utilities, services, or facilities which may affect the operation of other buildings, services or facilities of the Authority or other contractors. In no case shall any shutdown or interruption of any utilities, services, or facilities be made without the prior written approval by the Authority. Unless otherwise authorized in writing by the Authority, the Contractor shall so schedule and coordinate his work that such interruption will occur on weekends, holidays, or before or after normal working day of the Authority's Facilities. All costs and expenses, including outage costs and back charge costs, shall be borne by the Contractor.

#### 4.26 Maintenance of Site:

- 4.26.1 At all times prior to Final Completion, the Contractor shall keep the site free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish.
- 4.26.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection of all completed Work, and for repairing, replacing or cleaning any such Work which has been damaged by other trades or by any other cause, so that all Work is in perfect condition in accordance with the Contract Documents at the time of Substantial Completion.
- 4.26.3 At the completion of each work order, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean the site of all rubbish and debris of any nature, and remove such debris from the site. Specific cleaning requirements, prior to final inspection, shall be as set forth in Division 1 of the Technical Specifications.
- 4.26.4 Immediately prior to final inspection by the Authority, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean the entire Work area to the satisfaction of the Authority.
- 4.26.5 The Contractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to those areas identified in and permitted by the Contract Documents, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with construction equipment, materials or equipment. The Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to those lands including properties and fixtures, rights-of-way and easements or to the owners or occupants of any adjacent lands or access, resulting from execution of the Work. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority from and against all claims arising out of or resulting from any damage to any such land, or to any adjacent lands, including loss of use.
- 4.26.6 The Contractor shall perform daily clean up to keep the premises safe and free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish and other debris in the event a work order takes longer than a day to complete. Upon the completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste and surplus materials, rubbish, debris, tools and construction equipment, and shall leave the site clean and ready for occupancy by the Authority. The Contractor shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents including, but not limited to walks, roadways, paved or landscaped areas used during execution of the Work. If the Contractor fails to comply with this requirement, the Authority shall impose charges that will be deducted from the price of an individual work contract so as to be reimbursed for costs incurred to perform such cleanup.

# 4.27 Inspection and Testing of the Work:

- 4.27.1 All materials, equipment and workmanship shall be subject to inspection and testing by the Authority and its authorized representatives, for conformance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 4.27.2 If the Contract Documents, laws, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction require any Work to be inspected, tested or approved, the Contractor shall give the Authority timely written notice of its readiness and of the date arranged so that the Authority may be present to observe such inspection, testing or approval. The Contractor shall bear all costs of such inspections, tests and approvals unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.
- 4.27.3 Inspection and testing by the Authority, or its representative, shall in no event reduce or remove the Contractor's responsibility for compliance with the full intent and requirements of the Contract Documents.

- 4.27.4 The Contractor must anticipate any and all time required for the testing, inspection and approval of material before incorporation into the Work. No increases in Contract Price or Time will be permitted for losses or delays attributable thereto.
- 4.27.5 After testing or inspection should any materials or portion of the Work be found *defective* and not conforming to the Contract Documents, such materials or portion of the Work shall be promptly removed, replaced and made to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Contractor at no increase in Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 4.27.6 If after Commencement of the Work, the Authority determines, in its sole discretion, that any of the Work requires special inspection, testing or approval, not otherwise provided for in the Contract Documents, the Authority may instruct the Contractor in writing to order such special inspection, testing or approval. The Contractor shall give the Authority seventy-two (72) hours advance written notice of the time and place of such inspection, testing or approval. In the event that such special inspection or testing shows that the Work or part of the Work does not conform to the requirements of the regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction, the Contractor shall pay all costs of such inspection, testing or approval, otherwise the Authority shall bear such costs.
- 4.27.7 Examinations of questioned Work may be ordered at any time and from time to time by the Authority, and if so ordered, the Contractor shall uncover the Work. If such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Authority will pay the reasonable costs of examination and replacement. If such Work is found to be not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay all costs of examination, replacement, and all related testing.

#### 4.28 Claims by the Contractor for Loss or Injury:

- 4.28.1 If the Contractor claims any loss or injury resulting to him from any act, omission, or neglect of the Authority, its agents or employees, the Contractor shall in strict compliance with all of the requirements of these Contract Documents and in any event no later than thirty (30) days after the loss or injury that gives rise to the claim, deliver to the Authority a written statement of the loss or injury in the form of a clearly marked Notice of Claim. Under no circumstances will any reimbursement be made to the Contractor unless the Contractor shall have delivered the timely written Notice of Claim in accordance with the requirements of this paragraph and other related sections of this Contract.
- 4.28.2 The Contractor shall have no right to recover damages for any claims or any loss or injury resulting from Work not being performed in conformance with the Contract Documents.
- 4.28.3 The Contractor shall bear all losses resulting from any cause both before a work order is completed and if the Work or any part of the Work fails to conform to the work detailed in the Contract Documents.

# 4.29 Responsibility for Labor, Material and Equipment Costs:

4.29.1 The Contractor shall pay and be exclusively responsible for all debts for labor and material contracted for by the Contractor, for the rental of any appliance or equipment hired by the Contractor and/or for any expense incurred on account of the Work.

# **4.30 Conflict of Interest:**

4.30.1 The Contractor's attention is called to M.G.L. Chapter 268A the Conflict of Interest Law. The Contractor shall not act in collusion with any Authority's officer, agent, employee or any other party, nor shall the Contractor make gifts regarding this Contract or any other matter in which the Authority has a direct and substantial interest.

#### 4.31 Emergencies:

4.31.1 In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at or adjacent to the site, the Contractor, without special instructions or authorization from the Authority, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, death, injury, or loss. The Contractor shall give the Authority written notice within forty-eight (48) hours of any changes in the Work resulting from the action taken. If the Authority concurs, the Authority shall authorize the required changes in accordance with provisions found within this Contract unless the emergency was due in whole or in part to the fault or negligence of the Contractor, correspondingly adjust the Contract Price or the Contract Time.

#### 4.32 Miscellaneous Provisions:

- 4.32.1 The Contractor shall inspect Work already in-place to verify that it is in proper condition to receive dependent Work. The Contractor shall be responsible for all cutting and patching which may be necessary to complete the Work and to make its several parts fit together properly, whether or not that Work is expressly specified in the Contract Documents.
- 4.32.2 The Contractor shall initiate, maintain and supervise all weather precaution programs applicable to the Work. In the event of severe weather, the Contractor shall immediately inspect the Work and the site, and take all necessary actions to ensure that public access and safety are maintained.
- 4.32.3 Any damaged Work corrected by the Contractor shall be corrected so as to be equal in all respects including quality, appearance, function, finish, etc. to non-damaged like Work.
- 4.32.4 The Contractor shall, prior to final inspection, mark in a permanent and readily identifiable manner, all reference points provided by the Authority.
- 4.32.5 The Contractor shall take whatever steps, procedures or means are required to prevent any dust nuisance due to his operations, and he shall maintain dust control measures at all times in accordance with the requirements of the Authority and any public governmental body with jurisdiction. Dumping of spoil or waste material on land or property obtained by the Contractor shall be in strict conformance with all applicable Laws.
- 4.32.6 The Contractor shall not obstruct access to Authority or municipal structures, hydrants, valves, manholes, fire alarms, etc., nor shall he make any connections to, operate valves or otherwise interfere with the operation of the water system without first securing the necessary approvals and permits.
- 4.32.7 The Contractor shall prosecute Work in the manner which will cause the least practicable interference with and avoid prolonged interruption of or damage to existing facilities, including underground utilities and overhead utilities. The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the Authority prior to performing any Work involving connection to or interruption of existing facilities, and shall perform that Work during those periods of time which cause the least interference or annoyance.

#### 4.35 Related Work at Site:

- 4.35.1 The Authority may perform other work at the Site with the Authority's own forces or have other work performed by other persons. If the Contract Documents did not note that other work is to be performed, written notice will be given to the Contractor prior to starting that other work.
- 4.35.2 Wherever Work to be performed by the Contractor is dependent upon the work of others; the Contractor shall coordinate his Work with the dependent work to the same extent that he is required to coordinate dependent work. Subcontractor work under provisions defined within this Contract, Installation of Work by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor in any given area shall constitute acceptance by the Contractor or that Subcontractor of all previously placed dependent work.
- 4.35.3 If the Authority contracts with others for other work, the person or organization that will have the authority and responsibility for coordinating the activities of the Contractor and those others will be identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Unless otherwise specifically stated, neither the Authority shall have any authority or responsibility for coordination of the activities of the Contractor and those others.

# 4.36 Mutual Duties and Responsibilities:

- 4.36.1 If the Contractor causes damage to the work or property of others, or if a claim arising out of the Contractor's execution of Work is made by a person against the Contractor, or the Authority the Contractor shall promptly attempt to settle with that person by agreement or otherwise resolve the claim. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority from and against all claims, causes of action, lawsuits, damages, losses and expenses, whether direct, indirect or consequential, including but not limited to charges of engineers, attorneys and other professionals and costs of both defense and appeal, if any, arising out of or resulting from damage by the Contractor to the work or property of others or from the Contractor's execution of the Work.
- 4.36.2 If another person causes damage to the Work or property of the Contractor, or if the performance of other work results in any other claim by the Contractor, the Contractor shall promptly attempt to settle with that person by agreement or otherwise resolve the claim. The Contractor shall not institute any action against the Authority or its agents or employees, or permit any action against them to be maintained in the Contractor's name or for his benefit in any court or before any tribunal, which action seeks to impose liability or recover damages from the Authority for such claim.
- 4.36.3 If another person performing other work causes delay, extension or acceleration that postpones, extends or in any other manner alters the schedule or completion of all or part of the Work, the Authority shall negotiate with the Contractor, an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time for any increases in the Contractor's cost or the time required to perform the Work. The Contractor assumes responsibility for any delay, extension or acceleration caused by other work which is reasonable under the Contract Documents.

If another person performing other work is granted an extension in Contract Time on account of causes warranting said extension but without compensation, and said Contract Time is coterminous with a Contract Time under this Contract, and if the Authority concludes that said extension requires a change in the coterminous Contract Time, the Authority shall authorize the necessary change in Contract Time only.

#### ARTICLE 5 - SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

#### 5.1 Use of Subcontractors:

5.1.1 The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or in any way transfer any interest in this Contract without prior written consent of the Authority.

#### 5.3 The Contractor's Continuing Responsibilities:

5.3.1 The Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Authority for all acts and omissions of all the Subcontractors and Suppliers, at any tier, to the same extent as the Contractor is responsible for the Contractor's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between the Authority and any Subcontractor or Supplier, nor create any express or implied duty or obligation on the part of the Authority to any Subcontractor or Supplier or the Contractor's sureties, to pay or to see to the payment of any monies owed to any of them.

#### 5.4 Sub-agreements:

- 5.4.1 Work performed by a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be through an appropriate sub-agreement which expressly binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the requirements of the Contract Documents for the express benefit of the Authority, and which requires each of them to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations which the Contractor assumes toward the Authority and contains waiver provisions as required by the provisions of this Contract Document. The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor and Supplier as their interests may appear, a proportionate share of any funds received on account of losses under insurance policies issued.
- 5.4.1 Within seven (7) days after receipt of a written request from the Authority, the Contractor shall submit an exact copy of each sub-agreement identified in the request. Such request shall not constitute approval of any Subcontractor by the Authority. Time periods as allowed by the Authority for making determinations on proposals, payments or claims shall be automatically extended if those sub-agreement(s) are not submitted within seven (7) days after receipt of a written request from the Authority.

Subject to prior rights, if any, of the Contractor's surety, the Contractor assigns to the Authority each sub-agreement, which the Authority assumes by notifying the Subcontractor or Supplier in writing, upon a termination action determined by the Authority.

# **ARTICLE 6 - WORK ORDERS**

#### 6.1 Work Orders:

6.1.1. The Date for Commencement of any given work order shall be by written work order only, issued by the Authority, unless an emergency arises. In the event of an emergency call for a work order, a written submission will follow at the earliest time possible on the next business day.

The Contractor shall commence the Work no earlier than the date of execution of the work order issued by the Authority. The Contractor shall prosecute and complete the Work regularly, diligently, and uninterruptedly at such rate or progress as will ensure timely completion of all works so as not to unnecessarily interrupt or inconvenience those tenants affected by such work.

- 6.1.2 Neither the Contractor nor the Authority shall be liable for any damages sustained by either party due to a failure to perform the Work under the terms of this Contract if such failure is in fact caused by the occurrence of a contingency the nonoccurrence of which was a basic assumption under which this Contract was made, including but not necessarily limited to a natural disaster (flood, hurricane, or earthquake); a state of war, an imminent security threat, acts of enemies, embargoes, labor strikes, provided that the Contractor has notified the Authority in writing of such cause within fourteen (14) days after its occurrence.
  - 6.1.3 Before any Work is started, the Contractor shall deliver to the Authority all of the licenses, permits, certificates of insurance, and bonds required by the Contract Documents. All certificates of insurance shall clearly state ON THE FACE OF THE CERTIFICATE that: the Authority and any other entity required by the Contract are Additional Insureds on all required policies except Workers' Compensation for the covered work; that Waiver of Subrogation is included with respect to all policies and coverages listed above; that the above insurance is primary and non-contributory over any other insurance available to the Authority; that such insurance extends to contractual liability; and that should any of the above policies be cancelled before the expiration thereof the issuing insurer will mail written notice to the Authority as certificate holder thirty (30) days in advance. The following statement affirming that coverage completely complies with the contract requirements shall be included in the Special Items section of the certificate of insurance or in an attached Special Items Addendum Page: The aforementioned insurance coverages must comply with General Conditions insurance requirements as detailed within this Contract unless otherwise authorized by the Authority.
  - 6.1.4 The Contractor shall start performance and furnishing of the Work on the Date of Commencement of the Contract Time. No Work shall be done at the site prior to the date on which the corresponding work work is scheduled to commence.

# **6.2 Compliance with Contract Time Requirements:**

- 6.2.1 The Contractor shall prosecute the Work with the diligence necessary to ensure its completion within the time the work is expected to take to complete. The Contractor shall provide sufficient labor, materials and equipment, and shall promptly undertake appropriate action to recover a schedule, as may be necessary to comply with the
  - 7.2.1 Work Order under the specified Contract Time requirements. Except as otherwise may be permitted by the Contract Documents, all Work at the site shall be performed during normal working hours, 8 am -5:00 pm, unless the Contractor has obtained the Authority's prior written consent.

#### **ARTICLE 7 - PAYMENTS**

#### 7.1 Application for Payment

Invoices submitted by the Contractor to the Authority for payment of work performed will be paid promptly upon receipt provided that no unresolved issues pertaining to work is outstanding at the time of the submittal.

An Application for Payment covering Work of Subcontractors or Suppliers shall exclude amounts the Contractor or a Subcontractor does not intend to pay to Subcontractors or Suppliers for any reason. The Contractor will not be paid for any Work performed by a Subcontractor until all required evidence of insurance for that Subcontractor has been received and reviewed by the Authority, if such information has been requested by the Authority. The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall promptly pay the amounts due to each Subcontractor and Supplier, upon receipt of payment from the Authority.

#### 7.1.0 Review of Applications for Payment:

The Authority's review of an Application for Payment will be based on on-site observations by the Authority's representative based upon the information and belief that the Work performed meets the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon completion of the work.

7.1.1 The Authority may make changes in any Application for Payment submitted by the Contractor, and the payment due on said invoice shall be computed in accordance with the changes so made, but such changes or any requirement for the periodic payment or the date for the commencement of interest charges on the amount of the periodic payment shall be computed in accordance with the changes made as provided herein; provided that the Authority may, within seven (7) days after receipt, return to the Contractor for correction to any invoice which is not in the required form or which contains computations not arithmetically correct and, in that event, the date of receipt of such Application shall be the date of receipt of the corrected invoice submitted in the proper form and with arithmetically correct computations.

#### 7.2 Refusal to Make Payment:

The Authority may withhold from any payment an amount based on the Authority's estimate of the fair value of any outstanding claims against the Contractor, including but not limited to, any liquidated damages that would become or have been determined to be due; claims made against the Authority on account of the Contractor's performance or furnishing of the Work; direct payments due to Subcontractors in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. Chapter 30, §39F; subsequently discovered evidence or other items entitling the Authority to a withholding or set-off against the amount recommended. The Authority will give the Contractor immediate written notice stating the reasons for such action.

# IMPORTANT NOTE:

\*\* Invoices for Work Orders completed will not be accepted that include travel time, mileage.

# 7.2.1 Payment for Labor and Materials by Contractors and Subcontractors:

7.2.2 The Contractor agrees that he and all Subcontractors performing the Work shall pay for all Labor performed or furnished and materials used or employed in the performance of the Work including lumber so employed which is not incorporated in the Work and is not wholly or necessarily consumed or made so worthless as to lose its identity, but only to the extent of its purchase price less its full salvage value, and including also any material specially fabricated at the order of the Contractor or Subcontractor for use as a component part of the Work so as to be unsuitable for use elsewhere, even though such material has not been delivered and incorporated into the Work, but only to the extent that such specially fabricated materials is in conformity with the Contract Documents, or any charges for materials used or employed therein which are consigned to the Contractor or to a Subcontractor who has a direct contractual relationship with the Contractor, and shall pay all sums due for the rental or hire of vehicles, steam shovels, roller propelled by steam or other power, concrete mixers, tools, and other appliances and equipment employed in the Work; and shall pay the transportation charges directly related to such rental or hire; and shall pay all sums due trustees or other persons authorized to collect such payments from the Contractor or Subcontractors based upon the labor performed or furnished as aforesaid for a maximum of one-hundred twenty (120) consecutive calendar days, for health and welfare plans and other fringe benefits which are payable in cash, and provided for in collective bargaining agreements between organized labor and the Contractor or Subcontractors.

7.2.3 In the event that the Contract Documents provide for reimbursement by the Authority to the Contractor for travel or other expenses, the Contractor shall submit such proposed expenses to the Authority for approval prior to the incurrence of such expenses.

#### 7.3 Penalties for False Claims:

- 7.3.1 The attention of the Contractor and all Subcontractors is directed to each of the following sections of the M.G.L. regarding penalties for presentation to the Authority of what the Contractor or Subcontractor knows to be a false claim or claims.
- 7.3.2 M.G.L. Chapter 266, §67B provides for criminal penalties of a fine of not more than Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) or for imprisonment for not more than five years in State Prison or for not more than two and one half years in the House of Correction, or both; M.G.L. Chapter 12, §5B provides for civil penalties of not less than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) and not more than Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) per violation, plus three times the amount of damages sustained by the Authority as well as the cost to recover said damages; and M.G.L. Chapter 29, §29F provides for debarment from bidding on all public work for a specified period of time that may be imposed for willfully supplying materially false information incident to performing any public contract or subcontract.

#### 7.4 Contractor's Continuing Obligation:

7.4.1 The Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents is absolute. None of the following constitutes acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of the Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents: (a) any payment by the Authority to the Contractor, (b) any act of acceptance by the Authority nor any failure to do so, (c) any review and approval of a Shop Drawing, sample, test procedure, or other Submittal, (d) any inspections, tests or approvals, (e) any correction of defective Work by the Authority.

#### ARTICLE 8 - PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

#### 8.1 General:

- 8.1.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for all Site security and he shall protect everything on, in, or at the site from injury by water, frost, wind, fire, accident, theft, vandalism or other cause, and any interference; take charge of, protect, and be liable for any loss of or damage to the materials for use under this Contract delivered at or in the vicinity of the Site, and whether or not suitably stored at the Site, or at some other location agreed upon in writing by the Authority, pursuant to this Section by whomever furnished; take all proper precautions to protect the Authority's property or adjoining property from damage or unnecessary interference; provide proper means of access to the property and replace or put in a good condition every public or private way, conduit, catch basin, fence, trees, or other things damaged by the Contractor in performing the Work, unless permanently done away with on approval of the Authority, for the proper performance of the Work; take all proper precautions to protect persons from injury, unnecessary interference or inconvenience, and be responsible for the results of any failure in doing so; leave an obstructed way along public and private places for pedestrians and vehicular traffic and leave direct access to hydrants; provide proper walks over and around any obstruction made in public places in the performance of the Work; maintain from the beginning of twilight through the whole of every night, on or near the obstruction, sufficient lights and guards to protect travelers from injury thereby; when the Work is suspended keep all roadways and sidewalks in proper condition, and put and leave the same in safe condition at the completion of the Work, all to the satisfaction of the Authority or its representative.
- 8.1.2 Any additional requirements for protection of persons and property shall be as set forth in these General Conditions and in the Supplementary Conditions.

# 8.2 Safety and Protection:

- 8.2.1 .The Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs necessary to complete each work order. The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards and provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to: (a) all employees on the Work, (b) other persons who may be affected, (c) all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated into the Work whether in storage on or off the Site and (d) other property at or adjacent to the Site including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities and Underground Utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement. Unless otherwise stated in writing by the Contractor to the Authority, the Contractor's safety representative at the site shall be the job foreman.
  - 8.2.2. The Contractor shall, and shall require all Subcontractors to comply with all State, Federal and local regulations governing the

safety and protection of persons or property, including but not limited to (a) the Occupational Safety and Health Act and the Hazard Communication Act, as promulgated by the Federal Government and as adopted by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and (b) all applicable State health and safety requirements. The Contractor shall be responsible for all fines and penalties imposed for any related violation(s) of Federal, State and local health and safety requirements.

- 8.2.3. The Contractor shall notify owners of adjacent property, including Underground Utility owners, in writing seventy-two hours in advance when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation and replacement of their property. The Contractor shall simultaneously notify the Authority or its representative of any notice given to owners of adjacent property. All damage, injury or loss to that property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by the Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier shall be remedied by the Contractor, except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of the Authority, and not directly or indirectly attributable, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, and protect as may be necessary, all foundations and other parts of all existing structures adjacent to the Site. These Contractor's duties and responsibilities shall continue until the Authority has issued written notice to the Contractor that the Work is acceptable.
- 8.2.4 Except as otherwise may be provided in the technical specifications, if the Contractor encounters material at the site reasonably believed to be asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) which has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop all affected Work, report the condition to the Authority in writing and take appropriate health and safety precautions. Upon receipt of any such notice, the Authority will investigate the conditions. If in fact the material is asbestos or PCBs which have not been rendered harmless, the Authority shall suspend all affected Work and proceed to have the asbestos or PCB material removed or rendered harmless by either negotiating a Change Order or Change Authorization with the Contractor, by means of separate contract or as the Authority may otherwise deem expedient, or in the alternative, terminate the affected Work or the entire Agreement for convenience.
- 8.2.5 Once the material has been removed or rendered harmless, the affected Work shall be resumed as directed by the Authority. If any such incident causes or will cause delay, extension or acceleration that postpones, extends or in any other manner alters the schedule or completion of all or part of the Work, the Authority shall make or negotiate an adjustment in work price with the Contractor for any increases in the Contractor's actual documented cost or the time required to perform the Work. The Contractor assumes responsibility for any related delay, extension or acceleration that is reasonable under the Contract Documents.

#### 8.3 Accident Prevention:

- 8.3.1 The Contractor shall comply with all recommendations and requirements for accident prevention of the Associated General Contractors of America and the provisions for accident prevention included in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 454, CMR 10.0 "Construction Industry Rules and Regulations." The Contractor should note that these aforementioned recommendations and requirements are the minimum standards that are to be adhered to.
- 8.3.2 Neither the Authority nor any of its officers, agents or employees shall be responsible for providing safe working places, safety measures, means or techniques for the Contractor, Subcontractors or their employees or any individual.

#### 8.4 Fire Protection and Prevention:

- 8.4.1 The Contractor will ensure that the requirements in the Contract Documents and any and all permits issued regarding Fire Protection and Prevention, including firewatch, are strictly adhered to during the entire execution of any given work work order.
- 8.4.2. If the Contractor fails to provide sufficient security as called for within the provisions found in this Contract Document, the Authority may elect to provide such sufficient security as required, and charge the associated costs to the Contractor.

# 8.5 Welding and Cutting:

8.5.1 All welding and cutting shall be in accordance with Newton Fire Department and all other pertinent local and State regulations. Torch cutting and/or welding operations by Subcontractors shall have the approval of the Contractor prior to start of such operations. In addition to the requirements of this Article, wherever electric or gas welding or cutting work is done in the vicinity of combustible material, or over areas where persons may be found, interposed shields of fireproof material shall be used to protect against fire damage or injury. Personnel with suitable fire extinguishing equipment shall be

stationed near welding and cutting operations to prevent the sparks from lodging in floor cracks or passing through floor or wall openings and from lodging in combustible materials. Chemical extinguishers shall be available and ready for use in all locations where torch cutting and/or welding operations are in progress.

# 8.6 Overloading:

**8.6.1** The Contractor shall neither cause nor allow the design live load of any or all parts of the structure to be exceeded at any time during the performance of the Work.

#### 8.7 Noise and Pollution Control:

8.8 All Work performed under the Contract Documents shall conform to the requirements of: M.G.L. Chapter 111, §§ 31C and 142D; Rules and Regulations adopted by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Division of Environmental Health; the Newton Inspectional Services Department; the Newton Health and Human Services Department; and all other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction.

# 8.9 Weather Protection:

- 8.9.1 "Weather Protection" shall mean the temporary protection of that Work adversely affected by moisture, wind and cold, by covering, enclosing and/or heating. This protection shall provide adequate working areas during the months of November through March as determined by the Authority and consistent with the approved Progress Schedule to permit the continuous progress of all Work necessary to maintain an orderly and efficient sequence of construction operations. The Contractor shall furnish and install all "weather protection" material and be responsible for all costs, including heating required to maintain a minimum temperature of 40 degrees Fahrenheit at the working surface. This provision does not supersede any specific requirements for methods of construction, curing of materials or the applicable general conditions set forth in the Contract Documents with added regard to performance obligations of the Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the Authority the required number of copies of his proposed methods for "Weather Protection."
- 8.9.1.2 Weather protection and heating devices shall comply with safety regulations, including provisions for adequate ventilation and fire protection devices. Heating devices that may cause damage to finish surfaces shall not be used.

#### ARTICLE 9-LEGAL REQUIREMENTS AND INSURANCE

#### 9.1 Laws; Permits and Licenses:

9.1.1 The Contractor shall become familiar with and comply with all applicable Laws, and shall give all notices required by laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to the performance of the Work. Unless otherwise expressly stated, references in the Contract Documents to Laws shall mean the current version or edition of the Law. Unless expressly required by Law, the Authority shall be responsible for monitoring the Contractor's compliance with any Laws. If the Contractor believes the Contract Documents deviate from the requirements of any permits, codes or Laws, the Contractor shall give the Authority prompt written notice. If the Contractor performs any Work knowing or having reason to know it is contrary to any permits, codes or Laws, the Contractor shall bear responsibility for all costs and delays. Except as provided in paragraph 10.1.3, the Contractor shall bear responsibility for all costs and delays arising from these obligations.

# 9.2 Patent Fees and Royalties:

- 9..2.1 The Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and bear all costs incident to the use, in the performance of the Work or the incorporation into the Work, of any invention, design, process, product or device covered by patent rights or copyrights. If a particular item is specified in the Contract Documents or is selected by the Contractor for use in the performance of the Work, and its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fees or royalties, it shall remain the responsibility of the Contractor to assume all costs incident to its use.
- 9.3 M.G.L. Chapter 64, §6(f) exempts, from Massachusetts sales tax, materials and supplies consumed, employed or expended in the Work, materials and supplies physically incorporated in the Work, and rental charges for construction vehicles and

#### 9.4 Performance, Payment and Other Bonds:

9.4.1 The Contractor shall furnish Performance and Payment Bonds with good and sufficient surety, each in an amount equal to the Contract Price, as the security required by M.G.L. Chapter 149. All bonds shall be in the forms specified in the Contract Documents, and shall only be issued by a surety currently licensed to do business by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Insurance and appearing on the current U.S. Treasury Circular 570 List of Approved Sureties and remain in effect until the end of the Correction Period. Attorneys-in-Fact who sign Bonds shall attach a certified copy of their Power of Attorney to conduct business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

#### 9.5 The Contractor's Insurance-General:

- 9.5.1 The insurance the Contractor shall purchase and maintain at his expense shall include the coverage required by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts as well as that specified in this Article, and be written for not less than the limits of coverage required in this Article or as required by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Deductible amounts shall be reduced or eliminated upon the Authority's written request. The insurer's costs of providing the insured(s) a defense and appeal, including attorney's fees, may not be included in, and shall be in addition to, the limits of the policy coverages. Certificates of Insurance must be delivered to the Authority before any work is started, and shall be in the form required by Paragraph 7.1.4 and in the coverages and minimum policy limits required in this Article.
- 9.5.2 The Contractor shall not start or continue to perform any Work unless he has in full force and effect all required insurance; nor shall he allow any Subcontractor or Supplier to perform any Work until that Subcontractor or Supplier has in full force and effect all required insurance or the Contractor's insurance has been endorsed to add that Subcontractor or Supplier as an additional insured.
- 9.5.3 Insurance shall only be provided by insurers licensed to transact business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- 9.5.3.1. Deductible amounts shall be reduced or eliminated upon the Authority's written request. The insurer's costs of providing the insureds a defense and appeal, including attorney's fees, may not be included, and shall be in addition to, the limits of the coverage provided.
- 9.5.3.2 All the policies of insurance shall be endorsed to provide that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, adversely changed or renewal refused until the expiration of at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the **Authority** by registered mail. Should any coverage approach expiration during the period in which it is to remain in full force and effect, it shall be renewed prior to its expiration, and a renewal certificate filed with the **Authority** at least fifteen (15) days prior to expiration.
- 9.5.3.3. If any of the Contractor's sureties or insurers is declared bankrupt or placed into receivership, ceases to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, or its license to do business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is terminated, the Contractor shall immediately substitute other bonds/sureties or insurers/policies, which shall conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, and shall file the appropriate bonds or certificates of insurance with the Authority.
- 9.5.3.4. The required insurance coverages shall be placed with insurance companies licensed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Insurance to do business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and having a Best's rating of "A"; shall be taken out before the Contract Time commences and be kept in full force and effect throughout the term of the Contract; shall be primary and non-contributory to any coverages maintained by the Authority; and shall require that the Authority be given thirty (30) days advance notice in the event of any cancellation or any materially adverse change in coverage. All such insurance, with the possible exception of Pollution Liability Insurance, shall be written on an occurrence basis form as opposed to a claims-made basis form. The Newton Housing Authority shall be named as an additional insured under the Commercial General Liability, Umbrella, Automobile Liability, Pollution Liability and Builders Risk policies. Additional insured form ISO CG 20-10 11/85 or equivalent, and Waiver of Subrogation in Favor of Owner form ISO CG2404 is required under the General Liability and Umbrella policies. The Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability policies shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority. All such insurance as is required of the Contractor shall be provided by or on behalf of all Subcontractors to cover their operations. The Contractor shall be held responsible for any modifications, deviations or omissions in compliance with these requirements by the Subcontractors. At the inception of the Contract and throughout the term of the Contract the Authority shall be provided with certificates of insurance evidencing that such insurance policies are in place and provide the coverages required.

#### 9.6 The Contractor's Liability Insurance:

9.6.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain commercial general liability and other insurance appropriate for the Work and which will provide protection from claims itemized below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor's performance and furnishing of the Work and the Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether the Work and other obligations will be performed or furnished by the Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier. The amounts of the commercial general liability insurance policy shall be as follows:

1. Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 each occurrence

2. Property Damage \$2,000,000 general aggregate(per development site)

Products & Completed Operations
 Personal & Advertising Injury
 \$1,000,000 annual aggregate
 \$1,000,000 each occurrence

5. Medical Expenses \$10,000

The commercial general liability policy shall include coverage relating to explosion, collapse, and underground property damage.

The Contractor shall also provide insurance coverage for bodily injury and property damage resulting from liability arising out of pollution related exposures such as asbestos abatement, lead paint abatement, tank removal, removal of contaminated soil, etc. The Authority shall be named as an additional insured and the amount of coverage shall be \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate.

- 1.6.1.1 Claims under worker's compensation, disability benefits, and other applicable similar employee benefits acts; claims for damages recause of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the **Contractor's** employees.
- 1.6.1.1 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than the **Contractor's** imployees; claims for damages insured by personal injury liability coverage sustained (a) by any person as a result of an offense directly in indirectly related to the employment of such person by the **Contractor**, or (b) by any other person for any other reason; claims for lamages because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting from any such injury or lestruction.
- 1.6.1.1 Claims arising out of operation of laws for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or for damage to property.
- 1.6.1.1 Claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person, or property damage arising out of ownership, naintenance, operation, use or loading and unloading of any owned, hired or non-owned motor vehicle used in the Work, including mployee non-ownership use. The combined single limit shall be \$1,000,000 and shall include a CA9948 Pollution Endorsement and shall ame the **Authority** as an additional insured.
- 9.6.2 The Contractor's liability insurance shall include contractual liability coverage sufficient to cover to the Contractor's indemnification obligations under the Contract Documents. The Contractor agrees to pay on behalf of the Authority, and to provide and pay a defense for all claims covered by the Contractor's obligations under the indemnification provisions.
- 9.6.2.1 The Contractor's liability insurance shall be endorsed to include the Authority as an additional insured, and respective directors, officers, agents or employees as additional insureds. The insurance afforded to the Authority and those other parties shall be primary insurance, and neither the coverage nor the amount of insurance provided under the Contractor's policies shall be reduced or prorated by the existence of any other insurance applicable to any loss the Authority or those other parties may have sustained.
- 9.6.2.2. The Contractor's liability insurance shall remain in effect until the end of the Contract Period and at all times after that when the Contractor may be correcting, or removing and replacing defective Work. The Products and Completed operations insurance shall be maintained for two (2) years after final payment. Evidence of insurance shall be furnished to the Authority upon request and no less frequently than yearly.
- 9.6.2.3. These requirements shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor or his insurers. The Authority does not represent that the specified coverages or limits of insurance are sufficient to protect the Contractor's interests or liabilities.
- 9.6.2.3 If the Authority or the Contractor suffers injury or damage to person or property because of error, omission or act of the other, any of the other's employees or agents or others for whose acts the other party is legally liable, claim will be made in writing to the other

party within a reasonable time of the first observation of that injury or damage. This provision is not and shall not be construed as a substitute for or a waiver of the provisions of any applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose.

#### 9.7 The Owner's Liability Insurance:

9.7.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain owners' contractor's protective liability insurance specifically for and appropriate for the Work and which will provide protection for the Authority against those claims which may arise out of or result from operations under the Contract; or the Contractor shall be required to endorse the Contractor's commercial liability insurance to show that the limits of liability apply per work order and per location. If the Contractor furnishes owner's and contractor's protective liability insurance, the parties designated in paragraph 10.6.3 shall be included as additional insureds by endorsement.

#### 9.8 Waiver of Rights:

- 9.8.1 The Authority and the Contractor waive all rights against each other for all losses and damages caused by any of the perils covered by the insurance provided in response to paragraphs 10.6, 10.7 and 10.8 and any other insurance applicable to the Work and also waive all such rights against the Authority, and all other persons named as insureds or additional insureds in such policies for losses and damages so caused. Each Sub-agreement shall contain similar waiver provisions by the Subcontractor or Supplier in favor of the Authority and all other parties named as insureds or additional insureds. None of these waivers shall extend to the rights that any of the insured may have to the proceeds of insurance held by the Authority as trustee or otherwise payable under a policy so issued.
- 9.8.1.1 The Authority and the Contractor intend that any policies of insurance shall protect all of the parties insured and provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils covered. Accordingly, all such policies shall be endorsed to provide that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurer will have no rights of subrogation or other recovery against any of the parties named as insured or additional insured, and if the insurers require separate waiver forms to be signed by the Authority, the Authority will obtain separate waiver forms, and if such forms are required of any Subcontractor or Supplier, the Contractor will obtain them.
- 9.8.1.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall assume the defense of and hold the Authority and its officers, agents and employees harmless from all suits and claims against them, or any arising from the use of any invention, patent or patent right, and by or from any act or omission or neglect for the Contractor, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified aereunder.
- 3.8.1.3 For any and all claims against the Authority or any of its officers, agents, or employees by an employee of the Contractor, and Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation of the Contractor shall not be limited in any way by any limitation of the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under Worker's Compensation Acts, disability benefit acts or other employee penefit acts.
  - 9.8.1.4 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Authority from and against all claims for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or injury to or destruction of property, including loss of use, which claims arise out of, relate to, or are in any way connected with: the Work; the failure of the Contractor or any Subcontractor to provide a safe work place; or noncompliance with Law by the Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier. With respect to all claims against the Authority or employee of the Contractor, the indemnification obligation under this paragraph shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier under worker's compensation, disability benefit or other employee benefit acts.

# 9.8.1.5 Non-Conforming Bonds or Insurance:

9.8.1.6 If any of the Contractor's surety(ies) or insurer(s) is declared bankrupt, placed into receivership or otherwise becomes insolvent, or ceases to meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, or its license to do business in the Commonwealth is terminated, the Contractor shall at once substitute another bond and surety, or insurer and policy, which shall conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

#### 9.8.1.7 Medical and Sanitary Requirements:

9.8.1.8 The Contractor shall promptly and fully comply with all sanitary and medical requirements as may from time to time be promulgated so that the health of all workers, local communities and persons residing on or near the Work may be preserved and safeguarded. The Contractor shall dismiss, and shall not rehire, any person who violates sanitary and medical requirements.

- 9.8.1.9 The Contractor shall rigorously prohibit the committing of nuisances upon the lands of the Authority or upon adjacent property. Structures for the sanitary necessities of all persons employed on the Work shall be provided and maintained by the Contractor.
- 9.8.1.10 As to health and sanitation, the **Contractor** shall promptly and fully comply with the Laws and Regulations of the State Department of Public Health, and those of all other local Authorities. The **Contractor** shall provide all articles necessary for first aid, and he shall make proper and satisfactory provisions for the transportation of sick and injured employees to, and their care at, established hospitals in the vicinity of the Work.

# 9.8.1.10.1 Required Provisions, Chapter 30, §39R:

- 9.8.1.10.2 The Contractor shall make, and keep for at least six (6) years after final payment, books, records, and accounts which in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the Contractor, and until the expiration of six (6) years after final payment, the Office of the Commonwealth's Inspector General and the Deputy Commissioner of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance shall have the right to examine any books, documents, papers or records of the Contractor or of any Subcontractor that directly pertain to, and involve transactions relating to, the Contractor or that Subcontractor. The Contractor shall describe any change in the method of maintaining records or recording transactions that materially affect any statements filed with the Authority, and the date of the change and reasons for the change, and shall accompany the description with a letter from the Contractor's Independent Certified Public Accountant approving or otherwise commenting on the changes. The Contractor certifies that prior to executing the Contract, the Contractor has filed a statement of management of Internal Accounting Controls and an audited financial statement for the most recent completed fiscal year, and he will continue to file such statements annually.
- 9.8.1.10.3 The Contractor shall file with the Authority a statement of management as to whether his and his subsidiaries system of Internal Accounting Controls reasonably assures that: (1) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general and specific authorization; (2) transactions are recorded as necessary (i) to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and (ii) to maintain accountability for assets; (3) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or specific authorization; and (4) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any difference.
- 9.8.1.10.4 The Contractor shall also file with the Authority a statement prepared and signed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant, stating that s/he has examined the statement of management of internal accounting controls and expressing an opinion as to whether: (1) the representations of management in response to this paragraph 10.15 are consistent with the result of management's evaluation of the system of internal accounting controls; and (2) such representations of management are, in addition, reasonable with respect to transactions and assets in amounts which would be material when measured in relation to the applicant's financial statements.
- 9.8.1.10.5 Failure by the **Contractor** to satisfy any of the requirement of M.G.L. Chapter 30, §39R, or to comply with any such rules, regulations and guidelines as may be promulgated from time to time, may be grounds for debarment pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 149, §44C.
- 9.8.1.10.5.1 Records and statements required to be made, kept or filed under these provisions shall not be public records as defined in M.G.L. Chapter 4, §7, and shall not be open to public inspection; provided, however, that such records and statements shall be made available as stated in paragraph 10.14.1.

#### 9.9 No Conflict with Laws or Regulations:

9.9.1 The duties, obligations, criteria or procedures imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies made available are in addition to, and not in any way a limitation of, any rights and remedies which are otherwise made available or imposed by Laws or Regulations, except that in the event a specific part or detailed requirement of a provision, criterion or procedure imposed or available by Laws or Regulations conflict, the specific part or detailed requirement of such provision, criterion or procedure imposed or available by Laws or Regulations in conflict shall govern. All other specific parts or detailed requirements in the provisions, criteria or procedures of the applicable Laws or Regulations and these General Conditions not in conflict shall remain in full force and effect and be read with the controlling specific part or detailed requirement. The provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right and remedy to which they apply.

- 9.9.3 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, any notice or communication shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to have been given as of the time of actual receipt.
- 9.9.4. Any notice or other communication to the Contractor shall be sufficiently given if delivered to the intended individual, officer or partner of the Contractor in person or at the office of the Contractor designated in the Contract.
- 9.9.5 All notices or other communication to the Authority shall, unless otherwise specified in writing to the Contractor, be sufficiently given if delivered to the intended individual in person or at the office designated in the Contract.

#### ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK

#### 10.1 Changes in the Work:

- 10.1.1. Without invalidating the Agreement and without notice to any surety, the Authority may, at any time, by Change Order or Change Authorization, order changes in the Work (a) consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions within the scope of the Work in the requirements of the Specifications and Drawings, the means, methods, techniques or sequences applicable to the Work, the Authority furnished lands, equipment, materials, or services, or (b) directing acceleration of the Work, and unilaterally make or provide the basis for making an adjustment in the work order reflecting the Contract Price or Contract Time. Upon receipt of any such unilateral order, the Contractor shall promptly proceed or continue with the Work involved as directed. Any such unilateral adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time made by Change Order, or authorized by Change Authorization, shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless the Contractor delivers to the Authority written Notice of Claim, in strict compliance with all of the requirements of Article 15, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the unilateral order.
- 10.1.2. The Authority reserves the right to negotiate with the Contractor changes under in the Work by delivering to the Contractor an unsigned Change Authorization describing the change under consideration and requesting that the Contractor submit a proposal for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time.
- 10.1.3 Any other written or oral order from the **Authority**, including statement or conduct, instruction, interpretation, determination, or approval that causes a change shall be treated as a change in the Work; but only if the **Contractor** or the **Authority** gives prompt written notice to the other by means of an unsigned Change Authorization detailing the circumstances, and the scope and character of the Work involved.
- 10.1.4 If after evaluation of an unsigned Change Authorization received under paragraph 11.1.3, the Authority concludes that changes in the Work have been ordered, the Authority shall by Change Order or Change Authorization signed by the Authority correspondingly amend the work order. If the Authority, on the other hand, concludes that a change has not been ordered, the Authority's determination shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless the Contractor delivers to the Authority written Notice of Claim within thirty (30) days from receipt of that decision.
- 10.1.5. Except as provided in this paragraph, no written or oral order from the Authority, shall be treated as a change in the Work or entitle the Contractor to an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time under this paragraph.
- 10.1.6 Adjustments in Contract Price or Contract Time made necessary by changes in the Work ordered or negotiated under this paragraph shall be based on changes, as specified in Articles 7 and 12, in the Contractor's cost or the time required to perform any part of the Work, except that no increase in Contract Price or Contract Time shall be due under this paragraph if excluded by another provision of the Contract Documents.
- 10.1.7 No proposal nor claim by the **Contractor** on account of changes under paragraph 11.1.3 shall be allowed for any costs or delay incurred more than twenty (20) days before the **Contractor** gives written notice as required.

#### 10.2 Changes Due to Differing Site Conditions:

10.2.1. If the Contractor or the Authority discovers that the actual subsurface or latent physical conditions encountered at the Site differ materially from those shown or indicated on the Contract Documents, or from those ordinarily encountered and recognized as inherent in the Work of the character and scope provided, or that any reference points need correction to enable the Contractor to proceed with the Work, either the Contractor or the Authority shall notify the other party in writing. A notice from the Contractor shall be delivered promptly and before the conditions are disturbed. A notice from the Authority shall be delivered as soon as possible after the conditions are discovered.

- 10.2.2. Upon receipt or delivery of any such notice, the Authority shall investigate the conditions. If the Authority concludes that conditions on which the Contractor is entitled to rely do materially differ, the Authority shall order the necessary changes and correspondingly adjust Contract Time or Contract Price, as provided herein unless excluded by another provision of the Contract Documents.
- 10.2.2.1 If the Authority decides that the Contract Documents do not need amending or decides to make or not to make a change in work order Contract Price or Contract Time, or that a change in reference points is not required, any such decision shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless he delivers written Notice of Claim that complies within thirty (30) days of receipt of that decision.
  10.2.2.2. Except in the case of newly-discovered underground utilities all costs involved and time required to perform the specified Contractor's responsibilities for underground utilities shall be considered as having been included in the Contract Price and in the Contractor's schedule for performing the Work within the Contract Time.
- 10.2.2.3 If Underground Utilities cause or will cause delays which postpone, extend or in any other manner alter the schedule or the completion of all or part of the Work, the Contractor shall assume all of the Contractor's related delay, extension or acceleration costs, however caused; except that, if the Authority believes that the delays require a change in Contract Time, the Authority shall authorize the necessary change in Contract Time only.
- 10.3. At least twenty (20) days, plus the time required by the Contractor to deliver a proposal shall be allowed to the Authority to resolve any report of differing site conditions.
- 10.3.1. No proposal nor claim by the Contractor due to differing site conditions shall be allowed unless the Contractor has given written notice as required by this Article or Article 15.

# 10.4 Changes Due to Overruns or Underruns in Quantities:

- 10.4.1. For all Unit Price Work the Contract Price includes an amount equal to the sum of the unit prices Bid for each item of Unit Price Work times its estimated quantity. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount sufficient to cover all costs, including supplemental and administrative costs, and profit. Prior to final payment, a Change Order will be issued as recommended by the Authority to reflect actual quantities for Unit Price Work, and to correspond accordingly to the adjustment to the Contract Price.
- 10.4.2 The Contractor shall promptly, before proceeding with any affected Work, notify the Authority in writing whenever the actual quantity for a significant item of Unit Price Work, differs materially from its estimated quantity, and request a re-evaluation of that item's unit price or the Contract Time, or inform the Authority that a re-evaluation is not warranted. Promptly after receipt of the notice, the Authority will review conditions about that item of Work and evaluate their effect on the unit prices and the Contract Time(s). If the Authority consents to quantities so varying from those estimated, or does not make written objection, the Contractor shall proceed with the affected Unit Price Work as directed by the Authority.
  - 10.4.3. If the Authority determines that the additional or reduced quantities for such an item of Unit Price Work justify an adjustment in the unit price, or in Contract Time, or both, the Authority shall authorize a revised unit price applicable to actual quantities for that item above one hundred twenty percent (120%) or below eighty percent (80%) of the estimated quantity, or a change in Contract Time, or both; except that, no adjustment shall be provided unless the variation between actual and estimated quantities for all Unit Price Work results in an increase or decrease in the Contract Price by more than ten percent (10%). If the Authority decides that the unit prices are valid even for the additional or reduced quantities, or that no adjustment in the Contract Time is warranted, solely due to the variation in quantities, or both, that decision shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless he delivers to the Authority a written Notice of Claim within thirty (30) days from receipt of that decision pursuant to the requirement as stated within this Contract..
- 10.4.4. In evaluating unit prices, or changes in Contract Time due to quantity variations, the Contractor and the Authority shall take into account increases or decreases in the Contractor's costs to perform the Work involved solely as result of the variation in quantities, as opposed to the Contractor's fault or negligence, errors in the Contractor's Bid, or other similar factors.

#### 10.5 Change Orders; Change Authorizations:

- 10.5.1. A Change Order or Change Authorization executed by the Authority and also by the Contractor without a Contractor's notice of reservation of rights to claim additional adjustments constitutes an all inclusive settlement for all changes and for all direct, supplemental, indirect, consequential and cumulative costs and delays, including the Contractor's overhead and profit, and the Contractor's signature represents a waiver of any and all rights to file a claim on account of that instrument, the Work or the Work involved in that instrument and all prior Change Orders.
- 10.5.2. A Change Order or Change Authorization, signed by the Authority, and also by the Contractor, with a notice of reservation of

rights to claim additional compensation, shall become final and binding on the Contractor, without consideration of his reservation of rights, unless the Contractor delivers to the Authority a clearly marked written Notice of Claim within thirty (30) days after the date when a Notice of Claim on account of the Change Order or Change Authorization executed by the Authority becomes due in strict compliance with the requirements of this Contract, and in any event no later than thirty (30) days after the date the Contractor signs the Change Order containing a notice of reservation of rights to claim additional compensation.

- 10.5.3. The Authority and the Contractor shall sign Change Orders with reasonable promptness covering changes in the Work including any necessary adjustments in Contract Price or Contract Time ordered or agreed to by the parties, changes in Contract Price or Contract Time which are agreed to in total or in part or previously executed Change Authorizations. Amounts for Work involved in a Change Order may be included in Application for Payment only after it has been completely executed by the Authority.
- 10.5.4. When signed by the Authority, the Authority may use Change Order Authorizations to order changes in the Work, provide the basis for a subsequent adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time, order changes not warranting an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time, or authorize minor deviations. Amounts for Work involved in a Change Authorization are not allowable for payment until that Change Authorization has been incorporated into a Change Order that has been approved and signed by the Authority.
- 10.5.5, The Authority reserves the right to decrease the adjustments made in any Change Order if, upon an audit of the Contractor's records including but not limited to records pertaining to all cost and pricing data used by the Contractor in estimating the Contractor's Bid for the work and in monitoring costs incurred, that audit reveals that the Contractor provided false or inaccurate cost and pricing data in negotiating that Change Order.

#### 10.6 Deviations:

10.6.1. In accordance with M.G.L. Chapter 30, §39I, every Contractor having a contract for the construction, alteration, maintenance, repair or demolition of, or addition to, any public building or public works for the Commonwealth, or of any political subdivision thereof, shall perform all the work required by such contract in conformity with the Plans and Specifications contained therein. No willful and substantial deviation from said Plans and Specifications shall be made unless authorized in writing by the Authority in charge of the work who is duly authorized by the Authority to approve such deviations. In order to avoid delays in the execution of the work, such deviation from the Plans and Specifications may be authorized by a written order of the Authority so authorized to approve such deviation. Within 30 days thereafter, such written order shall be confirmed by a certificate of the Authority stating: (1) if such deviation involves any substitution or elimination of materials, fixtures or equipment, the reasons why such materials, fixtures or equipment were included in the first instance and the reasons for substitution or elimination and, if the deviation is of any other nature, the reason for such deviation giving justification therefor; (2) that the specified deviation does not materially damage the Work order as a whole; (3) that either the work substituted for the work specified is of the same cost and quality, or that an equitable adjustment has been agreed upon between the Authority and the Contractor, and the amount in dollars of said adjustment; and (4) that the deviation in the best interest of the Authority. Such certificate shall be signed under the penalties of perjury and shall be a permanent part of the file record of the Work. Whoever violates any provision of this paragraph willfully and with intent to defraud shall be punished by a fine of not more than \$5,000 or by imprisonment for not more than 6 months, or both.

# 10.7. Delay and Waiver Provisions:

- 10.7.1. At least twenty (20) days plus the time required by the **Contractor** to deliver a proposal shall be allowed to the **Authority** to negotiate and resolve any changes in the Work, any changes in unit prices or any report of differing site conditions.
- 10.7.2. If a change in the Work, a case of differing site conditions or a case of variation in quantities causes or will cause delay, extension or acceleration that postpones, extends or in any other manner alters the schedule or completion of all or part of the Work, the Authority shall make or negotiate with the Contractor, an adjustment in work order Contract Price or work order Contract Time, in accordance with the provisions of this Contract Document, for any increase in the Contractor's cost or the time required to perform the Work. The Contractor assumes responsibility for any related delay, extension or acceleration caused by or resulting to the Contractor.
- 10.7.3. No proposal nor claim by the **Contractor** on account of changes in the Work, differing site conditions or variation in quantities shall be allowed if made after final payment.

#### ARTICLE 11 - CHANGES IN CONTRACT PRICE OR CONTRACT TIME

#### 11.1 Changes in Contract Price or Contract Time:

11.1.1. The Contract Price or Contract Time shall be changed only by Change Order. The basis for a subsequent change in work order Contract Price or Contract Time may also be authorized by a Change Authorization signed by the **Authority**.

# 11.2 Proposals or Claims Substantiating Adjustments:

- 11.2.1. All Contractor proposals must at a minimum contain the reasons for the proposed change; the effect of the proposed change on the work work order Schedule; the effect on the work order Contract Time and the proposed price for the change, all in sufficient detail to be evaluated by the Authority. All Contractor proposals shall be due within twenty (20) days after receipt of the Authority's written notice requesting a proposal or delivery to the Authority of the Contractor's written notice of the occurrence of an event which the Contractor believes justifies a change in Contract Price or Contract Time. Any delay in the submittal of a Contractor's proposal will not justify or constitute basis for an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time. If no Contractor proposal has been received by the Authority within the twenty (20) day period allowed by this Article, or if the Contractor's proposal does not contain the information required, then the Authority, in his sole discretion, will use any of the methods described in Article 12.3 to determine the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Price.
- 11.2.2. Contractor proposals shall cover all aspects of the Work involved, and shall be fully documented and itemized as to all costs, as specified in this Article, quantities, and Fee which shall segregate percentages for profit and administrative costs. Proposals shall certify in writing that the amounts would be or were necessarily incurred despite reasonable mitigation efforts. Amounts for Subcontractors or Suppliers shall be equally supported, and must be reviewed by the Contractor before being submitted to the **Authority**.
- 11.2.3. Where the change in Contract Price arises from changes in the time required to perform any Work, or where a change in Contract Time is sought, the Contractor's itemized estimates shall in addition detail all productivity and production data, and include a detailed analysis of the Progress Schedule.

#### 11.3. Methods for Determining Adjustments in Contract Price:

- 11.3.1. The methods to be used to determine an adjustment in Contract Price necessitated by changes ordered or under negotiation, delay ordered, caused or under negotiation or Work covered by any proposal or claim, all pursuant to these General Conditions are referred to collectively as "the Work involved", and are limited to the following:
- 11.3.2. Where the Work involved is covered by lump sum prices or unit prices in the Contract Documents, on the basis of those lump sum prices or unit prices, respectively;
- 11.3.2.1. Where the Work involved is not covered by lump sum prices or unit prices, by mutual acceptance of a lump sum price negotiated on the basis of the Contractor's itemized good faith estimate of the anticipated cost of the Work involved as specified in this Article
- 11.3.3. Where the Work involved is not covered by either of the first two methods, and Authority and the Contractor cannot agree, on the basis of the Authority's estimate of the cost of the Work involved plus a fee for the Work involved of eighty-five percent (85%) of the maximum fee allowed by this Contract.

Where the Authority and the Contractor cannot agree, and the Authority directs the Contractor to proceed with the Work involved with payments to be made per actual costs, on the basis of an itemized breakdown of the actual cost of the Work involved as specified in this Article plus a fee for the Work involved of seventy percent (70%) of the maximum fee allowed by this Contract. Where the Authority and the Contractor agree and the Authority directs the Contractor to proceed with the Work involved with payment to be made per actual costs on a time and materials basis, on the basis of an itemized breakdown of the actual cost of the Work involved as specified in this Article, plus a fee for the Work involved of one hundred percent (100%) of the maximum fee allowed by Contract.

- 11.3.3.1.. Where the Work involved is not covered by any of the preceding methods, and if payment is to be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction and appropriate venue, it is agreed that the actual cost and fee methods allowed within the provisions of these Contract Documents shall be the only appropriate method for determining the cost and the fee of the Work involved.
- 11.3.3.2 In computing the cost of the Work involved, costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the

Work order, and include only the appropriate items for labor, material or equipment, construction equipment, and supplemental costs specified in this Article.

#### 11.4 Labor, Subcontract and Material/Equipment Costs:

- 11.4.1. The cost of the Work involved includes payroll costs for craft labor including foremen in the direct employ of the Contractor assigned to the site and engaged in furnishing and incorporating materials or equipment in the Work involved. Payroll costs shall include wages at the minimum wage rates for Contractor's personnel established for this Contract pursuant to M.G.L. Chapter 149, §§ 26-27H plus labor burdens, e.g. social security, unemployment, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, vacation and holiday pay, etc.
- 11.4.2. The cost of the Work involved includes payments by the Contractor to Suppliers for material and equipment used in the Work involved, including transportation, storage, and necessary Supplier's field services. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and all returns from sale of surplus items shall accrue to the Authority, and the Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained. If required by the Authority, the Contractor shall obtain bids for designated items of materials or equipment and nominate at least two (2) suppliers for selection by the Authority. When determining actual material and equipment costs, invoices segregating items associated with the Work involved shall be the record upon which to base actual costs.
- 11.4.2.1. The cost of the Work involved includes payments made by the Contractor to Subcontractors for the Work involved performed by the Subcontractors. When determining Subcontractors' cost of the Work involved, the methods to be used shall be those used to determine the Contractor's costs, except that the term "Subcontractor" shall replace the term "the Contractor" if the context will permit. If required by the Authority, the Contractor shall obtain detailed competitive sub-bids and nominate at least two (2) Subcontractors for the performance of any Work involved, subject to selection by the Authority.

#### 11.5. Owned Equipment:

11.5.1 For equipment owned by the Contractor, or by his affiliates, the Contractor shall be entitled to costs based on billings established by his normal accounting practices, but in no event shall those costs exceed the rates listed in the Custom Cost Evaluator published by Equipment Watch, Inc. for the region covering the Boston metropolitan area. The owned equipment hourly rate plus the estimated operation cost per hour from the Custom Cost Evaluator will be the basis for determining owned equipment costs. For shift Work, the equipment rate shall not exceed the shift Work hourly costs in the Custom Cost Evaluator.

# 11.6. Supplemental Costs:

- 11.6.1. The cost of the Work involved includes a proportion of necessary supplemental costs, to the extent those supplemental costs increase or decrease on account of (a) labor, material/equipment, Subcontract or equipment costs of the Work involved, or (b) an extension in Contract Time, including:
- 11.6.2. Payroll costs, and subsistence expenses, for the Contractor's payroll costs for other personnel in the employ of the Contractor engaged in Site activities and listed in the schedule of indirect personnel classifications agreed to by the Authority, if those costs arise solely from an extension in work Time.
- 11.6.2.1. Costs not exceeding two percent (2%) of the labor costs under paragraph 12.4.1 excluding burdens of field supplies consumed in the performance of the Work involved, and purchase costs not exceeding two percent (2%) of the labor costs under paragraph 12.4.1, less burdens; tools individually valued at less than \$500.00 and not owned by the workers which are used and consumed in the performance of the Work involved, and purchase cost less market value if used but not consumed.
- 11.6.2.2. Taxes related to the Work involved, and for which the Contractor is liable, and fees for permits and licenses, if they related solely to the Work involved.
- 11.7. Physical losses, damages and expenses to the Work involved not compensated by property insurance or otherwise, sustained by the Contractor in the performance and furnishing of the Work, except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance, but only if the losses, damages and expenses result from causes beyond the control and not due to the fault or negligence of the Contractor.
- 11.7.1. The actual documented cost of premiums for increases in bonds and insurance required solely because of the Work involved will be paid based on invoices from the surety.

#### 11.8. Limitation on Equipment and Supplemental Costs:

11.8.1. The Contractor shall not be allowed to recover construction equipment or supplemental costs not attributable to the performance of the Work involved. Payroll costs for the full-time resident superintendent are an example of costs that are not recoverable.

#### 11.9. Costs Covered by the Fee for the Work Involved:

- 11.9.1. The Cost of the Work involved shall not include any of the following costs that are considered administrative costs or contingencies covered by the Fee for the Work involved:
- .10.0. Payroll costs and other compensation of (a) the Contractor's executives, general and administrative managers, work managers, timators, claim consultants, attorneys, accountants, labor relation coordinators, contract and subcontract administrators, purchasers, peditors, and other administrative staff, whether employed at the site or in his principal or branch offices.
- .11. The market value of small tools used but not consumed.
- .11.1. Any part of the Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on capital for the Work involved, lost interest, on unpaid tainage, and charges for delinquent payments.
- .11.2. Costs associated with the preparation of Change Orders or Change Authorizations whether or not ultimately authorized by the uthority, or the preparation or filing of claims.
- .11.3. Costs of consultants or attorneys, in the direct employ of the Contractor or otherwise, utilized for services related to the Work.
- .11.4. Other administrative expense(s), lost profits, lost interest on unpaid retainage, and the costs of any item not specifically and pressly included in this Article 12.
- .12.0. Expenses of the Contractor's principal and branch offices, including, but not limited to storage and yard facilities.

#### 11.13. Fee for the Work Involved:

- 11.13.1. Any adjustment in Contract Price for Work involved shall also include a Fee for costs under paragraph 12.10 and negotiated profit, shall not exceed the following amounts:
- .13.1.1. For Work involved performed by the Contractor, the Contractor's Fee shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the Cost of e Work involved, less supplemental costs. For Work involved performed by a Subcontractor, the Subcontractor shall receive a Fee of 1 percent (10%) of the Cost of the Work involved, less supplemental costs.
- .13.1.2. In addition to the Fee(s) specified in paragraph 12.11.1.1, for Work involved that is performed by Subcontractors, the ontractor shall receive a mark-up Fee of five percent (5%) of the performing Subcontractors' costs. No Fee shall be payable to the ontractor on the basis of the performing Subcontractors' Fee or supplemental costs.
- .13.1.3. The credit to be allowed to the Authority for any adjustment in Contract Price yielding a net decrease in cost, i.e. the cost of the ork involved is negative, shall be the amount of the net decrease together with a Fee credit equal to one-third of the Fee which would allowed under paragraphs 12.11.1.1 and 12.11.1.2.
- .13.1.4. When more than one individual adjustment in Contract Price, each resulting in a net increase or decrease in the Cost of the ork involved, is covered in one specific Change Order or Change Authorization or proposal or claim, the combined Fee shall be computed the sum of the individual Fees.

#### 11.14. Payment for Extension in Contract Time:

- 11.14.1. Subject to the applicable requirements of the Contract Documents, an extension in work Contract Time may be combined with an increase in Contract Price to cover costs solely associated with the time extension in the case of changes in the Work, differing site conditions, or significant variation in quantities. No such adjustment in Contract Price shall be made to the extent that performance would have been extended by any other cause, including fault or negligence of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or for which an adjustment is excluded by any other provision of the Contract Documents.
- 11.14.1.1. The cost of the Work involved arising from an extension in Contract Time, shall exclude amounts not solely related to the extension in work order Contract Time, such as: operating costs of construction equipment assigned to the Work on a continuing basis but primarily used in the furnishing and incorporating of materials and equipment into the Work; owned, or rental, costs plus operating costs of construction equipment used solely in the furnishing and incorporating of materials or equipment into the Work such as crane costs for specific lifts and concrete pump truck costs; supplemental costs unaffected by the increase in Contract Time, or, otherwise

allocable to Work other than the Work involved e.g. small tools, site facilities fully paid for in previous payments, etc.

#### 11.15. Criteria for Determining Adjustments in Contract Time:

- 11.15.1. The criteria to be used to determine an adjustment in Contract Time necessitated by changes ordered or under negotiation as provided in these General Conditions, or Work covered by a proposal or a claim, are limited to the following:
  - 11.15.2. An extension in Contract Time, if any granted, shall be the Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for any delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance and associated costs, however caused, resulting from such delay.
  - 11.16. Negotiating Changes in Contract Price or Contract Time:
- 11.16.1. In addition to the notice requirements within this Contract, the Contractor shall give written notice to the Authority of any written or oral order of the Authority which justifies a change in Contract Price or Contract Time by delivering a proposed Change Authorization itemizing in sufficient detail the related circumstances and the justification for the adjustments proposed. If the Authority, concludes that a change in Contract Price or Contract Time is warranted, the Authority shall make or negotiate with the Contractor the appropriate adjustments. If the Authority finds otherwise, the Authority's decision shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless the Contractor delivers to the Authority a clearly marked written Notice of Claim within thirty (30) days from receipt of that decision in strict compliance with the requirements of this Contract Document.
- 11.16.2. The Authority may notify the Contractor of proposed changes in Contract Price or Contract Time by delivering to the Contractor an unsigned Change Authorization requesting that the Contractor signoff on the proposed changes in work order Contract Price or Contract Time or submit an alternate proposal.
- 11.16.2.1.. If the Authority makes the decision to order any changes in Contract Price or Contract Time, whether unilaterally or in negotiations with the Contractor, those changes in Contract Price or Contract Time shall be binding on the Contractor, unless the Contractor delivers to the Authority clearly marked written Notice of Claim within thirty (30) days from receipt of that decision in strict compliance with the provisions stated within this Contract Document.
- 11.16.2.1.1. If the Contractor is directed or ordered to stop the Work, or any part of the Work by any Authority or public agency, other than the Authority the Contractor is required to so inform the Authority within two (2) hours of such action.

#### **ARTICLE 12 - GUARANTEES**

#### 12.1. General Guarantees:

- 12.1.1. In consideration of the execution of this Contract by the Authority and the Contract Price herein stipulated to be paid and received for the performance of the work, the Contractor binds and obligates himself and agrees to bring all portions of the Work under this Contract to completion in accordance with the Contract Documents and within the Contract Time, free of all defects of material and workmanship, and guarantees that the Work shall remain free of all defects of material and workmanship for a period of one year from the date of work order completion. The Contractor guarantees, on written notice from the Authority, to immediately repair and make good, or cause to be repaired and made good, at the Contractor's expense, all defects of material or workmanship in the Work and to pay for or cause to be paid for any damage to other work resulting therefrom, or from the repair thereof which may develop during the period of one year from the date of each work order completion.
- 12.1.2. Warranties for all specified or substitute items of materials and equipment shall include a certification endorsed by the Contractor warranting their merchantability, and that they are functionally suitable and fit for their intended purpose.
- 12.1.3. The warranties, guarantees and obligations for correction of Work specified in this Article are in addition to and not in limitation of any other specific remedies provided in the Contract Documents or by Laws or Regulations.

#### 12.2. Tests and Inspections:

- 12.2.1. The Authority or its representatives, testing agencies and Public Authorities or Agencies with jurisdiction shall be permitted access to the Work for their observation, inspection and testing. The Contractor shall provide proper and safe conditions for such access. The Contractor shall give the Authority timely notice of readiness of, and access to, the Work for all required inspections, tests, or approvals. Test, inspections or approvals shall not in any way relieve the Contractor from his obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or to warrant and guarantee the Work as provided in the Contract Documents.
- 12.2.2.. If a Public Authority or Agency enforces testing, inspection or approval differing from those specified, or if not specified, from those enacted on or before the date of Bid opening, necessitating an amendment to the Contract Documents, the Authority shall authorize the required changes in the Work, together with any adjustment in Contract Price necessitated by the changes. If the Changed testing, inspection or approval causes or will cause delays which postpone, extend or in any manner alter the schedule or the completion of all or part of the Work, the Contractor shall absorb all of the Contractor's related delay, extension or acceleration costs, however caused; except that if the Authority and the Contractor believe that the delays require a change in Contract Time, the Authority shall authorize the necessary change in work order Contract Time only.
- 12.2.3. If any testing, inspection or approval reveals failure of any part of the Work, the Contractor shall not be allowed to recover any associated costs, and he shall reimburse the Authority for all of direct, indirect and consequential costs made necessary by that failure including those of repeated procedures.
- 12.2.4. Tests, inspections or approvals shall not in any way relieve the Contractor from the Contractor's obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and to warrant and guarantee the Work as provided in the Contract Documents

#### 12.3. Special Guarantees:

- 12.3.1. It is expressly agreed and understood that the general guarantee set forth under this Article is in addition to and not in substitution of such guarantees as may be required under any other Section of the Contract Documents.
- 12.3.2. All guarantees required in the Contract Documents, including those which originate with any Subcontractor, Supplier or other person, shall be in the form set forth by the Authority and must be delivered to the Authority before final payment to the Contractor will be made.
- 12.3.3. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall be jointly and severally liable to the Authority under the terms of all guarantees originating with any Subcontractor.

- 12.3.4. The failure to deliver a required guarantee shall be held to constitute a failure of the **Contractor** or Subcontractor to fully complete his work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 12.3.5. The period of all special guarantees, unless otherwise specified, shall be one year from the date of each work order Completion.

#### 12.4. Correction or Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work:

- 12.4.1. If required by the Authority, the Contractor shall promptly, as directed, either correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by the Authority or if any testing, inspection or approval of all or part the Work reveals failure of that part of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, remove it from the site and replace it at the Contractor's expense. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, the Authority prefers to accept it, the Authority may do so, in which case the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Time or Contract Price, and he shall reimburse the Authority for all direct, indirect and consequential costs of the Authority incurred because of the correction or removal of or due to the Authority's evaluation and determination to accept defective Work.
- 12.4.2. If the Authority's acceptance of defective Work occurs prior to the Authority's recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents; and the Authority shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the acceptance occurs after that recommendation, an appropriate amount shall be deducted from the final payment, or if the final payment has been made, an appropriate amount shall be paid by the Contractor to the Authority.

#### 12.5. The Authority May Correct Defective Work:

12.5.1 If the Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice of the Authority to proceed to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by the Authority, or if the Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, the Authority may, after seven (7) days' written notice to the Contractor, correct and remedy any such deficiency. To the extent necessary to complete corrective action, the Authority shall have full power and authority to exclude the Contractor from all or part of the site, and to exercise all of the rights and remedies in paragraph 14.1 The Contractor shall allow the Authority, the Authority's representatives, agents and employees whatever access to the site that may be necessary to enable the Authority to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph. The Contractor shall not be allowed an extension in Contract Time or increase in Contract Price because of any delay in performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by the Authority of these rights and remedies, and he shall reimburse the Authority for all direct, indirect and consequential costs of the Authority in exercising such rights and remedies, such costs to include, but not be limited to, all costs of repair and replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of defective Work, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary changes.

#### 12.6. Uncovering Work:

- 12.6.1. If Work that is to be observed by the **Authority** or inspected, tested or approved is covered without written concurrence or contrary to the written request of the **Authority**, it shall when requested by the **Authority**, be uncovered, exposed or otherwise made available for observation, testing, inspection or approval, as the **Authority** may require and if necessary, replaced at the **Contractor's** expense.
- 12.6.2. The Contractor, at the Authority's request, shall uncover, expose or otherwise make available for observation, inspection or testing as the Authority may require, any covered Work if the Authority considers it advisable that such covered Work be observed by the Authority or inspected or tested by others.
- 12.6.3. The Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time, and he shall reimburse the Authority for all direct, indirect and consequential costs incurred by the Authority due to any uncovering or exposure, including but not limited to, the costs of that uncovering or exposure, observation, inspection, testing and satisfactory reconstruction, whenever Work covered without the written concurrence or contrary to the written request of the Authority under paragraph 13.6.1 is uncovered, or whenever covered Work uncovered at the Authority's request under paragraph 13.6.2 is found to be defective. If Work is uncovered or exposed under paragraph 13.6.2 and not found to be defective, the Contractor shall be entitled to an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time, either or both, directly attributable to such uncovering.

#### 12.7. Correction Period:

- 12.7.1. The Correction Period shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work order, or a later date if so specified in the work order Documents.
- 12.7.2. If within the designated Correction Period, the Work, or any part of the Work is discovered to be defective, the Contractor shall promptly, without an adjustment in Contract Price and in accordance with the Authority's written instructions, either correct that defective Work, or if it has been rejected by the Authority, remove it from the site and replace it with non-defective Work. If circumstances warrant it, including, but not limited to, in an emergency, the Authority may have the defective Work corrected or the rejected Work removed and replaced. In that event, the Contractor shall not be allowed to recover any associated costs, and he shall reimburse the Authority for all of the Authority's reasonable direct, indirect and consequential costs so incurred. If that event takes place after final payment and the Contractor fails to pay such costs to the Authority within thirty (30) days after presentation for payment, the Authority will give written notice to the Contractor of a claim as detailed within this Contract Document.
- 12.7.3. The specified warranties and guarantees and the Contractor's obligations for correction of Work specified in this Article are in addition to and not in limitation of any other specific remedies provided in the Contract Documents or by Law. Nothing contained in this paragraph or this Article shall be construed as establishing a period of limitation for or limiting the obligations of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.

#### 12.8 Extended Warranties and Guarantees:

- 12.8.1. Following written notice to the Contractor, the Authority may in its sole discretion advance or defer the date for commencement of the Correction Period, in which case the Contractor shall maintain the warranties and guarantees until the revised date for commencement of the Correction Period. If such advancement or deferral in the date for commencement of the Correction Period causes an increase or decrease in the cost of the warranties and guarantees provided by the Contractor, the Authority shall make an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Time as provided within this Contract Document.
- 12.8.2. Any defective Work that is either corrected or rejected and replaced will be warranted and guaranteed in accordance with the provisions of this Article 13 for a period of one (1) year from the date of such correction or removal and replacement. If within such extended Correction Period, that Work is once again found to be defective, the Authority may exercise any of the Authority's rights and remedies under the provisions found within this Contract Document.

#### 12.9 Special Maintenance Requirements:

- 12.9.1 In special circumstances where the Work, or a designated part, progresses to Substantial Completion or Partial Completion but is not placed in continuous service until the commencement of the Correction Period, the Contractor shall maintain the Work, or designated part, in good order an in proper working condition and take all other actions as are necessary for its protection during the period between the applicable Substantial or Partial Completion date and the date of commencement of the Correction Period, and for such maintenance the Contractor shall receive no adjustment in Contract Price.
- 12.9.2. If the Work suffers loss or damage, however caused, the Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good without an increase in Contract Price all losses or damages to any portion of any Work. The occurrence of Authority caused delay or the granting of an extension in Contract Time for any cause shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for the Work, or designated part, as specified in this paragraph.

#### **ARTICLE 13 - TERMINATION**

#### 13.1. Notice of Intention to Terminate for Cause:

- 13.1.1. If at any time reasonable doubt of the Contractor's due performance arises, the Authority may demand adequate, written assurance of due performance. In addition, the Authority, acting on knowledge or belief, may include with the demand for assurance a written notice to the Contractor and surety of the Authority's intent to terminate the Contractor's right to complete the Work within seven (7) days, or sooner if safety to persons or property is in question, because of occurrence of any of the following events, which constitute lack of due performance and are reasonable grounds for terminating the Contractor.
- 3.1.1.1. The Contractor fails to complete the Work, or separable part, within the corresponding Contract Time; fails or refuses to rosecute the Work, or separable part of the Work, with the diligence required for completion within the corresponding Contract Time; or fails or refuses to supply sufficient skilled workers, materials or equipment in adherence to the Progress Schedule, as revised from ime to time;
- .3.1.1.2. The Contractor admits in writing, or the Authority otherwise establishes, the Contractor's inability to pay his debts generally as hey become due; or in response to the Authority's demand, fails to promptly provide adequate, written assurance, the adequacy of which the Authority shall be the sole judge, of due performance in accordance with the Contract Documents;
- .3.1.1.3. A trustee, receiver, custodian or agent of the **Contractor** is appointed under applicable Law or under contract, whose appointment or authority to take charge of property of the **Contractor** is for the purpose of enforcing a lien against such property or for the purpose of general administration of such property for the benefit of the **Contractor**'s creditors; or
- 3.1.2. The Contractor disregards the authority of the Authority, otherwise violates in any substantial way any provision of the Contract Documents, fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, with the Contract Documents, or disregards the aws, ordinances, codes, rules or regulations of any public governmental entity with jurisdiction.
- 3.1.2.1. The Contractor is guilty of a substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.
- 13.1.2.2. Promptly after the Contractor receives either a demand for assurance or a notice of termination, the Contractor and surety shall meet with the Authority and present the plan they intend to follow to give adequate assurance of due performance to the Authority and to avoid or cure any default. If at or after the meeting, the Authority decides to allow the Contractor to continue prosecution of the Work to completion, that decision shall not waive the Authority's right to declare the Contractor in default subsequently nor affect any rights or remedies of the Authority against the Contractor or surety, or both, then existing or which may accrue in the future.

#### 13.2. Termination for Cause:

- 13.2.1. If the Contractor at any time refuses or neglects to supply a sufficient number of properly skilled workers or of materials of the proper quality, or fails in any respect to perform the Work, or separable part of the Work, with promptness and diligence, or fails in the performance of any of the agreements herein contained, and such refusal, neglect or failure has been certified to by the Authority, the Authority shall have full power and authority to give written notice to the Contractor and the surety of the Authority's intention to terminate the services of the Contractor seven (7) days after giving notice, or sooner if safety to persons or property is in question.
  - 13.2.2 If the Contractor seeks relief in bankruptcy, or if he makes a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a receiver of his property is appointed, or if the Work to be done under this Contract is abandoned, or if this Contract or any part thereof is sublet or assigned without the previous written consent of the Authority, or if the Contractor becomes insolvent, or if at any time the Authority shall certify in writing that the Contractor has refused or neglected to supply a sufficient number of properly skilled workers or of materials of the proper quality, or has failed in any respect to perform the Work with promptness and diligence, or has failed in the performance of any agreements herein contained, the Authority and at its discretion, may without prejudice to any right or remedy, and after giving the Contractor and his surety seven (7) days prior written notice, notify the Contractor to terminate the Work and the Authority at its discretion, and without prejudice to any other remedies that the Authority may have, may thereupon by contract or otherwise, complete the Work and charge the entire expense of so completing the Work to the Contractor; and the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment under this Contract until Final Completion of the Work, at which time, if the unpaid balance of the amount to be paid under this Contract shall exceed the expense incurred by the Authority, such excess shall be paid by the Authority to the Contractor. If the expense of completing the Work exceeds such unpaid balance, an appropriate credit Change Order shall be issued deducting from the Contract an amount then or thereafter due to the Contractor equal to the actual cost of correcting such deficiencies, including the City's expenses and compensation for the additional services of the Authority made necessary by such failure, refusal or default.

For the purpose of completing the Work, the Authority may take possession of and use, or cause to be used, any materials, implements, machinery and tools of every description as may be found upon the site of the work.

#### 13.2.3 Termination for Convenience:

#### TERMINATION BY THE OWNER:

- 13.2.3.1. Upon not less than seven (7) days written notice to the **Contractor** and the surety, or sooner if reasonable under the circumstances; the **Authority** may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, elect to terminate any part of the Work, or the Contract in whole or in part as the **Authority** may deem appropriate for its convenience. Upon receipt of any such termination notice, the **Contractor** shall immediately proceed in accordance with any specific provisions or instructions, protect and maintain the Work, and make reasonable and diligent efforts to mitigate costs associated with the termination.
- 13.2.3.2. In any such termination for the convenience of the Authority, the Contractor shall be paid for Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to receipt of the notice of termination, and for reasonable termination settlement costs relating to commitments which had become firm prior to the termination, based solely on supporting documentation that is provided to the Authority by the Contractor, the adequacy of which will be determined by the Authority in its sole discretion; provided, however, that the payment to the Contractor will exclude any and all anticipated supplemental costs, administrative expenses and profit on uncompleted work; and provided, further, that if no agreement can be reached as to reasonable termination costs, the parties will follow the provisions in the Federal Acquisition Regulations, clause 52.249-2 found in 48 CFR PART 52.
- 13.2.3.3. If, after notice of termination of the services of the Contractor for any of the causes listed in paragraph 14.1, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the termination shall be deemed to have been for the convenience for the Authority. In such event the Contractor may recover from the Authority payment in accordance with this paragraph 14.3.
- 13.2.3.4. Upon any such termination for convenience, the **Authority at its discretion** shall have full power and authority to take possession of the Work, assume any Sub-agreements with Subcontractors and Suppliers which the **Authority** so selects, and prosecute the Work to completion by contract or as the **Authority** may deem expedient.

#### 13.3. Surety Default:

- 13.3.1. If upon receipt of a notice of termination for cause, the surety fails to perform its obligations under the Performance Bond with reasonable promptness, the **Authority** shall declare the surety in default under the Performance Bond in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph.
- 3.3.2. No default of the surety under the Performance Bond shall be declared however, until the expiration of seven (7) days after eccipt by the surety of a written notice from the Authority demanding that the surety perform its obligations under the 'erformance Bond.
- 3.3.3. If the Authority declares the surety in default, the Authority shall have full power and authority to exclude the surety and Contractor from the site, assume any Sub-agreements which the Authority so selects and take possession of the Work and of all the urety's and Contractor's tools, appliances, plant and office, and construction equipment at the site and (a) use the same to the full extent hey could be used by the surety and Contractor (without liability to the surety or Contractor for trespass, rent or conversion), b) incorporate into the Work all materials and equipment stored at the site or for which the Authority has paid the Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and (c) prosecute the Work to completion by contract or as the Authority otherwise may deem expedient.
- 13.3.4. If the Authority has terminated the Contractor or defaulted the surety, any such termination or default will not affect any rights or remedies of the Authority against the Contractor or surety, or both, then existing or which may accrue after termination. Any retention or payment of monies due the Contractor or surety by the Authority will not release the Contractor or surety from any liability. All provisions of the Contract Documents that by their nature survive final acceptance of the Work shall remain in full force and effect after a termination for cause of the Contractor or default of the surety, or both, as applicable.
- 13.3.5. The Authority may, in its sole discretion, permit the Contractor or surety to continue to perform Work when the Contractor or surety has been terminated or declared in default for any reason. Such decision by the Authority shall in no way operate as a waiver of any of the Authority's rights under the Contract Documents or the Performance Bond, nor in the event of a subsequent default, entitle the Contractor or surety to continue to perform or prosecute the Work to completion.

# 13.6. The Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate:

13.6.1. To the extent permitted by Law, if through no act or fault of the Contractor, the Authority fails to act on any Application for Payment within thirty (30) days after it is submitted, or the Authority fails for ninety (90) days to pay the Contractor any

Application for Payment sum finally determined by the Authority to be due, then the Contractor may, upon thirty (30) additional days written notice to the Authority of a suspension of work, suspend the Work.

13.6.2. If the Authority fails to correct the conditions, if any, which under this paragraph justify the Contractor's suspension of the Work within ninety (90) days from the commencement of the suspension, the Contractor may upon thirty (30) days additional written notice to the Authority to terminate the Contract and recover from the Authority payment in accordance with paragraph 13.6.3 Except as specifically provided in this paragraph, these provisions shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under this Contract to carry on the Work without delay during disputes and disagreements with the Authority.

#### **ARTICLE 14 - DISPUTES**

#### 14.1. Claims Under This Article:

- 14.1.1. All Notices of Claims, Claims and any other matters in dispute between the **Authority** and the **Contractor** arising from or related to the Contract Documents or a claimed breach thereof, shall be subject to, processed and resolved as provided in this Article 15.
- 14.1.2. A "Claim" under this Article 15 shall mean a written demand or assertion by the Authority or Contractor, which is properly certified according to the requirements of Paragraph 15.2.1, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price and payment of monies due, an extension or shortening in Contract Time, the adjustment or interpretation of Contract terms, or any other relief arising under or relating to the Contract, after a determination by the Authority under the appropriate provision of the Contract Documents.
- 14.1.3. A Claim arising under the Contract is a Claim that can be resolved under a provision within the Contract Documents that provides for or excludes the relief sought by the claimant. Such Claims shall be resolved in accordance with the applicable provisions.
- 14.1.3.1. No Claim shall be valid unless it is based upon the prior submission of a clearly marked written "Notice of Claim" that states the general nature of the Claim delivered by the party making the Claim to other party promptly, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after the Authority's determination giving rise to the Claim. The receipt by the Authority of a timely Notice of Claim shall be a condition precedent to the Authority receiving a valid a Claim submitted from the Contractor for evaluation. The clearly marked written "Claim" itself together with all supporting data shall be delivered within sixty (60) days after the determination. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article, the Authority shall not be required to deliver notice of any Claim for liquidated damages or involving retention until sixty (60) days after the final acceptance.
- 14.1.4. A Claim by the Contractor shall be submitted to the Authority for a written decision. The Authority will provide the Contractor with a written acknowledgement of receipt of the Claim within seventy-two (72) hours, and will notify the Contractor as to the status of the Claim within thirty (30) days of receipt.
- 14.1.4.1. Once given, the Authority's final decision on a Claim submitted by the Contractor shall be final and binding on the Contractor unless the Contractor files suit within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Authority's decision.

#### 14.2 Requirements for Contractor Claims:

14.2.1 For all Contractor Claims seeking an increase in Contract Price or Contract Time, the Contractor shall submit a statement signed under the penalties of perjury and executed by an officer or partner in charge, or by a responsible senior officer or general managing partner of the Contractor certifying that the Claim is made in good faith; the amount claimed accurately reflects the adjustments in Contract Price or Contract Time for which the Contractor believes the Authority is liable, and covers all costs and delays to which the Contractor is entitled from the occurrence of the claimed event; and supporting costs and pricing data are current, accurate, complete and represent the best of the Contractor's knowledge and belief.

#### 14.3. Determination on a Claim:

- 14.3.1. Pending final resolution of any Claim, including litigation, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the Work, and comply with any decision of the Authority.
- 14.3.1.1. After settlement or final adjudication of any Claim under this Article if, upon demand, payment by the Contractor is not

made to the Authority, the Authority may offset the appropriate amounts against (a) payments due to the Contractor under any other contract between the Authority and the Contractor, or (b) any amounts for which the Authority may be obligated to the Contractor in any capacity.

#### 14.4. Venue:

- 14.4.1. The Contractor, the Contractor's sureties, and the Subcontractors and Suppliers agree, consent and submit to the service of process at the address and in the manner specified in Article 10.17.
- 14.4.1.1. The Contractor, the Contractor's sureties, and the Subcontractors and Suppliers waive jurisdiction and venue and shall submit to the jurisdiction of the County of Middlesex only, regardless of residence or domicile, with respect to any actions or suits at law or in equity arising under or related to the bidding, award, performance, or completion of the Work, payment for work performed, or any Claim.
- 14.4.2. The Contractor shall insert a provision containing the venue and service of process requirements of paragraph 14.4.1 and 14.4.2 in all sub-agreements and agreements between the Contractor and his sureties and insurers, altering the provisions only as necessary to properly identify the contracting parties.

**END OF GENERAL CONDITIONS** 

#### NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY

# WAGE RATE REQUIREMENTS

#### 1. GENERAL

- A. This section summarizes the requirements for the payment of wages to laborers and mechanics employed under the Contract.
- B. Other duties and requirements of law which may not be specified in this section apply and are inherently part of the Contract.

#### 2. WAGE RATES

- A. The rate per hour to be paid to mechanics, apprentices, teamsters, chauffeurs, and laborers employed on the Work shall not be less than the rate of wages in the attached "Minimum Wage Rates" as determined by the Commissioner of Labor and Industries. The schedule of prevailing wage rates will be updated annually for all public construction work orders lasting longer than one (1) year. The contractor shall pay the prevailing wage rate set out in the applicable prevailing wage rate schedule. Increases in prevailing wage rates shall not be the basis for a change order.
- B. Keep posted on the site a legible copy of said schedule. Keep on file the wage rates and classifications of labor employed on this Work in order that they may be available for inspection by the Owner, Administrator, or the Authority.
- C. Apprentices employed pursuant to this determination of wage rates must be registered and approved by the State Apprenticeship Council wherever rates for journeymen or apprentices are not listed.
- D. Pay reserve police officers employed on the Work the prevailing rate of wages paid to regular police officers as required by M.G.L. c 149, Sec. 34B, as amended. Such police officers shall be covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance by the Contractor.
- E. The Contractor and all subcontractors shall, on a weekly basis throughout the term of the contract, provide to the Newton Housing Authority certified payroll affidavits verifying compliance with M.G.L. c.149, Sec. 27, 27A and 27B and the US Department of Labor, Davis Bacon Act.
- F. The Contractor and all subcontractors shall provide a Statement of Compliance within 15 days of the completion of its portion of the work. This statement shall be submitted to the Owner on the form found elsewhere in this section.
- G. The Contractor shall maintain accurate and complete records, including payroll records, during the Contract term and for three years thereafter. Filings made by the Contractor pursuant to Clauses 47, 48 and 49 of the General Conditions shall be deemed to constitute compliance with State filing requirements under the Massachusetts Prevailing Wage Law and US Department of Labor, Davis Bacon Act.

**END OF SECTION** 

# The Massachusetts Prevailing Wage Law M.G.L. ch. 149, §§ 26 – 27

# NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

- > The enclosed wage schedules, and any updated schedule, must be posted in a conspicuous place at the work site during the life of the project.
- > The wages listed on the enclosed wage schedule must be paid to employees on public works projects regardless of whether they are employed by the prime contractor, a filed sub-bidder, or any sub-contractor.
- > The enclosed wage schedule applies to all phases of the project including the final clean-up. Contractors whose only role is to perform final clean-up must pay their employees according to this wage schedule.
- All apprentices must be registered with the Massachusetts Division of Apprentice Training in order to be paid at the reduced apprentice rates. If a worker is not registered with the Division of Apprentice Training, they must be paid the "total rate" listed on the wage schedule regardless of experience or skill level. For further information, please call (617) 727-3486 or write to the Division of Apprentice Training, 399 Washington Street, 4th Floor, Boston, MA 02108

# SPECIFICATIONS FOR ON- CALL SERVICING, REPAIRING AND PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE OF PLUMBING EQUIPMENT AND RELATED MECHANICAL SYSTEMS

THIS SERVICE CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE MASSACHUSETTS PREVAILING WAGE LAW (MGL c 149, ss 26-27H) AND WAGES SHALL BE PAID IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FOLLOWING WAGE CLASSIFICATIONS:

# HVAC (ALL), PIPEFITTERS, PLUMBERS & GASFITTERS

#### **PART I - GENERAL**

#### 1.1 DESCRIPTION

#### A. Work included:

Provide all the on-call labor, materials, equipment, transportation, and supervision necessary for the satisfactory servicing, repairing, and maintenance of all Plumbing Systems and other related mechanical systems and equipment, at Authority buildings, all as listed in these Specifications, as directed by Authority for the period of October 17, 2016 through October 17, 2017.

#### B. Plumbing Systems and Related mechanical HVAC equipment:

(These Specifications include, but are not limited to, the following types of equipment in each facility, where applicable.)

**Bath Room Sinks** 

Cold Water Supply Lines

Compressed Air Systems

**Custodial Closet Sinks** 

Domestic Hot Water Storage Tank

Drinking Fountains, both refrigerated and non-

electric Hot Water Tanks

**Emergency Eye Wash** 

**Emergency Shower Station** 

**Faucets** 

Floor Drain Covers

Floor Drain Lines

**Flushometers** 

Garbage Disposals

Hose Bibb

**Hot Water Circulation Pumps** 

Hot Water Mixing Valves

Hot Water Supply Lines

**HVAC** systems

Kitchen Sinks

Laundry Sinks

Natural Gas Hot Water Tanks

**Natural Gas Piping** 

**Roof Drain Piping** 

**Roof Drains** 

Sanitary Waste Piping

Shower Heads

**Showers** 

Solar Panel Piping Solar Storage Tank Sump Pumps Supply Valve Shutoff Toilets Urinals Water Meter Piping

# C. Typical Repairs/Replacements to be completed:

**Unplug Clogged Drain Lines** 

Unplug Clogged roof drains and related systems

Clean and repair waste systems

Repair/Replace Flushometers

Repair/Replace Leaking Hot and Cold Supply Lines

Repair/Replace Leaking Waste Lines

Repair/Replace Toilets

Repair/Replace Sinks

Repair/Replace Urinals

Repair/Replace Faucets

Repair/Replace Valves

Repair/Replace Mixing Valves

Repair/Replace Shower Heads

Repair/Replace Showers

Repair/Replace Bath Tubs

Repair/Replace Drinking Fountains and related equipment

Replace/Install Drinking Fountain Refrigerant

Repair/Replace Eye Wash Station

Repair/Replace Emergency Shower

Repair/Replace Pipe Fittings

Repair/Replace Non Asbestos Pipe Insulation

Repair/Replace Hot Water Tank

Repair/Replace Hot Water Storage Tank

Repair/Replace Solar Hot Water Storage Tank

Repair/Replace Solar Hot Water Piping

Repair/Replace Hot Water Circulation Pumps

#### D. Additional Work at Authority's Option (Preventative Maintenance)

This work is to be done at selected locations throughout the Authority in accordance with a schedule and type of work to be determined by the Authority in consultation with this Contractor. The general order of work shall be determined by the condition of the various items of equipment, usage patterns of the Authority buildings for purposes of access to the items and seasonal considerations. It is anticipated that some of this work can be accomplished as "fill-in" work scheduled around other repair and servicing operations.

#### E. Existing Conditions

During the bidding period, the Newton Housing Authority shall make available, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m., all facilities for all bidders to visit the facilities with designated Authority personnel; bidders will be responsible for all work under this Contract whether they visit the facilities or not.

F. The successful bidder shall be responsible to make repair to all equipment within the Facilities listed within this Contract Document and any others as may be added during the course of this contract. Should a repair be requested that cannot be accomplished by the successful bidder, it will be the successful bidders responsibility to coordinate with other contractors to have such repair done. The cost of such repair shall not exceed the rates as submitted on the bid form.

# G. Location of Equipment

# LIST OF NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY DEVELOPMENTS

The following is a description of the Newton Housing Authority housing developments and the type of units found at each development. There are a total of 524 units.

State Elderly/Disabled Program (DHCD): This development consists of 298 one bedroom units.

•		. •		
	oca	t1/	۱n	۰.
_	vua	uч	ш	ъ.

Parker House: 21 Parker Street, Newton Centre	33 units
Jackson Gardens: JFK and Green Street, Newton	64 units
Horace Mann: Walter St./Brookside Ave/676 Watertown Street	72 units
Norumbega Gardens: Ash St/Auburn Street, Auburndale	57 units
Echo Ridge: Thurston Road, N. Upper Falls	36 units
Nonantum Village: 239 Watertown Street, Nonantum	36 units

State Family Program (DHCD): Consists of 79 two, three and four bedroom units.

#### Locations:

Beaconwood, Wilson Circle/Hargrave Circle	20 units
Oak Street/1175 Chestnut Street	18 units
Scattered Sites	41 units

State Elderly/Disabled Program (DHCD): Consists of 60 one bedroom units.

#### Locations:

Hamilton Grove, 541 Grove Street, Newton	42 units
Centennary Village, 234 Central Street, Auburndale	12 units
Scattered Sites, Pettee Street/Florence Street	6 units

State Special Needs Housing (DHCD): Consists of 41 units, 20 of which are leased to vendors who operate residential programs for special needs clients.

#### Locations:

New Hyde School, 82 Lincoln Street	24 units
Walnut Street, 515 Walnut Street	10 units
Central Street, 234 Central Street	7 units

Management Units: The Newton Housing Authority owns and operates 55 units of managed housing. These include single room occupancy, one, two and three bedroom units and located throughout the City of Newton.

Total: 55 units

#### 1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

# A. Qualifications of Workmen:

- a. This Contract will be awarded to a contractor whose primary business is heating, ventilation and air conditioning mechanical system maintenance, repair, and service of equipment of the magnitude as covered under this Contract, and who has employees regularly under his employ who perform all required mechanical/electrical maintenance service and repair functions as required.
- b. The Contractor shall have been in the Plumbing/Mechanical Maintenance service and repair business for at least five (5) years, and must have at least three (3) similar customers who can be used as references
- c. The Contractor shall assign a minimum of three (3) Full Time personnel to the Authority to ensure all requests for service are responded to within the required time parameters

#### B. Rejection:

In the acceptance or rejection of plumbing/mechanical system maintenance, repair, and service operations and results, no allowance will be made for lack of skill on the part of workmen.

#### C. Codes and Standards:

Comply with all applicable codes, standards and regulations.

The Contractor shall acquire and maintain all service manuals for the various pieces of equipment covered under this Contract.

#### 1.3 SAFETY

Take the necessary precautions for the safety of employees on the work, and comply with applicable OSHA provisions to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the work is being performed.

#### 1.4 SUBMITTALS

No initial submittals required.

Submit two copies of maintenance and operation manuals for any new equipment installed; Deliver one to location of equipment and one to Authority's Capital Improvement Coordinator.

See 1.07 B below.

#### 1.5 PRODUCT HANDLING

#### A. Protection:

Use appropriate means necessary to protect materials before, during and after installation and to protect adjacent existing surfaces.

#### B. Replacements:

In the event of damage to Authority property, immediately make repairs and replacements necessary to the approval of the Authority and at no additional cost to the Authority.

#### 1.6 JOB CONDITIONS

#### A. Scheduling:

The Contractor shall provide the phone number of a dispatcher, regularly employed by him; This number shall be <u>manned twenty-four hours a day, seven days per week;</u> recorded message taking devices are not acceptable.

After receiving a service call from the Authority, commence work within the following time limits:

- 1. Emergency work requests must start within 1 (one) hour.
- All other work requests must start within two (2) workdays unless extended by Public Buildings Department.

Before commencing work, contact the Authority's Maintenance Department (phone 617-552-5501) to determine the exact location and extent of the required work.

The Building Maintenance Foreman will provide access and electrical outlets to all areas where the servicing is required.

#### B. Notification:

Within twenty-four (24) hours after services have been completed, notify the Authority by phone or e-mail that the required work has been completed.

# C. Work Results Required:

All service call problems shall be eliminated on the first call; first call-back for the same problem will be paid for at 25% of the Contract service rate; second call-back for the same problem will and any subsequent call-backs will not be paid for by the Newton Housing Authority.

#### 1.7 PROCEDURES

#### A. Work Order:

The Contractor shall have with him, on each service call, a Work Order listing the type and quantity of material used and the time consumed for that call;

This Work Order must be signed by the Authority's representative as evidence of the number of hours on the job.

A copy of the signed order shall be attached to its appropriate invoice.

The Contractor can use his own Work Order Form or one supplied by the Authority, sample of which is shown at the end of these Contract Documents.

# B. Invoicing:

Invoices, one for each work order, must be mailed in duplicate within five (5) days after each service call has been completed to:

Newton Housing Authority 82 Lincoln Street Newton Highlands, MA 02461 Attn.: Capital Improvement Coordinator

Failure to invoice within the above mentioned three (3) day period shall be grounds for termination.

Each invoice must reflect the Building Work Order Number assigned to that service call.

Each invoice will be based on time and materials, labor costs will be reflected separately and will be billed in accordance with the applicable contract hourly rates. Material used will be reflected on the invoice by quantity and unit costs including applicable surcharge. Each invoice shall have a complete break-out of labor, materials and any other miscellaneous charges. Bill labor charges on the actual time used to perform the required Work. Labor charges shall not be billed on a portal to portal basis. All charges for mileage, tolls, etc. shall be included within the hourly rate as submitted on the bid form.

In addition, each invoice shall be supplemented with a written service report (in duplicate) reflecting:

- 1. Location and date
- 2. Time of start and finish of work
- 3. Number of workmen
- 4. Brief description of work performed
- Name and number of parts replaced, with a statement if rebuilt or new parts or components were used.
- 6. Recommendation or comments pertaining to the repair work

#### C. Materials:

All removed parts and components shall be replaced by new parts. Used materials without trade-in allowance to the Newton Housing Authority must be left at the building with the Custodian in charge; used materials with trade-in allowance shall be returned to the vendor and credit shown on the invoice.

#### D. Meetings and Estimates

The Contractor shall agree to meet with the Authority, when requested, for the discussion and review of various problems encountered, and to provide a written status report at each meeting.

The Contractor shall, at the request of the Authority, investigate and offer estimates and quotations of work to be done, at no cost to the Authority.

#### 1.8 CONTRACT RATES

#### A. Repairs, Standard Rate:

The Standard Rate shall apply to any repair that does not meet the criteria for Premium Rate.

The Contractor shall perform routine repairs as directed by the Authority during the term of this contract. The Contractor shall be compensated for such repairs at the Standard Rate shown on the bid form. Materials used during routine repairs will be reimbursed at Contractor's cost plus 10%.

#### B. Repairs, Premium Rate:

The Premium Rate shall apply to any repair which the Authority requests the Contractor to commence between 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Monday through Friday, and anytime on Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday.

The Contractor shall be compensated for Premium Rate repairs at the Premium Rate shown on the bid form. Materials used during Premium Rate repairs will be reimbursed at Contractor's cost plus 10%.

Under no circumstances shall any work performed by the Contractor be compensated at the Premium Rate unless the Authority has given prior authorization to treat the work as a Premium Rate repair.

#### **PART 2 - PRODUCTS**

#### 2.01 REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT MATERIALS

All repair and replacement materials used shall be first quality with preference given to replacement parts as manufactured by the original equipment manufacturer (OEM); use these parts whenever available and always when a manufacturer's warranty still in effect would otherwise be voided.

In the event new major parts or components costing over three hundred and fifty dollars (\$750.00) should be required, the Contractor shall advise the Authority in writing and obtain the Authority's written approval prior to performing said Work. In an emergency situation, Authority approval may be obtained by telephone (617) 552-5501.

The Authority reserves the right to purchase items costing over fifteen-hundred dollars (\$1,500.00) direct if it be in its best interest to do so.

#### **PART 3 - EXECUTION**

#### 3.01 REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT

#### A. Repair

On any repair call vendor shall examine the unit for causes, which may have led to the failure; repair not only the failed portion, but also rehabilitate any other elements which appear to be in need of preventative maintenance; comply firstly with the servicing techniques required and/or recommended by the manufacturer of the item and secondly with generally accepted repair practices for the class of items to which the unit belongs.

In particular, for any item still believed to be under warranty, conform exactly to manufacturers requirements; advise the Authority of any recourse it may have with the original equipment manufacturer.

As a part of repair, check all field-adjustable settings and field-measurable tolerances. Reset these to original factory compliance; advise the Authority of any such settings/tolerances that cannot be repaired or for which the cost of repairs suggests that a replacement unit be considered.

#### B. Replacement:

Notify the Authority immediately upon initial examination of any unit that cannot be repaired or for which the cost of repairs suggests that a replacement unit be considered.

Furnish only either the duplicate item from the original manufacturer or a first-quality similar item from an established manufacturer who maintains a dealer/service network of support in the Greater Boston area.

Replacement units must be either an exact physical and functional equal or have only acceptable differences from the original — coordinate with Public Buildings Department Facilities Manager in this case before providing the replacement unit.

#### C. Guarantee

All labor, materials and replacement furnished under the contract shall be fully guaranteed, including the cost of removal and reinstallation (if part of the original work order) for one (1) year. In the event of failure, provide warranty service immediately upon notification.

General Decision Number: MA170001 09/08/2017 MA1

Superseded General Decision Number: MA20160001

State: Massachusetts

Construction Type: Building

Counties: Barnstable, Bristol, Dukes, Essex, Middlesex, Nantucket, Norfolk and Suffolk Counties in Massachusetts.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (does not include single family homes and apartments up to and including 4 stories)

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.20 for calendar year 2017 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.20 (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2017. The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number	Publication Date
0	01/06/2017
	• •
1	01/13/2017
2	02/03/2017
3	03/03/2017
4	03/10/2017
5	03/17/2017
6	04/14/2017
7	05/05/2017
8	05/12/2017
9	<b>05/26/2017</b>
10	06/02/2017
11	06/09/2017
12	06/16/2017
13	07/07/2017
14	07/21/2017
15	07/28/2017
16	08/04/2017
17	08/18/2017
18	09/01/2017
19	09/08/2017

ASBE0006-001 09/01/2016

	Rates	Fringes
Insulator/asbestos worker		
Includes the application		
of all insulating		
materials, protective		
coverings, coatings, and		
finishes to all types of		
mechanical systems		
(ZONE A)	\$ 45.09	26.35
(ZONE B)	\$ 40.58	26.35

#### **ZONES:**

#### ZONE A

BARNSTABLE COUNTY (Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Harwich, Orleans, Provincetown, Truro, Wellfleet, Yarmouth) BRISTOL COUNTY (Easton), MIDDLESEX COUNTY, and NORFOLK COUNTY (Avon, Braintree, Brookline, Canton, Cohasset, Dedham, Dover, Foxborough, Holbrook, Medfield, Medway, Millis, Milton, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Quincy, Randolph, Sharon, Stoughton, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, Weymouth)

#### ZONE B

BARNSTABLE COUNTY (Barnstable, Bourne, Falmouth, Mashpee, Sandwich), BRISTOL COUNTY (All cities except Easton), and NORFOLK COUNTY (Bellingham, Franklin, Plainville)

ASBE0006-002 06/01/2017

BARNSTABLE (Brewster, Chatham, Dennis, Eastham, Harwich, Orleans, Provincetown, Truro, Wellfleet and Yarmouth); BRISTOL (Easton); ESSEX; MIDDLESEX; NORFOLK (Avon, Braintree, Brookline, Canton, Cohasset, Dedham, Dover, Foxboro, Holbrook, Hull, Medfield, Medway, Millis, Milton, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Quincy, Randolph, Sharon Stoughton, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, and Weymouth) AND SUFFOLK COUNTIES

Rates

**Fringes** 

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL HANDLER (Includes preparation, wetting, stripping, removal, scrapping, vacuuming, bagging and disposing of all insulation materials from mechanical systems whether they contain asbestos or not)....\$ 34.45 19.40

ASBE0006-010 09/01/2016

BARNSTABLE (Barnstable, Bourne, Falmouth, Mashpee and Sandwich); BRISTOL (Acushnet, Attleboro city, Berkeley, Dartmouth, Dighton, Fairhaven, Fall river City, Freetown, Marion, Mansfield, New Bedford City, North Attleboro, Norton, Raynham, Rehoboth, Seekonk, Somerset, Swansea, Taunton City and Westport); DUKES; NANTUCKET; NORFOLK (Bellingham, Franklin, Plainville, and Wrentham); PLYMOUTH (Lakeville, Mattapoisett, Middleboro, Rochester and Wareham)

Rates

**Fringes** 

Insulator/asbestos worker (Includes the application of all insulating materials, protective coverings, coatings and finishes to all types of mechanical systems.)....\$ 40.58

BOIL0029-001 01/01/2017

Rates

Fringes

BOILERMAKER	\$	42.42	24.92
BRMA0001-008 0	3/01/2017		

#### FOXBORO CHAPTER

BRISTOL (Attleboro, Berkley, Dighton, Mansfield, North Attleboro, Norton, Raynham, Rehoboth, Seekonk, Taunton) AND NORFOLK (Bellingham, Canton, Dedham, Foxboro, Franklin, Norfolk, Norwood, Plainville, Sharon, Walpole, Westrwood, Wrentham) COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Bricklayer, Cement Mason, Plasterer	.\$ 48.66	29.47
BRMA0001-009 03/01/2017		

#### LOWELL CHAPTER

MIDDLESEX (Acton, Asby, Ayer, Bedford, Billerica, Boxboro, Carlisle, Chemsford, Dracut, Dunstble, Ft. Denvens, Groton, Littleton, Lowell, North Acton, Pepperell, Shirley, South Acton, Tewksbury, Townsend, Tyngsboro, West Acton, Westford, Wilmington)

	Rates	Fringes
Bricklayer and plasterer	.\$ 48.66	29.47
BRMA0001-010 03/01/2017		

#### LOWELL CHAPTER

MIDDLESEX (Ashland, Framingham, Holliston, Hopkinton, Hudson, Maynard, Natick, Sherbvorn, Stow); and NORFOLK (Medfield, Medway, Millis)

	Rates	Fringes	
BRICKLAYER	· ·	29.47	_
BRMA0003-001 04/01/2017			_
	Rates	Fringes	
Marble & Tile Finisher Marble, Tile & Terrazzo	\$ 37.16	28.14	
Workers	\$ 50.80	30.29	
TERRAZZO FINISHER	\$ 49.70	30.12	_
			_

BRMA0003-003 03/01/2017

#### **BOSTON CHAPTER**

MIDDLESEX (Arlington, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, Somerville); NORFOLK (Brookline, Milton); and SUFFOLK

	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER	\$ 50.76	30.34
PPMAGGG GG GG /G1 /GG17		

BRMA0003-006 03/01/2017

#### LYNN CHAPTER

ESSEX (Amesbury, Andover, Beverly, Boxford, Danvers, Essex, Georgetown, Gloucester, Groveland, Hamilton, Haverhill, Ipsewich, Lawrence, Lynn, Lynnfield, Manchester, Marblehead, Merrimac, Methuen, Middleton, Nahant, Newbury, Newburyport, North Andover, Peabody, Rockport, Rowley, Salisbury, Salem, Saugus, Swampscott, Topsfield Wakefield, Wenham, West Newbury); and MIDDLESEX (Reading, North Reading, Wakefield)

	Rates	Fringes	
Bricklayer, cement mason and plasterer	\$ 50.76	30.34	
BRMA0003-007 03/01/2017			

#### WALTHAM CHAPTER

MIDDLESEX (Belmont, Burlington, Concord, Lexington, Lincoln, Stoneham, Sudbury, Waltham, Watertown, Wayland, Weston, Winchester, Woburn)

	Rates	Fringes
Bricklayer and plasterer	50.76	30.34
DDWAGOOD OOG OO /04 /04 P		

BRMA0003-008 03/01/2017

BRMA0003-009 03/01/2017

NEWTON CHAPTER
MIDDLESEX (Newton) and NORFOLK (Dover, Needham, Wellesley)

	kates	Fringes
Bricklayer, cement mason and plasterer	\$ 50.76	30.34

## NEW BEDFORD

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Acushnet, Darmouth, Farhaven, Fall River, Freetown, New Bedford, Somerset, Swansea, Westport); DUKES; and NANTUCKET COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Bricklayer, cement mason and plasterer	\$ 50.76	30.34
BRMA0003-010 03/01/2017		

DIVINOUUS-010 03/01/201

QUINCY CHAPTER
NORFOLK COUNTY (Avon, Braintree, Cohasset, Holbrook, Quincy, Randolph, Soughton, Weymouth)

	Rates	Fringes
Bricklayer, cement mason and	đ 50 76	20.24
plasterer	\$ 50.76	30.34

<sup>\*</sup> CARP0026-001 09/01/2017

BRISTOL (Attleborough, North Attleborough); ESSEX; MIDDLESEX (Except Belmont, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Somerville): AND NORFOLK (Bellingham, Canton, Foxboro, Franklin, Medfield, Medway, Millis, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Plainville, Sharon, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, Wrentham)

	Rates	Fringes
CARPENTER		27.90

<sup>\*</sup> CARP0033-001 09/01/2017

MIDDLESEX (Belmont, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Somerville); NORFOLK (Brookline, Dedham, Milton); and SUFFOLK

	Rates	Fringes	
CARPENTER	\$ 46.43	28.35	
CARP0056-011 08/01/2015			_

SUFFOLK (All of County); and those areas of BARNSTABLE, BRISTOL, ESSEX, MIDDLESEX & NORFOLK COUNTIES situated inside Boston Beltway (I-495) and North of Cape Cod Canal. ALL of **DUKES AND NANTUCKET COUNTIES** 

	Rates	Fringes	
PILEDRIVERMAN	\$ 42.04	29.73	
CARP0056-012 08/01/2015			

The areas of BARNSTABLE, BRISTOL, and NORFOLK COUNTIES situated OUTSIDE Boston Beltway (I-495) and South of Cape Cod Canal

	Rates	Fringes
PILEDRIVERMAN	\$ 42.04	29.73
CARP0056-013 08/01/2015		

Those areas of ESSEX and MIDDLESEX COUNTIES situated OUTSIDE Boston Beltway (I-495)

	Rates	Fringes
PILEDRIVERMAN	\$ 42.04	29.73
* CAPDA24_AA2 AQ/A1/2A17		

CARP0424-003 09/01/2017

NORFOLK COUNTY (Braintree, Cohassett, Scituate, Weymouth, Quincy)

	Rates	Fringes
CARPENTER	\$ 39.28	27.90
* CARDA624-805 89/81/2017		

CARP0624-005 09/01/2017

DUKES; NANTUCKET

DURES; NANTUCKET		
	Rates	Fringes
CARPENTER	\$ 46.43	28.35
* CARP0624-007 09/01/2017		
BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Except Att NORFOLK (Avon, Holbrook, Randol		
	Rates	Fringes
CARPENTER	\$ 39.28	27.90
CARP1121-001 04/01/2017		
	Rates	Fringes
MILLWRIGHT	\$ 38.62	29.50
CARP2168-001 09/01/2016		
MIDDLESEX (Belmont, Cambridge, Somerville); NORFOLK (Brookline		
	Rates	Fringes
FLOOR LAYER: Carpet		28.32
CARP2168-004 09/01/2016		
BRISTOL; ESSEX; MIDDLESEX (Exce Malden, Medford, Somerville); R		
	Rates	Fringes
FLOOR LAYER: Carpet		28.32
CARP2168-005 09/01/2016		
BARNSTABALE; DUKES; AND NANTUCK	(ET	
	Rates	Fringes
FLOOR LAYER: Carpet	\$ 42.65	28.32
ELEC0096-001 06/01/2017		
MIDDLESEX (Ashby, Ashland, Ayer Hudson, Marlboro, Pepperell, Sh		
	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN Teledata System Installer		11%+19.91 22.89
ELEC0099-001 06/01/2017		
	-1	. \

BRISTOL (Attleboro, North Attleboro, Seekonk)

	Rates	Fringes	
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 38.08	57.24%	
Teledata System Installer	.\$ 28.56	13.1%+13.76	
51 560402 004 02 /04 /2047			

ELEC0103-001 03/01/2017

ESSEX; MIDDLESEX (Excluding Ashby, Ashland, Ayer, Ft. Devens, Groton, Hopkinton, Hudson, Marlboro, Pepperell, Shirley, Stow, Townsend); NORFOLK (Excluding Avon, Holbrook, Plainville, Randolph, Stoughton) SUFFOLK

	Rates	Fringes	
Teledata System Installer	.\$ 36.25	29.14	
ELECO103-002 03/01/2017			

ELEC0103-002 03/01/2017

ESSEX (Amesbury, Andover, Boxford, Georgetown, Groveland, Haverhill, Lawrence, Merrimac, Methuen, Newbury, Newburyport, North Andover, Rowley, Salisbury, West Newbury); MIDDLESEX (Bedford, Billerica, Boxboro, Burlington, Carlisle, Chelmsford, Dracut, Dunstable littleton, Lowell, North Reading, Tewksbury, Tyngsboro, Westford, Wilmington)

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 48.33	31.17
ELEC0103-004 03/01/2017		

ESSEX (Beverly, Danvers, Essex, Gloucester, Hamilton, Ipswich, Manchester, Marblehead, Middleton, Peabody, Rockport, Salem, Topsfield, Wenham)

	Rates	Fringes	
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 48.33	31.17	

ELEC0103-005 03/01/2017

ESSEX (Lynn, Lynnfield, Nahant, Saugus, Swampscott); MIDDLESEX (Acton, Arlington, Belmont, Cambridge, Concord, Everett, Framingham, Holliston, Lexington, Lincoln, Malden, Maynard, Medford, Melrose, Natick, Newton, Reading, Sherborn, Somerville, Stoneham, Sudbury, Wakefield, Waltham, Watertown, Wayland, Weston, Winchester, Woburn); NORFOLK (Bellingham, Braintree, Brookline, Canton, Cohasset, Dedham, Dover, Foxboro, Frankloin, Medfield, Medway, Millis, Milton, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Quincy, Sharon, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, Weymouth, Wrentham); PLYMOUTH (Hingham and Hull); SUFFOLK

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 48.33	31.17
FLECO104 001 00/20/2016		

ELEC0104-001 08/28/2016

Rates **Fringes** 

#### Line Construction:

Cableman\$ 44.35	24.66+A
Equipment Operator\$ 37.70	21.58+A
Groundman\$ 24.39	9.96+A
Lineman\$ 44.35	24.66+A

A. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Thanksgiving Day; Christmas Day and Columbus Day, provided the employee has been employed 5 working days prior to any one of the listed holidays.

ELEC0223-005 09/01/2016

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Except Attleboro, North Attleboro, Seekonk); DUKES; NANTUCKET AND NORFOLK (Avon, Halbrook, Plainville, Randolph, Stoughton)

	Rates	Fringes	
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 39.21	27.75%+10.60	
ELECO222 006 00/01/2016			

ELEC0223-006 09/01/2016

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Except Attleboro, North Attleboro, Seekonk); DUKES; NANTUCKET AND NORFOLK (Avon, Halbrook, Plainville, Randolph, Stoughton)

	Rates	Fringes
Teledata System Installer	.\$ 33.33	27.75%+10.35
ELEV0004-001 01/01/2017		

CLCA0004-001 01/01/501/

#### FOOTNOTE FOR ELEVATOR MECHANICS:

a.Vacation: 6%/under 5 years based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked. 8%/over 5 years based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked.

b. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Veterans' Day; Thanksgiving Day; the Friday after Thanksgiving Day; and Christmas Day.

#### ENGI0004-001 06/01/2017

	Rates	Fringes
Power equipment operators:		
Group 1	\$ 46.38	26.15+A
Group 2		26.15+A
Group 3		26.15+A
Group 4		26.15+A
Group 5		26.15+A
Group 6		26.15+A

#### FOOTNOTE FOR POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS:

A. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday,

Labor Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Patriot's Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day

```
HOURLY PREMIUM FOR BOOM LENGTHS (Including Jib):
```

Over 150 ft. +2.12 Over 185 ft. +3.72 Over 210 ft. +5.23 Over 250 ft. +7.92 Over 295 ft. +10.97 Over 350 ft. +12.76

#### POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS CLASSIFICATIONS

Group 1: Crane; shovel; truck crane; cherry picker; dragline; trench hoe; backhoe; three drum machine; derrick; pile driver; elevator tower; hoist; gradall; shovel dozer; front end loader; fork lift; suger; boring machine; rotaryu drill; post hole hammer; post hole digger; pumpcrete machine; asphalt plant (on site); concrete batching and/or mixing plant (on site); crusher plant (on site); paving concrete mixer; timber jack Group 2: Sonic or vibratory hammer; grader; scraper; tandem scraper; concrete pump; bulldozer; tractor; york rake; mulching machine; portable steam boiler; portable steam generator; roller; spreader; tamper (self propelled or tractor drawn); asphalt paver; mechanic - maintenance; paving screed machine; stationary steam boiler; paving concrete finishing machine; cal truck; ballast regulator; switch tamper; rail anchor machine; tire truck Group 3: Pumps (1-3 grouped); compressor; welding machine (1-3 grouped); generator; concrete vibrator; heater (power driven 1- 5); well point system (operating); syphon-pulsometer; concrete mixer; valves controlling permanent plant air or steam; conveyor; Jackson type tamper; single diaphragm pump; lighting plant Group 4: Assistant engineer (fireman) Group 5: Oiler (other than truck cranes and gradalls) Group 6: Oiler (on truck cranes and gradalls) stant engineer (on truck crane and gradall)

#### IRON0007-006 03/16/2017

AREA 1: BRISTOL (Easton); ESSEX (Beverly, Gloucester, Lynn, Lynnfield, Manchester, Marblehead, Nahant, Rockport, Salem, Saugus, Swampscott); MIDDLESEX (Arlington, Bedford, Belmont, Burlington, Cambridge, Carlisle, Concord, Dunstable, Everett, Framingham, Lexington, Lincoln, Malden, Maynard, Medford, Melrose, Natick, Newton, Reading, Sherborn, Somerville, Stoneham, Sudbury, Wakefield, Waltham, Watertown, Wayland, Weston, Winchester, Woburn); NORFOLK (Except Medway); SUFFOLK

AREA 2: ESSEX (Amesbury, Andover, Boxford, Danvers, Essex, Georgetown, Hamilton, Haverhill, Ipswich, Lawrence, Merrimac, Methuen, Newbury, Newburyport, North Andover, Rowley, Salisbury, Topsfield, Wenham, West Newbury); MIDDLESEX (Action, Billericia, Chelmsford, Dracut, Groton, Groveland, Littleton, Lowell, Middleton, North Reading, Pepperell, Tewksbury, Tyngsboro, Westford, Wilmington)

Rates Fringes

Ironworkers:

AREA 1.....\$ 43.73 30.35

AREA 2.....\$ 39.32

IRON0007-010 03/16/2017

MIDDLESEX (Ashby, Ashland, Ayer, Boxboro, Holliston, Hopkinton, Hudson, Marlboro, Shirley, Stow, Townsend); NORFOLK (Medway)

> Rates **Fringes**

IRONWORKER.....\$ 43.43 30.35

IRON0037-005 03/16/2017

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Acushnet, Attleboro, Berkley, Dartmouth, Dighton, Fairhaven, Fall River, Freetown, Mansfield, New Bedford, North Attleboro, Norton, Raynham, Rehoboth, Seekonk, Somerset, Swansea, Taunton, Westport); DUKES; NANTUCKET; NORFOLK (Billingham, Franklin, Plainville, Wrentham)

Rates **Fringes** IRONWORKER.....\$ 34.89

LAB00014-001 06/01/2016

Rates Fringes

Plasterer tender

BARNSTABLE, BRISTOL, DUKES, ESSEX, NANTUCKET, MIDDLESEX (with the exception of Arlington, Belmont, Burlington, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, Reading, Somerville, Stoneham, Wakefield, Winchester, Winthrop and Woburn); NORFOLK (with the exception of Brookline Dedham and Milton) COUNTIES.\$ 31.65 SUFFOLK COUNTY (Boston,

21.30

Chelsea, Revere, Winthrop, Deer Island, Nut Island); MIDDLESEX COUNTY (Arlington, Belmont, Burlington, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, Reading, Somerville, Stoneham, Wakefield, Winchester, Winthrop and Woburn only); NORFOLK COUNTY (Brookline, Dedham, and Milton only)....\$ 35.85 22.45

LAB00022-009 06/01/2016

SUFFOLK COUNTY (Boston, Chelsea, Revere, Winthrop, Deer & Nut Islands); MIDDLESEX COUNTY (Arlington, Belmont, Burlington, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, Reading, Somerville, Stoneham, Wakefield, Winchester, Winthrop, and Woburn only); NORFOLK COUNTY (Brookline, Dedham, and Milton

	Rates	Fringes
Laborers:		
Group	1\$ 35.85	22.45
Group	2\$ 36.10	22.45
Group	3\$ 36.60	22.45
Group	4\$ 36.85	22.45
Group	5\$ 36.60	22.45
Group	6\$ 37.85	22.45
•	7\$ 20.50	22.45

#### LABORERS CLASSIFICATIONS

#### GROUP 1: Laborers; Carpenter Tenders

GROUP 2: Jackhammer operator; pavement breaker; asphalt raker carbide core drilling machine; chain saw operator; pipelayer; barco type jumping tampers; laser beam; concrete pump; mason tender; motorized mortar mixer; ride-on motorized buggy; fence and beam rail erector

GROUP 3: Air track, block paver; rammer; curb setter, hydraulic and similar self-powered drills

GROUP 4: Blaster; powderman

GROUP 5: Pre-cast floor and roof plank erector

GROUP 6: Asbestos removal laborers/haz-mat laborers

GROUP 7: Flaggers

-----

#### LAB00022-010 06/01/2016

Counties of BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL; DUKES; ESSEX; NANTUCKET; MIDDLESEX (with the exception of Arlington, Belmont, Burlington, Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, Reading, Somerville, Stoneham, Wakfield, Winchester, Winthrop and Woburn); NORFOLK (with the exception of Brookline, Dedham and Milton)

	Rates	Fringes
Laborers:		
Group	1\$ 31.65	21.30
Group	2\$ 31.90	21.30
Group	3\$ 32.40	21.30
Group	4\$ 32.65	21.30
Group	5\$ 32.40	21.30
Group	6\$ 33.65	21.30

#### LABORERS CLASSIFICATIONS

#### GROUP 1: Laborers; Carpenter Tenders

GROUP 2: Jackhammer operator; pavement breaker; asphalt raker carbide core drilling machine; chain saw operator; pipelayer; barco type jumping tampers; laser beam; concrete pump; mason tender; motorized mortar mixer; ride-on motorized buggy; fence and beam rail erector

GROUP 3: Air track, block paver; hammer; curb setter, hydraulic and similar self-powered drills

GROUP 4: Blaster; powderman

GROUP 5: Pre-cast floor and roof plank erector

GROUP 6: Asbestos removal laborers/haz-mat laborers

LAB01421-004 07/01/2016

BARNSTABLE, BRISTOL, DUKES, ESSEX, MIDDLESEX, NANTUCKET NORFOLK AND SUFFOLK COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Laborers: (Wrecking)		
Group 1	\$ 36.00	22.45
Group 2	\$ 36.75	22.49
Group 3	\$ 37.00	22.45
Group 4	\$ 32.00	22.45
Group 5	\$ 35.10	22.45
Group 6	\$ 36.00	22.45

Group 1: Adzeman, Wrecking Laborer.

Group 2: Burners, Jackhammers.

Group 3: Small Backhoes, Loaders on tracks, Bobcat Type Loaders, Hydraulic "Brock" Type Hammer Operators, Concrete Cutting Saws.

Group 4: Yardman (Salvage Yard Only).

Group 5: Yardman, Burners, Sawyers.

Group 6: Asbestos, Lead Paint, Toxic and Hazardous Waste.

PAIN0011-007 06/01/2017

BARNSTABLE, BRISTOL, DUKES, AND NANTUCKET COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
GLAZIER	\$ 36.28	20.45+A

FOOTNOTE:

A. PAID HOLIDAY: LABOR DAY (provided employee has worked any part of the week prior to Labor Day and any part of the week after Labor Day)

\_\_\_\_\_\_

PAIN0035-004 01/01/2017

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL; ESSEX; NANTUCKET; DUKES; COUNTIES; REMAINDER OF NORFOLK; MIDDLESEX AND SUFFOLK COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
Painters:		
<b>NEW CONSTRUCTION:</b>		
Brush, Taper	\$ 37.86	28.10
Spray, Sandblast	\$ 39.26	28.10
REPAINT:		
Brush, Taper	\$ 35.92	28.10
Spray, Sandblast	\$ 37.32	28.10

PAIN0035-013 01/01/2017

MIDDLESEX (Cambridge, Everett, Malden, Medford, Somerville)
SUFFOLK COUNTY (Boston, Chelsea) NORFOLK COUNTY (Brookline)

	R	ates	Fringes
Painters:			
NEW CONS	STRUCTION:		
Brush,	Taper\$	43.65	28.10
Spray,	Sandblast\$	45.05	28.10
REPAINT	:		
Brush,	Taper\$	41.71	28.10
Spray,	Sandblast\$	43.11	28.10

PAIN0035-020 01/01/2017

ESSEX; MIDDLESEX; NORFOLK; SUFFOLK

	Rates	Fringes	
GLAZIER	-	28.10	
0			

PLAS0534-001 01/01/2017

ESSEX; MIDDLESEX; NORFOLK AND SUFFOLK COUNTY

	Kates	Fringes	
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER	40.00	33.91	
PLAS0534-004 01/01/2017			

MIDDLESEX; NORFOLK AND SUFFOLK COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes	
PLASTERER	\$ 40.00	33.91	_

<sup>\*</sup> PLUM0004-001 09/01/2017

MIDDLESEX (Ashby, Ayer-West of Greenville branch of Boston and Maine Railroad, Ft. Devens, Groton, Shirley, Townsend)

	Rates	Fringes
Plumbers and Pipefitters	\$ 43.41	25.51
PLUM0012-005 03/01/2017		

ESSEX (Ames, Andover, Beverly, Boxford, Byfield, Danvers, Essex, Georgetown, Gloucester, Groveland, Hamilton, Haverhill, Ipswich, Lawrence, Manchester, Marblehead, Merrimac, Methuem, Middleton, Newbury, Newburyport, North Andover, Peabody, Rockport, Rowley, Salem, Salisbury, Topsfield, Wenham, West Newbury)

	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER	\$ 48.36	28.38

#### PLUM0012-007 03/01/2017

ESSEX (Lynn, Lynnfield, Nahant, Saugus, and Swampscott); MIDDLESEX (Acton, Arlington, Ashford, Ayer-except west of Greenville Branch of Boston & Maine Rail Road, Bedford, Belmont, Billerica, Boxboro, Burlington, Cambridge, Carlise, Chelmsford, Concord, Dracut, Dunstable, Everett, Framingham, Hudson, Holliiston, Hopkinton, Lexington, Lincoln, Littleton, Lowell, Malden, Marlboro, Maynard, Medford, Melrose, Natick, Newton, North Reading, Pepperell, Reading, Sherborn, Somerville, Stoneham, Stow, Sudbury, Tewksbury, Tyngsboro, Wakefield, Watham, Watertown, Wayland, Westford, Wilmington, Winchester and Woburn), NORFOLK (Bellingham, Braintree, Brookline, Canton, Cohasset, Dedham, Dover, Foxboro, Franklin, Medford, Medway, Millis, Milton, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood. Plainville, Quincy, Sharon, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, Weymouth and Wrentham); PLYMOUTH (Hingham, Hull, Scituate); SUFFOLK; WORCESTER (Hopedale and Southboro)

	Rates	Fringes
PLUMBER	\$ 52.44	28.38
PLUM0051-004 09/01/2016		

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL; DUKES; NANTUCKET; AND NORFOLK (Avon, Holbrook, Randolph, Stoughton) COUNTIES

	kates	Fringes
Plumbers and Pipefitters		28.20

#### PLUM0537-005 09/01/2016

ESSEX (Ames, Andover, Beverly, Boxford, Byfield, Danvers, Essex, Georgetown, Gloucester, Groveland, Hamilton, Haverhill, Ipswich, Lawrence, Lynn, Lynnfield, Manchester, Marblehead, Merrimac, Methuem, Middleton, Nahant, Newbury, Newburyport, North Andover, Peabody, Rockport, Rowley, Salem, Salisbury, Saugus, Swampscott, Topsfield, Wenham, West Newbury); MIDDLESEX (Acton, Arlington, Ashford, Ayer-except west of Greenville Branch of Boston & Maine Rail Road, Bedford, Belmont, Billerica, Boxboro, Burlington, Cambridge, Carlise, Chelmsford, Concord, Dracut, Dunstable, Everett, Framingham, Hudson, Holliiston, Hopkinton, Lexington, Lincoln, Littleton, Lowell, Malden, Marlboro, Maynard, Medford, Melrose, Natick, Newton, North Reading, Pepperell, Reading, Sherborn, Somerville, Stoneham, Stow, Sudbury, Tewksbury, Tyngsboro, Wakefield, Watham, Watertown, Wayland, Westford, Wilmington, Winchester and Woburn), NORFOLK (Bellingham, Braintree, Brookline, Canton, Cohasset, Dedham, Dover, Foxboro, Franklin, Medford, Medway, Millis, Milton, Needham, Norfolk, Norwood, Plainville, Quincy, Sharon, Walpole, Wellesley, Westwood, Weymouth and Wrentham); PLYMOUTH (Hingham, Hull, Scituate); SUFFOLK; WORCHESTER (Hopedale and Southboro)

	Rates	Fringes
PIPEFITTER	\$ 50.19	29.76
D0050022 004 00/04/2047		

Rates

Fringes

Roofers:

All Tear-off and/or removal of any types of roofing and all spudding, sweeping, vacuuming and/or cleanup of any and all areas of any type where a roof is to be relaid......\$ 41.36

SFMA0550-001 03/01/2017

BRISTOL (Portion within 35 mile radius from Boston City Hall; ESSEX; MIDDLESEX (Except Ashby, Townsend, and portions of Pepperell and Shirley beyond 35 mile radius from Boston City Hall); NORFOLK; PLYMOUTH (Portion within 35 mile radius of Boston City Hall); SUFFOLK

Rates

Fringes

SPRINKLER FITTER.....\$ 56.08

26.78+a

a. PAID HOLIDAYS: Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, provided the employee has been in the employment of a contractor 20 working days prior to any such paid holiday.

\_\_\_\_\_

SFMA0550-002 03/01/2017

BRISTOL (Seekonk, Swansea, and Somerset)

Rates

Fringes

SPRINKLER FITTER.....\$ 50.47

26.78+a

a. PAID HOLIDAYS: Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day, provided the employee has been in the employment of a contractor 20 working days prior to any such paid holiday.

SFMA0669-001 04/01/2017

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Beyond 35 mile radius of Boston City Hall); DUKES; MIDDLESEX (Ashby, Townsend, portions of Pepperell and Shirley beyond 35 mile radius of Boston City Hall); NANTUCKET; PLYMOUTH (Beyond 35 mile radius of Boston City Hall)

------

Rates

**Fringes** 

**SPRINKLER FITTER...... 40.26** 

15.84

SHEE0017-003 10/01/2015

BRISTOL (Attleboro, Berkley, Easton, Mansfield, North Attleboro, Norton, Raynham, Taunton); ESSEX; MIDDLESEX; NORFOLK; PLYMOUTH (except except Marion, Mattapoisett, Rochester, Wareham); SUFFOLK

Rates

**Fringes** 

BARNSTABLE; BRISTOL (Acushnet, Assonet, Dartmouth, Dighton, Fairhaven, Fall River, Freetown, New Bedford, Rehoboth, Seeekonk, Somerset, Swansea, Westport); DUKES; AND NANTUCKET

	Rates	Fringes
Sheet metal worker	\$ 35.60	30.05

TEAM0379-001 08/01/2016

	Rates	Fringes
Truck drivers:		
Group 1	\$ 31.98	21.96+A+B
Group 2	\$ 32.15	21.96+A+B
Group 3	\$ 32.22	21.96+A+B
Group 4	\$ 32.34	21.96+A+B
Group 5	\$ 32.44	21.96+A+B
Group 6	\$ 32.73	21.96+A+B
Group 7	\$ 33.02	21.96+A+B

POWER TRUCKS \$.25 DIFFERENTIAL BY AXLE
TUNNEL WORK (UNDERGROUND ONLY) \$.40 DIFFERENTIAL BY AXLE
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (IN HOT ZONE ONLY) \$2.00 PREMIUM

#### TRUCK DRIVERS CLASSIFICATIONS

- Group 1: Station wagons; panel trucks; and pickup trucks
- Group 2: Two axle equipment; & forklift operator
- Group 3: Three axle equipment and tireman
- Group 4: Four and Five Axle equipment
  - Group 5: Specialized earth moving equipment under 35 tons other than conventional type trucks; low bed; vachual; mechanics, paving restoration equipment
- Group 6: Specialized earth moving equipment over 35 tons
  - Group 7: Trailers for earth moving equipment (double hookup)

#### FOOTNOTES:

- A. PAID HOLIDAYS: New Year's Day, Washington's Birthday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Patriot's Day, Columbus Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day
- B. PAID VACATION: Employees with 4 months to 1 year of service receive 1/2 day's pay per month; 1 week vacation for 1 5 years of service; 2 weeks vacation for 5 10 years of service; and 3 weeks vacation for more than 10 years of service

-----

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

\_\_\_\_\_\_

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of "identifiers" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

#### Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than "SU" or "UAVG" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the "SU" identifier indicate that

no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

#### WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- \* an existing published wage determination
- \* a survey underlying a wage determination
- \* a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- \* a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.

Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

**END OF GENERAL DECISION** 



# THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT OF LABOR STANDARDS

#### **Prevailing Wage Rates**

As determined by the Director under the provisions of the Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 149, Sections 26 to 27H

ROSALIN ACOSTA Secretary WILLIAM D MCKINNEY Director

Et. Governor

**Newton Housing Authority** 

Awarding Authority: Contract Number:

OC-PH20170914 City/Town: NEWTON

**Description of Work:** 

Invitation for sealed bids for the repairing and servicing of plumbing, HVAC and related systems of NHA

properties located throughout the City of Newton.

Job Location:

Various properties throughout the City of Newton

Information about Prevailing Wage Schedules for Awarding Authorities and Contractors

- This wage schedule applies only to the specific project referenced at the top of this page and uniquely identified by the "Wage Request Number" on all pages of this schedule.
- An Awarding Authority must request an updated wage schedule from the Department of Labor Standards ("DLS") if it has not opened bids or selected a contractor within 90 days of the date of issuance of the wage schedule. For CM AT RISK projects (bid pursuant to G.L. c.149A), the earlier of: (a) the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the bid for the first construction scope of work must be within 90-days of the wage schedule issuance date.
- The wage schedule shall be incorporated in any advertisement or call for bids for the project as required by M.G.L. c. 149, § 27. The wage schedule shall be made a part of the contract awarded for the project. The wage schedule must be posted in a conspicuous place at the work site for the life of the project in accordance with M.G.L. c. 149 § 27. The wages listed on the wage schedule must be paid to employees performing construction work on the project whether they are employed by the prime contractor, a filed sub-bidder, or any sub-contractor.
- All apprentices working on the project are required to be registered with the Massachusetts Department of Labor Standards, Division of Apprentice Standards (DLS/DAS). Apprentice must keep his/her apprentice identification card on his/her person during all work hours on the project. An apprentice registered with DAS may be paid the lower apprentice wage rate at the applicable step as provided on the prevailing wage schedule. Any apprentice not registered with DLS/DAS regardless of whether or not they are registered with any other federal, state, local, or private agency must be paid the journeyworker's rate for the trade.
- The wage rates will remain in effect for the duration of the project, except in the case of multi-year public construction projects. For construction projects lasting longer than one year, awarding authorities must request an updated wage schedule. Awarding authorities are required to request these updates no later than two weeks before the anniversary of the date the contract was executed by the awarding authority and the general contractor. For multi-year CM AT RISK projects, awarding authority must request an annual update no later than two weeks before the anniversary date, determined as the earlier of: (a) the execution date of the GMP Amendment, or (b) the execution date of the first amendment to permit procurement of construction services. Contractors are required to obtain the wage schedules from awarding authorities, and to pay no less than these rates to covered workers. The annual update requirement is not applicable to 27F "rental of equipment" contracts.
- Every contractor or subcontractor which performs construction work on the project is required to submit weekly payroll reports and a Statement of Compliance directly to the awarding authority by mail or email and keep them on file for three years. Each weekly payroll report must contain: the employee's name, address, occupational classification, hours worked, and wages paid. Do not submit weekly payroll reports to DLS. A sample of a payroll reporting form may be obtained at http://www.mass.gov/dols/pw.
- Contractors with questions about the wage rates or classifications included on the wage schedule have an affirmative obligation to inquire with DLS at (617) 626-6953.
- Employees not receiving the prevailing wage rate set forth on the wage schedule may report the violation to the Fair Labor Division of the office of the Attorney General at (617) 727-3465.
- Failure of a contractor or subcontractor to pay the prevailing wage rates listed on the wage schedule to all employees who perform construction work on the project is a violation of the law and subjects the contractor or subcontractor to civil and

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
Construction						
(2 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2016	\$33.25	\$10.91	\$10.89	\$0.00	\$55.05
(3 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2016	\$33.32	\$10.91	\$10.89	\$0.00	\$55.12
(4 & 5 AXLE) DRIVER - EQUIPMENT TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2016	\$33.44	\$10.91	\$10.89	\$0.00	\$55.24
ADS/SUBMERSIBLE PILOT PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2015	\$88.29	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$117.32
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
AIR TRACK OPERATOR	06/01/2017	\$37.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.85
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2017	\$38.45	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.70
	06/01/2018	\$39.40	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.65
	12/01/2018	\$40.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.60
	06/01/2019	\$41.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.60
	12/01/2019	\$42.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.60
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
ASBESTOS REMOVER - PIPE / MECH. EQUIPT.	06/01/2017	\$34.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$53.50
HEAT & FROST INSULATORS LOCAL 6 (BOSTON)	12/01/2017	\$35.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$54.50
	06/01/2018	\$36.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$55.50
	12/01/2018	\$37.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$56.50
	06/01/2019	\$38.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$57.50
	12/01/2019	\$39.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$58.50
	06/01/2020	\$40.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$59.50
	12/01/2020	\$41.90	\$11.50	\$7.10	\$0.00	\$60.50
ASPHALT RAKER	06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
	06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
	12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
	06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
	12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
ASPHALT/CONCRETE/CRUSHER PLANT-ON SITE OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
BACKHOE/FRONT-END LOADER  OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
BARCO-TYPE JUMPING TAMPER	06/01/2017	¢27.10	\$7.60	\$1 <i>A 65</i>	\$0.00	\$50.25
LABORERS - ZONE 1	06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$59.35
	12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
	06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
	12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
	06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10

 Issue Date:
 09/15/2017
 Wage Request Number:
 20170915-025
 Page 2 of 33

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
BLOCK PAVER, RAMMER / CURB SETTER	06/01/2017	\$37.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.85
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$38.45	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.70
	06/01/2018	\$39.40	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.65
	12/01/2018	\$40.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.60
	06/01/2019	\$41.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.60
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2019	\$42.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.60
BOILER MAKER BOILERMAKERS LOCAL 29	01/01/2017	\$42.92	\$6.97	\$16.21	\$0.00	\$66.10

Apprentice -	BOILERMAKER - Local 29
--------------	------------------------

Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	65	\$27.90	\$6.97	\$10.54	\$0.00	\$45.41
2	65	\$27.90	\$6.97	\$10.54	\$0.00	\$45.41
3	70	\$30.04	\$6.97	\$11.35	\$0.00	\$48.36
4	75	\$32.19	\$6.97	\$12.16	\$0.00	\$51.32
5	80	\$34.34	\$6.97	\$12.97	\$0.00	\$54.28
6	85	\$36.48	\$6.97	\$13.78	\$0.00	\$57.23
7	90	\$38.63	\$6.97	\$14.59	\$0.00	\$60.19
8	95	\$40.77	\$6.97	\$15.40	\$0.00	\$63.14

### Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5

BRICK/STONE/ARTIFICIAL MASONRY (INCL. MASONRY	08/01/2017	\$52.06	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$82.16
WATERPROOFING) BRICKLAYERS LOCAL 3 (NEWTON)	02/01/2018	\$52.74	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$82.84
, ,	08/01/2018	\$54.09	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$84.32
	02/01/2019	\$54.73	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$84.96
	08/01/2019	\$56.08	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$86.45
	02/01/2020	\$56.72	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$87.09
	08/01/2020	\$58.07	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$88.59
	02/01/2021	\$58.71	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$89.23
	08/01/2021	\$60.11	\$10.75	\$19.93	\$0.00	\$90.79
	02/01/2022	\$60.70	\$10.75	\$19.93	\$0.00	\$91.38

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 3 of 33** 

Pension

		ve Date - 08/01/2017	T MASON - Local 3 Newton			Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$26.03	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$56.13	
	2	60	\$31.24	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$61.34	
	3	70	\$36.44	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$66.54	
	4	80	\$41.65	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$71.75	
	5	90	\$46.85	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$76.95	
		ve Date - 02/01/2018				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$26.37	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$56.47	
	2	60	\$31.64	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$61.74	
	3	70	\$36.92	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$67.02	
	4	80	\$42.19	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$72.29	
	5	90	\$47.47	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$77.57	
	Notes:							
							į	
	Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5						
		R/SCRAPER	06/01/2017	7 \$45.9	3 \$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.1
RATING ENGINE For apprentice		Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2017	7 \$46.9	2 \$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.1
	NDERP	INNING BOTTOM MAN	12/01/2016	6 \$37.4	5 \$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$59.4
		Apprentice- LABORER"						
SSON & UI	NDERP	INNING LABORER  AND MARINE	12/01/2010	6 \$36.3	0 \$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$58.2
		Apprentice- LABORER"						
SSON & UI		INNING TOP MAN AND MARINE	12/01/2010	6 \$36.3	0 \$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$58.2
For apprentice	rates see '	Apprentice- LABORER"						
		LL OPERATOR	06/01/2017	7 \$37.1	0 \$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.3
ORERS - ZONE	E 1		12/01/2017	7 \$37.9	5 \$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.2
			06/01/2018	8 \$38.9	0 \$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.1
				8 \$39.8	5 \$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.1
			12/01/2018	υ ψ37.0				
			12/01/2018 06/01/2019		5 \$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.1
				9 \$40.8		\$14.65 \$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00	
	rates see '	Apprentice- LABORER"	06/01/2019	9 \$40.8				
PENTER			06/01/2019	9 \$40.8 9 \$41.8	5 \$7.60	\$14.65 \$17.50		\$64.1
RPENTER		Apprentice- LABORER"  vern Massachusetts)	06/01/2019 12/01/2019	9 \$40.8 9 \$41.8 7 \$39.2	\$7.60 8 \$9.90	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10 \$64.10 \$66.60 \$67.60

**Apprentice -** CARPENTER - Zone 2 Eastern MA

Effecti Step	ive Date - 09/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	50	\$19.64	\$9.90	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$31.27	
2	60	\$23.57	\$9.90	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$35.20	
3	70	\$27.50	\$9.90	\$12.31	\$0.00	\$49.71	
4	75	\$29.46	\$9.90	\$12.31	\$0.00	\$51.67	
5	80	\$31.42	\$9.90	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$55.36	
6	80	\$31.42	\$9.90	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$55.36	
7	90	\$35.35	\$9.90	\$15.77	\$0.00	\$61.02	
8	90	\$35.35	\$9.90	\$15.77	\$0.00	\$61.02	
	ive Date - 03/01/2018	Apprentice Base Wage	Haalth	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
Step	percent	**					
1	50	\$20.14	\$9.90	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$31.77	
2	60	\$24.17	\$9.90	\$1.73	\$0.00	\$35.80	
3	70	\$28.20	\$9.90	\$12.31	\$0.00	\$50.41	
4	75	\$30.21	\$9.90	\$12.31	\$0.00	\$52.42	
5	80	\$32.22	\$9.90	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$56.16	
6	80	\$32.22	\$9.90	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$56.16	
7	90	\$36.25	\$9.90	\$15.77	\$0.00	\$61.92	
8	90	\$36.25	\$9.90	\$15.77	\$0.00	\$61.92	
Notes:							
Appre	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:						
ENT MASONRY		07/01/2017	\$47.40	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$80.31
LAYERS LOCAL 3 (NI	EWTON)	01/01/2018	\$48.17	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$81.08
		07/01/2018	\$49.56	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$82.47
		01/01/2019	\$50.30	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$83.21
		07/01/2019	\$51.69	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$84.60
		01/01/2020	\$52.44	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$85.35

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 5 of 33** 

Effective Date Base Wage Health

Pension

	Effecti	ve Date -	07/01/2017				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$23.70	\$12.20	\$12.41	\$0.00	\$48.31	
	2	60		\$28.44	\$12.20	\$14.41	\$1.30	\$56.35	
	3	65		\$30.81	\$12.20	\$15.41	\$1.30	\$59.72	
	4	70		\$33.18	\$12.20	\$16.41	\$1.30	\$63.09	
	5	75		\$35.55	\$12.20	\$17.41	\$1.30	\$66.46	
	6	80		\$37.92	\$12.20	\$18.41	\$1.30	\$69.83	
	7	90		\$42.66	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$75.57	
	Effecti	ve Date -	01/01/2018				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$24.09	\$12.20	\$12.41	\$0.00	\$48.70	
	2	60		\$28.90	\$12.20	\$14.41	\$1.30	\$56.81	
	3	65		\$31.31	\$12.20	\$15.41	\$1.30	\$60.22	
	4	70		\$33.72	\$12.20	\$16.41	\$1.30	\$63.63	
	5	75		\$36.13	\$12.20	\$17.41	\$1.30	\$67.04	
	6	80		\$38.54	\$12.20	\$18.41	\$1.30	\$70.45	
	7	90		\$43.35	\$12.20	\$19.41	\$1.30	\$76.26	
	Notes:		are 500 hrs. All other steps an	re 1,000 hrs.					
	Appre	ntice to Jo	urneyworker Ratio:1:3						
AIN SAW (		TOR		06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
OKEKS - ZOM	L I			12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
				06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
				12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
				06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
For annual:	ratas sas !	Annrartica	ADODED"	12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice AM SHELL			ETS/HEADING MACHINE	S 06/01/2017	7 \$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
ERATING ENG	INEERS LO	OCAL 4		12/01/2017			\$15.25	\$0.00	\$73.63
For apprentice	e rates see '	'Apprentice- C	PERATING ENGINEERS"						
MPRESSOI				06/01/2017	7 \$31.86	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.11
ERATING ENG.			DPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2017	\$32.55	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.80
ELEADER (I				01/01/2013	7 \$51.41	\$7.85	\$16.10	\$0.00	\$75.36
INTERS LOCAL		/		01/01/201	Ψ.Σ1.Τ1	Ψ1.03	4.0.10	-0.00	Ψ13.30

**Apprentice -** CEMENT MASONRY/PLASTERING - Eastern Mass (Newton)

**Apprentice -** PAINTER Local 35 - BRIDGES/TANKS

E	<b>Effective Date -</b> 01/01/2017				Supplemental		
	tep percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1 50	\$25.71	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$33.56	
2	2 55	\$28.28	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$39.79	
3	3 60	\$30.85	\$7.85	\$3.99	\$0.00	\$42.69	
2	4 65	\$33.42	\$7.85	\$4.32	\$0.00	\$45.59	
5	5 70	\$35.99	\$7.85	\$14.11	\$0.00	\$57.95	
(	5 75	\$38.56	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$60.85	
7	7 80	\$41.13	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$63.75	
8	3 90	\$46.27	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$69.56	
N							
į	Steps are 750 hrs.						
A	apprentice to Journeyworker	Ratio:1:1					
DEMO: ADZEMA LABORERS - ZONE I	AN	06/01/2017	\$37.00	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.25
adureks - ZUNE I		12/01/2017	\$37.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.10
		06/01/2018	\$38.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.05
		12/01/2018	\$39.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.00
		06/01/2019	\$40.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.00
For apprentice rate	es see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2019	\$41.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"  EMO: BACKHOE/LOADER/HAMMER OPERATOR  ROBERS ZONE I		RATOR 06/01/2017	\$38.00	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.25
ABORERS - ZONE 1		12/01/2017	\$38.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.10
		06/01/2018	\$39.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.05
		12/01/2018	\$40.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.00
		06/01/2019	\$41.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.00
For apprentice rate	es see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2019	\$42.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$65.00
DEMO: BURNER		06/01/2017	\$37.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.00
ABORERS - ZONE 1		12/01/2017			\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.85
		06/01/2018	\$39.55	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.80
		12/01/2018	\$40.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.75
		06/01/2019	\$41.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.75
		12/01/2019	\$42.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.75
For apprentice rate	es see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: CONCRE Aborers - zone 1	ETE CUTTER/SAWYER	06/01/2017	\$38.00	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.25
ADOREKS - ZUNE I		12/01/2017	\$38.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.10
		06/01/2018	\$39.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.05
		12/01/2018	\$40.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.00
		06/01/2019	\$41.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.00
For appropriace act	es see "Annrentice I ADODED"	12/01/2019	\$42.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$65.00
For apprentice rate	es see "Apprentice- LABORER"						

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
DEMO: JACKHAMMER OPERATOR	06/01/2017	\$37.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.00
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2017	\$38.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.85
	06/01/2018	\$39.55	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.80
	12/01/2018	\$40.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.75
	06/01/2019	\$41.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.75
	12/01/2019	\$42.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.75
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DEMO: WRECKING LABORER	06/01/2017	\$37.00	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.25
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$37.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.10
	06/01/2018	\$38.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.05
	12/01/2018	\$39.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.00
	06/01/2019	\$40.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.00
	12/01/2019	\$41.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
DIRECTIONAL DRILL MACHINE OPERATOR  OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2017	\$45.93	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.18
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$46.92	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.17
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
DIVER PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2015	\$58.86	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$87.89
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER TENDER PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2015	\$42.04	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$71.07
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER TENDER (EFFLUENT) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2015	\$63.06	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$92.09
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DIVER/SLURRY (EFFLUENT) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)	08/01/2015	\$88.23	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$117.26
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"						
DRAWBRIDGE OPERATOR (Construction)	09/01/2017	\$49.28	\$13.00	\$17.48	\$0.00	\$79.76
ELECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	03/01/2018	\$50.15	\$13.00	\$17.85	\$0.00	\$81.00
	09/01/2018	\$51.34	\$13.00	\$17.89	\$0.00	\$82.23
	03/01/2019	\$52.53	\$13.00	\$17.93	\$0.00	\$83.46
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- ELECTRICIAN"	25, 01, 2019		<b>+-2.00</b>			+00
ELECTRICIAN	09/01/2017	\$49.28	\$13.00	\$17.48	\$0.00	\$79.76
ELECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	03/01/2018	\$50.15	\$13.00	\$17.85	\$0.00	\$81.00
	09/01/2018	\$51.34	\$13.00	\$17.89	\$0.00	\$82.23
	03/01/2019	\$52.53	\$13.00	\$17.93	\$0.00	\$83.46

 Issue Date:
 09/15/2017
 Wage Request Number:
 20170915-025
 Page 8 of 33

ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR

ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTORS LOCAL 4

Pension

\$15.71

\$15.28

\$0.00

\$86.85

Step	tive Date - 09/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40	\$19.71	\$13.00	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$33.30
2	40	\$19.71	\$13.00	\$0.59	\$0.00	\$33.30
3	45	\$22.18	\$13.00	\$13.39	\$0.00	\$48.57
4	45	\$22.18	\$13.00	\$13.39	\$0.00	\$48.57
5	50	\$24.64	\$13.00	\$13.76	\$0.00	\$51.40
6	55	\$27.10	\$13.00	\$14.12	\$0.00	\$54.22
7	60	\$29.57	\$13.00	\$14.50	\$0.00	\$57.07
8	65	\$32.03	\$13.00	\$14.87	\$0.00	\$59.90
9	70	\$34.50	\$13.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$62.75
10	75	\$36.96	\$13.00	\$15.62	\$0.00	\$65.58
Effect	tive Date - 03/01/2018				Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40	\$20.06	\$13.00	\$0.60	\$0.00	\$33.66
2	40	\$20.06	\$13.00	\$0.60	\$0.00	\$33.66
3	45	\$22.57	\$13.00	\$13.61	\$0.00	\$49.18
4	45	\$22.57	\$13.00	\$13.61	\$0.00	\$49.18
	50	\$25.08	\$13.00	\$13.99	\$0.00	\$52.07
5		\$27.58	\$13.00	\$14.38	\$0.00	\$54.96
5 6	55	\$27.50				0.57.05
	55 60	\$30.09	\$13.00	\$14.76	\$0.00	\$57.85
6				\$14.76 \$15.15	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$57.85 \$60.75
6 7	60	\$30.09	\$13.00			
6 7 8	60 65	\$30.09 \$32.60	\$13.00 \$13.00	\$15.15	\$0.00	\$60.75

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 20170915-025 **Wage Request Number:** Page 9 of 33

01/01/2017

\$55.86

**Apprentice -** ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR - Local 4

Supplemental

**Total Rate** 

		tive Date - 01/01/2017				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Tota	al Rate
	1	50	\$27.93	\$15.28	\$0.00	\$0.00	:	\$43.21
	2	55	\$30.72	\$15.28	\$15.71	\$0.00	:	\$61.71
	3	65	\$36.31	\$15.28	\$15.71	\$0.00	:	\$67.30
	4	70	\$39.10	\$15.28	\$15.71	\$0.00	:	\$70.09
	5	80	\$44.69	\$15.28	\$15.71	\$0.00	:	\$75.68
	Notes	: Steps 1-2 are 6 mos.; Steps 3-5	are 1 year					- <del>-</del>
	Appro	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:						- <u></u> '
ELEVATOR C		RUCTOR HELPER rs local 4	01/01/2017	7 \$39.10	\$15.28	\$15.71	\$0.00	\$70.09
For apprentice	e rates see	"Apprentice - ELEVATOR CONSTRUCT	OR"					
FENCE & GU. Laborers - zon		AIL ERECTOR	06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
adukeks - zun	E I		12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
			06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
			12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
			06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
			12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"  ELD ENG.INST.PERSON-BLDG,SITE,HVY/HWY  PERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4		05/01/2017	7 \$42.15	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$67.40	
			11/01/2017	7 \$42.88	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$68.13
For apprentice	e rates see	"Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	05/01/2018	3 \$43.59	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$68.84
		CHIEF-BLDG,SITE,HVY/HWY	05/01/2017	7 \$42.61	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$68.86
OPERATING ENG			11/01/2017			\$15.25 \$15.25	\$0.00	
			05/01/2018	,		\$15.25 \$15.25	\$0.00	\$69.59
For apprentice	e rates see	"Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"		3 \$45.06	\$10.00	\$13.23	\$0.00	\$70.31
FIELD ENG.R	OD PEI	RSON-BLDG,SITE,HVY/HWY	05/01/2017	7 \$22.41	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$47.66
OPERATING ENG	SINEERS L	LOCAL 4	11/01/2017			\$15.25	\$0.00	\$48.08
			05/01/2018	3 \$23.26	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$48.51
For apprentice	e rates see	"Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	1					
FIRE ALARM			09/01/2017	7 \$49.28	\$13.00	\$17.48	\$0.00	\$79.76
ELECTRICIANS L	OCAL 103	)	03/01/2018	\$50.15	\$13.00	\$17.85	\$0.00	\$81.00
			09/01/2018	\$51.34	\$13.00	\$17.89	\$0.00	\$82.23
			03/01/2019	\$52.53	\$13.00	\$17.93	\$0.00	\$83.46
		"Apprentice- ELECTRICIAN"						
IKE ALARM	KEPAL	R / MAINTENANCE / COMMISSIONING <i>ELECTRICI</i>	09/01/2017			\$15.62	\$0.00	\$65.58
OCAL 103		, COMMINGELECTRICI	03/01/2018	\$37.61	\$13.00	\$15.93	\$0.00	\$66.54
			09/01/2018	\$38.51	\$13.00	\$15.96	\$0.00	\$67.47
			03/01/2019	\$39.40	\$13.00	\$15.98	\$0.00	\$68.38

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
FIREMAN (ASST. ENGINEER)	06/01/2017	\$38.49	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$63.74
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$39.32	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$64.57
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
FLAGGER & SIGNALER	06/01/2017	\$20.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$42.75
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$21.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$43.75
	06/01/2018	\$21.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$43.75
	12/01/2018	\$22.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$44.75
	06/01/2019	\$22.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$44.75
	12/01/2019	\$23.50	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$45.75
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
FLOORCOVERER FLOORCOVERERS LOCAL 2168 ZONE I	03/01/2016	\$42.13	\$9.80	\$17.62	\$0.00	\$69.55

	Effect Step	ive Date - 03/01/2016  percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rat	e.
	$\frac{\text{step}}{1}$	50	\$21.07	\$9.80	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$32.6	
	2	55	\$23.17	\$9.80	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$32.0 \$34.7	
	3	60	\$25.28	\$9.80	\$1.79	\$0.00	\$47.3	
	4	65	\$23.28 \$27.38	\$9.80	\$12.25 \$12.25	\$0.00	\$47.3 \$49.4	
	5	70						
	6	75 75	\$29.49	\$9.80	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$53.3	
	7		\$31.60	\$9.80	\$14.04	\$0.00	\$55.4	
		80	\$33.70	\$9.80	\$15.83	\$0.00	\$59.3	
	8	85	\$35.81	\$9.80	\$15.83	\$0.00	\$61.4	4
	Notes:	- — — — — — — — — -						
		Steps are 750 hrs.						
	Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1					'	
ORK LIFT/C			06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
PERATING ENC	GINEERS L	OCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
For apprentic	e rates see	"Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
ENERATOR PERATING ENC		ING PLANT/HEATERS	06/01/2017	\$31.86	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.11
			12/01/2017	\$32.55	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.80
For apprentic	e rates see	"Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
LAZIER (GI 'STEMS)	LASS PL	ANK/AIR BARRIER/INTERIOR	01/01/2017	\$40.91	\$7.85	\$16.10	\$0.00	\$64.86

 Issue Date:
 09/15/2017
 Wage Request Number:
 20170915-025
 Page 11 of 33

Step	percent 01/01/2017	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
$\frac{\text{step}}{1}$	50	\$20.46	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.31
2	55					
3	60	\$22.50	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$34.01
4	65	\$24.55 \$26.59	\$7.85 \$7.85	\$3.99 \$4.32	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.39 \$38.76
5	70	\$28.64	\$7.85 \$7.85	\$4.32 \$14.11	\$0.00	\$50.60
6	75	\$30.68	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$52.97
7	80	\$32.73	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$55.35
8	90	\$36.82	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$60.11
Note	s:					
	Steps are 750 hrs.					l I
App	rentice to Journeyworker Ratio	:1:1				'
	ER/CRANES/GRADALLS	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00 \$71.6
ERATING ENGINEERS	LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00 \$72.6

12/01/2017

\$47.38

\$10.00

\$15.25

\$0.00

\$72.63

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 12 of 33 **Apprentice -** OPERATING ENGINEERS - Local 4

Pension

Unemployment

**Total Rate** 

	Effecti	ve Date - 06/01/2017				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rat	e
	1	55	\$25.51	\$10.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$35.5	1
	2	60	\$27.83	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$53.0	8
	3	65	\$30.15	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$55.4	0
	4	70	\$32.47	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.7	2
	5	75	\$34.79	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$60.0	4
	6	80	\$37.10	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$62.3	5
	7	85	\$39.42	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$64.6	7
	8	90	\$41.74	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$66.9	9
		ve Date - 12/01/2017		77 14	<b>D</b> .	Supplemental	T . 1 D .	
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage		Pension	Unemployment	Total Rat	
	1	55	\$26.06	\$10.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$36.0	
	2	60	\$28.43	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$53.6	
	3	65	\$30.80	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$56.0	5
	4	70	\$33.17	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$58.4	2
	5	75	\$35.54	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$60.7	9
	6	80	\$37.90	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$63.1	5
	7	85	\$40.27	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$65.5	2
	8	90	\$42.64	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$67.8	9
	Notes:							
VAC (DUCT		ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:6	00/01/2012	7 042.02	<b>011.45</b>	\$24.02	¢2.20	<b>#01.60</b>
VAC (DOCT HEETMETAL WO			08/01/2017			\$24.03	\$2.38	\$81.69
For apprentice	rates see "	Apprentice- SHEET METAL WORKER"	02/01/2018	8 \$44.98	\$11.45	\$24.03	\$2.38	\$82.84
		CONTROLS)	09/01/2017	7 \$49.28	\$13.00	\$17.48	\$0.00	\$79.76
LECTRICIANS LO	OCAL 103		03/01/2018	\$50.15	\$13.00	\$17.85	\$0.00	\$81.00
			09/01/2018	8 \$51.34	\$13.00	\$17.89	\$0.00	\$82.23
For apprentice	rates see "	'Apprentice- ELECTRICIAN"	03/01/2019	9 \$52.53	\$13.00	\$17.93	\$0.00	\$83.46
VAC (TESTI	NG ANI	D BALANCING - AIR)	08/01/2017	7 \$43.83	\$11.45	\$24.03	\$2.38	\$81.69
HEETMETAL WO			02/01/2018	8 \$44.98	\$11.45	\$24.03	\$2.38	\$82.84
		Apprentice- SHEET METAL WORKER"				***	*	
VAC (TESTI PEFITTERS LOC		D BALANCING -WATER)	03/01/2017	7 \$51.19	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00	\$79.03
For apprentice	rates see "	Apprentice- PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER/PIPE	FITTER"					
VAC MECHA			03/01/2017	7 \$51.19	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00	\$79.03

							A
		12/01/201	8 \$40.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.60
		06/01/201	9 \$41.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.60
		12/01/201	9 \$42.35	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.60
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"							
SULATOR (PIPES & TANKS) AT & FROST INSULATORS LOCAL 6 (BOSTON)		09/01/201	7 \$47.09	\$11.75	\$14.20	\$0.00	\$73.04
		09/01/201	8 \$49.34	\$11.75	\$14.20	\$0.00	\$75.29
		09/01/201	9 \$51.84	\$11.75	\$14.20	\$0.00	\$77.79
	. ACDECTAC INCLUATA	OR (Pipes & Tanks) - Local 6 Bo	and and				
Appre	entice - ASDESTOS INSULATO	Эк (Pipes & Tanks) - Locai о во	oston				
Effect	ive Date - 09/01/2017						
	ive Date - 09/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
Effect Step					* *		
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage \$23.55 \$28.25	Health \$11.75 \$11.75	Pension \$10.45 \$11.20	Unemployment	Total Rate \$45.75 \$51.20	
Step 1	percent 50	\$23.55	\$11.75	\$10.45	Unemployment \$0.00	\$45.75	
Step 1 2	50 60	\$23.55 \$28.25	\$11.75 \$11.75	\$10.45 \$11.20	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$45.75 \$51.20	
Step 1 2 3 4	percent 50 60 70	\$23.55 \$28.25 \$32.96	\$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75	\$10.45 \$11.20 \$11.95	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$45.75 \$51.20 \$56.66	
Step 1 2 3 4	percent 50 60 70 80	\$23.55 \$28.25 \$32.96	\$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75	\$10.45 \$11.20 \$11.95	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$45.75 \$51.20 \$56.66	
Step 1 2 3 4 Effect	percent  50  60  70  80  ive Date - 09/01/2018	\$23.55 \$28.25 \$32.96 \$37.67	\$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75	\$10.45 \$11.20 \$11.95 \$12.70	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$45.75 \$51.20 \$56.66 \$62.12	
Step  1 2 3 4  Effect Step	percent  50  60  70  80  ive Date - 09/01/2018  percent	\$23.55 \$28.25 \$32.96 \$37.67 Apprentice Base Wage	\$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 Health	\$10.45 \$11.20 \$11.95 \$12.70	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 Supplemental Unemployment	\$45.75 \$51.20 \$56.66 \$62.12	
Step  1 2 3 4  Effect Step 1	percent  50  60  70  80  ive Date - 09/01/2018  percent  50	\$23.55 \$28.25 \$32.96 \$37.67 Apprentice Base Wage	\$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 \$11.75 Health	\$10.45 \$11.20 \$11.95 \$12.70 Pension \$10.45	Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$45.75 \$51.20 \$56.66 \$62.12 Total Rate \$46.87	

03/16/2017

\$44.65

\$7.80

**Effective Date** 

06/01/2017

12/01/2017

06/01/2018

Base Wage

\$37.60

\$38.45

\$39.40

Health

\$7.60

\$7.60

\$7.60

Classification

LABORERS - ZONE 1

HYDRAULIC DRILLS

Notes:

IRONWORKER/WELDER

IRONWORKERS LOCAL 7 (BOSTON AREA)

Steps are 1 year

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:4

Supplemental

\$0.00

\$0.00

\$0.00

\$0.00

\$73.30

\$20.85

Unemployment

Pension

\$14.65

\$14.65

\$14.65

**Total Rate** 

\$59.85

\$60.70

\$61.65

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 14 of 33** 

Pension

Apprentice - Effective Da	IRONWORKER - Local 7 Bo. te - 03/16/2017	ston					
Step perc		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
1 60		\$26.79	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$55.44	
2 70		\$31.26	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$59.91	
3 75		\$33.49	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$62.14	
4 80		\$35.72	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$64.37	
5 85		\$37.95	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$66.60	
6 90		\$40.19	\$7.80	\$20.85	\$0.00	\$68.84	
Notes:	tructural 1:6; Ornamental 1:4						
Apprentice t	to Journeyworker Ratio:**					'	
ACKHAMMER & PAVING BREAKER OPERATOR		06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
ABORERS - ZONE 1		12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
		06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
		12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
		06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
		12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Appren	tice- LABORER"						
LABORER LABORERS - ZONE 1		06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
EIDORERS ZONE I		12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
		06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
		12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
		06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
		12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 15 of 33

		ve Date - 06/01/2					Supplemental		
	Step	percent	A	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	60		\$22.11	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$44.36	
	2	70		\$25.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$48.05	
	3	80		\$29.48	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$51.73	
	4	90		\$33.17	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$55.42	
		ve Date - 12/01/2					Supplemental		
	Step	percent	<i>A</i>	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	60		\$22.62	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$44.87	
	2	70		\$26.39	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$48.64	
	3	80		\$30.16	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$52.41	
	4	90		\$33.93	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$56.18	
	Notes:								
								į	
	Appre	ntice to Journeywor	rker Ratio:1:5						
LABORER: CA		ER TENDER		06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
LABORERS - ZONI	E I			12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
				06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
				12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
				06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
For apprentice	e rates see '	Apprentice- LABORER"		12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
LABORER: CI	EMENT	FINISHER TENDE	R	06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
LABORERS - ZONI	E I			12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
				06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
				12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
				06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
				12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
For apprentice		Apprentice- LABORER"							
		OUS WASTE/ASBE	ESTOS REMOVER	06/01/2017	\$37.00	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.25
				12/01/2017	\$37.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.10
				06/01/2018	\$38.80	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.05
				12/01/2018	\$39.75	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.00
LABORER: HA LABORERS - ZONI				12/01/2018 06/01/2019		\$7.60 \$7.60	\$14.65 \$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$62.00 \$63.00

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
LABORER: MASON TENDER	06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
	06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
	12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
	06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
	12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
LABORER: MULTI-TRADE TENDER	06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
	06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
	12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
	06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
	12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
LABORER: TREE REMOVER LABORERS - ZONE I	06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
	06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
	12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
	06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
	12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
This classification applies to all tree work associated with the removal of standing t a utility company for the purpose of operation, maintenance or repair of utility com					s not done for	
LASER BEAM OPERATOR	06/01/2017	\$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
LABORERS - ZONE I	12/01/2017	\$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
	06/01/2018	\$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
	12/01/2018	\$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
	06/01/2019	\$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
	12/01/2019	\$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2019	ψ-1.03	\$7.00	Ψ11.05	ψ0.00	<b>ФО</b> 4.10
	08/01/2017	\$39.82	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$68.37
MARBLE & TILE FINISHERS	00/01/201/	\$39.04	Ψ10./3			\$UO.57
MARBLE & TILE FINISHERS  BRICKLAYERS LOCAL 3 - MARBLE & TILE					\$0.00	
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018	\$40.36 \$41.44	\$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93		\$68.91 \$70.12
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018	\$40.36 \$41.44	\$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93	\$0.00	\$68.91
	02/01/2018	\$40.36 \$41.44 \$41.95	\$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.91 \$70.12 \$70.63
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018 02/01/2019 08/01/2019	\$40.36 \$41.44 \$41.95 \$43.03	\$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93 \$17.93 \$18.07	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.91 \$70.12 \$70.63 \$71.85
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018 02/01/2019 08/01/2019 02/01/2020	\$40.36 \$41.44 \$41.95 \$43.03 \$43.54	\$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93 \$17.93 \$18.07	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.91 \$70.12 \$70.63 \$71.85 \$72.36
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018 02/01/2019 08/01/2019 02/01/2020 08/01/2020	\$40.36 \$41.44 \$41.95 \$43.03 \$43.54 \$44.62	\$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93 \$17.93 \$18.07 \$18.07 \$18.22	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.91 \$70.12 \$70.63 \$71.85 \$72.36 \$73.59
	02/01/2018 08/01/2018 02/01/2019 08/01/2019 02/01/2020	\$40.36 \$41.44 \$41.95 \$43.03 \$43.54	\$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75 \$10.75	\$17.80 \$17.93 \$17.93 \$18.07	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$68.91 \$70.12 \$70.63 \$71.85 \$72.36

 Issue Date:
 09/15/2017
 Wage Request Number:
 20170915-025
 Page 17 of 33

		ntice - MA	ARBLE & TILE FINISHER - 08/01/2017	- Local 3 Marble & Tile			Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	e
	1	50		\$19.91	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$48.46	
	2	60		\$23.89	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$52.44	1
	3	70		\$27.87	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$56.42	2
	4	80		\$31.86	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$60.41	ĺ
	5	90		\$35.84	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$64.39	)
	Effecti Step	ve Date -	02/01/2018	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	e
	1	50		\$20.18	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$48.73	3
	2	60		\$24.22	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$52.77	
	3	70		\$28.25	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$56.80	)
	4	80		\$32.29	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$60.84	1
	5	90		\$36.32	\$10.75	\$17.80	\$0.00	\$64.87	7
	Notes:								
								i	
	Appre	ntice to Jou	irneyworker Ratio:1:3						
	-		S & TERRAZZO MECH	08/01/2017	7 \$52.10	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$82.20
BRICKLAYERS LOC	CAL 3 - M	ARBLE & TIL.	E	02/01/2018	\$52.78	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$82.88
				08/01/2018	\$54.13	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$84.36
				02/01/2019	\$54.75	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$84.98
				08/01/2019	\$56.10	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$86.47
				02/01/2020	\$56.73	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$87.10
				08/01/2020	\$58.08	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$88.60
				02/01/2021	\$58.72	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$89.24
				08/01/2021	\$60.12	\$10.75	\$19.93	\$0.00	\$90.80

02/01/2022

\$60.69

\$10.75

\$19.93

\$0.00

\$91.37

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 18 of 33

	Step	ive Date - 08/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rat	te
	1	50	\$26.05	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$56.1	5
	2	60	\$31.26	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$61.3	6
	3	70	\$36.47	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$66.5	7
	4	80	\$41.68	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$71.7	8
	5	90	\$46.89	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$76.9	9
	Effect	ive Date - 02/01/2018				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rat	te
	1	50	\$26.39	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$56.4	.9
	2	60	\$31.67	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$61.7	7
	3	70	\$36.95	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$67.0	15
	4	80	\$42.22	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$72.3	2
	5	90	\$47.50	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$77.6	0
	Notes:							
	Annre	ntice to Journeyworker Rat	io:1·5					
CH SWE		ERATOR (ON CONST. SIT		7 045.00	¢10.00	¢15.25	£0.00	671.10
ERATING EN		*	00/01/201			\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.18
For apprentic	e rates see	'Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINE	12/01/2017 EERS"	7 \$46.92	2 \$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.17
ECHANICS	MAINT	ENANCE	06/01/2017	7 \$45.93	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.18
ERATING EN	GINEERS L	OCAL 4	12/01/2017			\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.17
For apprentic	e rates see	'Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINE	EERS"					
LLWRIGH			04/01/2017	\$38.62	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$67.02
LWKIGHIS L	OCAL 1121	- ZONE I	10/01/2017	7 \$39.52	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$67.92
			04/01/2018	\$40.42	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$68.82
			10/01/2018	\$41.32	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$69.72
			04/01/2019	\$42.22	\$9.90	\$18.50	\$0.00	\$70.62

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 19 of 33

PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2

Pension

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 20 of 33

Apprentice -	PAINTER Local 35	- BRIDGES/TANKS
Effective Date	01/01/2017	

Effecti	ive Date - 01/01/2017				Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50	\$25.71	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$33.56
2	55	\$28.28	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$39.79
3	60	\$30.85	\$7.85	\$3.99	\$0.00	\$42.69
4	65	\$33.42	\$7.85	\$4.32	\$0.00	\$45.59
5	70	\$35.99	\$7.85	\$14.11	\$0.00	\$57.95
6	75	\$38.56	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$60.85
7	80	\$41.13	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$63.75
8	90	\$46.27	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$69.56
Notes:						
	Steps are 750 hrs.					
Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1					
AY OR	R SANDBLAST, NEW) *	01/01/2017	\$42.31	\$7.85	\$16.10 \$	50.00 \$66.2

**PAINTER** 

\* If 30% or more of surfaces to be painted are new construction,

NEW paint rate shall be used. PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2

**Apprentice -** PAINTER Local 35 Zone 2 - Spray/Sandblast - New

Effectiv	ve Date - 01/01/2017				Supplemental	
Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50	\$21.16	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$29.01
2	55	\$23.27	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$34.78
3	60	\$25.39	\$7.85	\$3.99	\$0.00	\$37.23
4	65	\$27.50	\$7.85	\$4.32	\$0.00	\$39.67
5	70	\$29.62	\$7.85	\$14.11	\$0.00	\$51.58
6	75	\$31.73	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$54.02
7	80	\$33.85	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$56.47
8	90	\$38.08	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$61.37
Notes:	Steps are 750 hrs.					
Apprer	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1					
PAINTER (SPRAY OR PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE	SANDBLAST, REPAINT)	01/01/2017	\$40.3	7 \$7.85	\$16.10	0.00 \$64.32

Page 21 of 33

Notes:

PAINTER / TAPER (BRUSH, REPAINT)

PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2

Steps are 750 hrs.

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1

	mectiv	<b>e Date -</b> 01/01/2	2017				Supplemental		
S	tep	percent	1	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
1	1	50		\$20.19	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$28.04	
2	2	55		\$22.20	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$33.71	
3	3	60		\$24.22	\$7.85	\$3.99	\$0.00	\$36.06	
4	1	65		\$26.24	\$7.85	\$4.32	\$0.00	\$38.41	
5	5	70		\$28.26	\$7.85	\$14.11	\$0.00	\$50.22	
6	5	75		\$30.28	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$52.57	
7	7	80		\$32.30	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$54.92	
8	3	90		\$36.33	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$59.62	
N	lotes:								
		Steps are 750 hrs.							
		tice to Journeywo	rker Ratio:1:1						
TER (TRAF: RERS - ZONE 1	FIC M	IARKINGS)		06/01/2017	\$36.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.10
KERS - ZONE I				12/01/2017	\$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.95
				06/01/2018	\$38.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.90
				12/01/2018	\$39.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.85
				06/01/2019	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
				12/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
or Apprentice rat	tes see "	Apprentice- LABORER	"	12/01/2015	ψ.1.00				\$05.6.
TER / TAPE	ER (BR	Apprentice- LABORER RUSH, NEW) * aces to be painted a used. PAINTERS LOCA	re new construction,	01/01/2013		\$7.85	\$16.10	\$0.00	
TER / TAPE 0% or more of paint rate shape  A	ER (BR of surf all be appren	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017 RUSH NEW	7 \$40.91		\$16.10	\$0.00	
TER / TAPE 0% or more of paint rate shape  A E	ER (BR of surfa all be appren	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage	7 \$40.91 Health	Pension	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment	\$0.00 Total Rate	\$64.80
TER / TAPE 0% or more of paint rate shape  A E S 1	ER (BR of surfi	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2 percent	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46	7 \$40.91 Health \$7.85	Pension \$0.00	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00	\$0.00 Total Rate \$28.31	
TTER / TAPE 0% or more of paint rate sh  A E S 1	ER (BR of surfa all be  appren  affective tep	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2 percent	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46 \$22.50	Health \$7.85 \$7.85	Pension \$0.00 \$3.66	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00  Total Rate \$28.31 \$34.01	
TTER / TAPE  0% or more of paint rate sh  A  E  S  1	ER (BR of surfa all be appren Effective tep	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2 percent  50 55 60	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46 \$22.50 \$24.55	Health \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85	Pension \$0.00 \$3.66 \$3.99	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00 Total Rate \$28.31 \$34.01 \$36.39	
A E S S A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	ER (BR of surfa all be appren Effective tep 1 2 3 4	tice - PAINTER -  Pe Date - 01/01/2  percent  50  55  60  65	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46 \$22.50 \$24.55 \$26.59	Health \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85	Pension \$0.00 \$3.66 \$3.99 \$4.32	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00 Total Rate \$28.31 \$34.01 \$36.39 \$38.76	
A E S A E S A E S A E S A E S A 5	ER (BR of surficiall be	tice - PAINTER - 01/01/2 percent  50 55 60 65 70	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46 \$22.50 \$24.55 \$26.59 \$28.64	Health \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85	Pension \$0.00 \$3.66 \$3.99 \$4.32 \$14.11	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00  Total Rate \$28.31 \$34.01 \$36.39 \$38.76 \$50.60	
NTER / TAPE 30% or more of V paint rate sh  A E S 1 2 3 4	ER (BR of surficial) be appren Effective tep 1 2 3 4 5	tice - PAINTER -  Pe Date - 01/01/2  percent  50  55  60  65	Local 35 Zone 2 - B	01/01/2017  RUSH NEW  Apprentice Base Wage \$20.46 \$22.50 \$24.55 \$26.59	Health \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85 \$7.85	Pension \$0.00 \$3.66 \$3.99 \$4.32	\$16.10  Supplemental Unemployment  \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$0.00  Total Rate \$28.31 \$34.01 \$36.39 \$38.76	

01/01/2017

\$38.97

\$7.85

\$16.10

\$0.00

\$62.92

\$0.00

\$71.07

\$79.03

\$19.23

\$18.14

\$0.00

\$9.70

\$9.80

**Total Rate** 

PILE DRIVER

PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZONE 1)

PIPEFITTER & STEAMFITTER

PIPEFITTERS LOCAL 537

Appre	ntice - PAINTER Local 35 Zone	2 - BRUSH REPAINT					
<b>Effect</b> Step	ive Date - 01/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total	Rate
1	50	\$19.49	\$7.85	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$2	27.34
2	55	\$21.43	\$7.85	\$3.66	\$0.00	\$3	32.94
3	60	\$23.38	\$7.85	\$3.99	\$0.00	\$3	35.22
4	65	\$25.33	\$7.85	\$4.32	\$0.00	\$3	37.50
5	70	\$27.28	\$7.85	\$14.11	\$0.00	\$4	19.24
6	75	\$29.23	\$7.85	\$14.44	\$0.00	\$5	51.52
7	80	\$31.18	\$7.85	\$14.77	\$0.00	\$5	53.80
8	90	\$35.07	\$7.85	\$15.44	\$0.00	\$5	58.36
Notes							$\overline{}$
į	Steps are 750 hrs.						
Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1						
PANEL & PICKUP TR TEAMSTERS JOINT COUNC		12/01/2016	\$33.08	\$10.91	\$10.89	\$0.00	\$54.88
DECK) PILE DRIVER LOCAL 56 (ZO	NSTRUCTOR (UNDERPINNING  ONE 1) "Apprentice- PILE DRIVER"	AND 08/01/2015	\$42.04	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$71.07

08/01/2015

\$42.04

Apprentice - PL	LE DRIVER - Local 56 Zone 1
<b>Effective Date -</b>	08/01/2015

Step	percent	08/01/2013	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	50		\$21.02	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$50.05
2	60		\$25.22	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$54.25
3	70		\$29.43	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$58.46
4	75		\$31.53	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$60.56
5	80		\$33.63	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$62.66
6	80		\$33.63	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$62.66
7	90		\$37.84	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$66.87
8	90		\$37.84	\$9.80	\$19.23	\$0.00	\$66.87
Notes:						. — — — —	
Appre	entice to Jo	urneyworker Ratio:1	3				

03/01/2017

\$51.19

	Effective Step	ve <b>Date</b> - 03/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Tot	tal Rate
	$\frac{\operatorname{step}}{1}$	40						
	2	45	\$20.48	\$9.70	\$7.50	\$0.00		\$37.68
	3		\$23.04	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00		\$50.88
		60	\$30.71	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00		\$58.55
	4	70	\$35.83	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00		\$63.67
	5	80	\$40.95	\$9.70	\$18.14	\$0.00		\$68.79
	Notes:		:2;2:4;3:6;4:8;5:10;6:12;7:14;8:1	7;9:20;10:23(N	Max)			
	Apprei	ntice to Journeyworker Ratio	:**					
PELAYER	E 1		06/01/2017	7 \$37.10	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$59.35
BORERS - ZONE	ž I		12/01/2017	7 \$37.95	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.20
			06/01/2013	8 \$38.90	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.15
			12/01/2013	8 \$39.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.10
			06/01/2019	9 \$40.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.10
_			12/01/2019	9 \$41.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice UMBERS &		Apprentice- LABORER"	03/01/201			\$15.46	\$0.00	\$79.47
			TD 7 110					
	Effecti	ntice - <i>PLUMBER/GASFITT</i> ve Date - 03/01/2017				Supplemental		
	Effection Step	ve Date - 03/01/2017 percent	ER - Local 12 Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	To	tal Rate
	Step 1	percent 03/01/2017 35		Health \$11.32	Pension \$5.74			tal Rate \$35.50
	Step  1 2	ve Date - 03/01/2017 percent 35 40	Apprentice Base Wage			\$0.00 \$0.00		
	Step 1	percent 03/01/2017 35	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44	\$11.32	\$5.74	Unemployment \$0.00		\$35.50
	Effecti Step  1  2  3  4	ve Date - 03/01/2017 percent  35 40 55 65	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08	\$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49	\$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89
	Step  1 2 3	percent 03/01/2017 percent 35 40 55	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03
	Step 1 2 3 4 5 5	ve Date - 03/01/2017 percent  35 40 55 65	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80
	Step  1  2  3  4  5  Notes:	ve Date - 03/01/2017  percent  35  40  55  65  75	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52 Steps are 1 yr	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80
VELIMATICA CO	Step  1  2  3  4  5  Notes:	ve Date - 03/01/2017 percent  35 40 55 65 75  ** 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 we ntice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52  Steps are 1 yr with lic\$65.36	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56
PEFITTERS LOC	Step  1 2 3 4 5  Notes:  Apprec	ve Date - 03/01/2017  percent  35 40 55 65 75  ** 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 whice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52  Steps are 1 yr with lic\$65.36  :***  03/01/201	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00		\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80
For apprentice	Step  1  2  3  4  5  Notes:  Apprec	## 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 witice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52  Steps are 1 yr with lic\$65.36  E**  03/01/2017	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 7 \$51.19	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$18.14	\$0.00	\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56
For apprentice NEUMATIC I	Step  1 2 3 4 5  Notes:  Apprec	ve Date - 03/01/2017  percent  35 40 55 65 75  ** 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 whice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52 \$Steps are 1 yr with lic\$65.36 \$25.25 \$30.01/2017 \$3.00 \$1	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 7 \$51.19	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72 \$9.70	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$18.14	\$0.00	\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56 \$79.00
For apprentice NEUMATIC I	Step  1 2 3 4 5  Notes:  Apprec	## 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 witice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52 \$39.52 \$Steps are 1 yr rith lic\$65.36 \$25.24 \$03/01/2017 \$2/01/2017 \$12/01/2017	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 7 \$51.19 7 \$37.10 7 \$37.95	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72 \$9.70	\$14.65 \$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56 \$79.03 \$59.33 \$60.20
For apprentice NEUMATIC I	Step  1 2 3 4 5  Notes:  Apprec	## 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 witice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52 \$39.52 \$Steps are 1 yr with lic\$65.36 \$25.25 \$30.01/2017 \$20	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 7 \$51.19 7 \$37.10 7 \$37.95 8 \$38.90	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72 \$9.70 \$7.60 \$7.60 \$7.60	\$18.14  \$14.65 \$14.65 \$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56 \$79.00 \$59.30 \$60.20 \$61.11
For apprentice	Step  1 2 3 4 5  Notes:  Apprec	## 1:2; 2:6; 3:10; 4:14; 5:19/ Step4 with lic\$58.50 Step5 witice to Journeyworker Ratio	Apprentice Base Wage \$18.44 \$21.08 \$28.98 \$34.25 \$39.52 \$39.52 \$Steps are 1 yr rith lic\$65.36 \$25.24 \$03/01/2017 \$2/01/2017 \$12/01/2017	\$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 \$11.32 7 \$51.19 7 \$37.10 7 \$37.95 8 \$38.90 8 \$39.85	\$5.74 \$6.49 \$8.73 \$10.23 \$11.72 \$9.70	\$14.65 \$14.65	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$35.50 \$38.89 \$49.03 \$55.80 \$62.56

Classification	<b>Effective Date</b>	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
POWDERMAN & BLASTER	06/01/2017	\$37.85	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.10
LABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2017	\$38.70	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$60.95
	06/01/2018	\$39.65	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$61.90
	12/01/2018	\$40.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$62.85
	06/01/2019	\$41.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$63.85
	12/01/2019	\$42.60	\$7.60	\$14.65	\$0.00	\$64.85
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
POWER SHOVEL/DERRICK/TRENCHING MACHINE	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
PUMP OPERATOR (CONCRETE)  OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
PUMP OPERATOR (DEWATERING, OTHER)  OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	06/01/2017	\$31.86	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.11
	12/01/2017	\$32.55	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$57.80
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
READY MIX CONCRETE DRIVERS after 4/30/10	07/01/2017	\$28.18	\$8.48	\$9.72	\$0.00	\$46.38
(Drivers Hired After 4/30/2010) TEAMSTERS LOCAL 25b						
READY-MIX CONCRETE DRIVER	07/01/2017	\$29.48	\$8.48	\$9.72	\$0.00	\$47.68
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 25b						
RECLAIMERS	06/01/2017	\$45.93	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.18
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$46.92	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.17
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"						
RESIDENTIAL WOOD FRAME (All Other Work)  CARPENTERS - ZONE 2 (Residential Wood)	06/01/2016	\$25.32	\$9.80	\$16.82	\$0.00	\$51.94
RESIDENTIAL WOOD FRAME CARPENTER **	04/01/2017	\$26.31	\$7.07	\$7.18	\$0.00	\$40.56
** The Residential Wood Frame Carpenter classification applies	10/01/2017	\$26.93	\$7.07	\$7.18	\$0.00	\$41.18
only to the construction of new, wood frame residences that do not exceed four stories including the basement. CARPENTERS - ZONE	04/01/2018	\$27.35	\$7.07	\$7.18	\$0.00	\$41.60
2 (Residential Wood)	10/01/2018	\$27.77	\$7.07	\$7.18	\$0.00	\$42.02
	04/01/2019	\$28.20	\$7.07	\$7.18	\$0.00	\$42.45
				\$7.18	\$0.00	
	10/01/2019	\$28.63	\$7.07	\$1.18	\$0.00	\$42.88

 $10/01/2019 \hspace{0.2cm} \$28.63 \hspace{0.2cm} \$7.07 \hspace{0.2cm} \$7.18$  As of 9/1/09 Carpentry work on wood-frame residential WEATHERIZATION projects shall be paid the RESIDENTIAL WOOD FRAME CARPENTER rate.

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 25 of 33** 

Unemployment

**Total Rate** 

**Apprentice -** CARPENTER (Residential Wood Frame) - Zone 2 04/01/2017 **Effective Date -**Supplemental percent Apprentice Base Wage Health Pension Unemployment Total Rate Step 1 60 \$15.79 \$22.86 \$7.07 \$0.00 \$0.00 2 60 \$15.79 \$7.07 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$22.86 3 65 \$17.10 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$31.35 4 70 \$18.42 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$32.67 5 75 \$19.73 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$33.98 6 80 \$21.05 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$35.30 7 85 \$22.36 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$36.61 8 90 \$23.68 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$37.93 10/01/2017 **Effective Date -**Supplemental Apprentice Base Wage Health Unemployment Total Rate Step percent Pension 1 60 \$16.16 \$7.07 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$23.23 2 60 \$7.07 \$0.00 \$16.16 \$0.00 \$23.23 3 65 \$17.50 \$0.00 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$31.75 4 70 \$18.85 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$33.10 5 75 \$20.20 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$34.45 6 80 \$0.00 \$21.54 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$35.79 7 85 \$22.89 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$0.00 \$37.14 90 \$0.00 \$24.24 \$7.07 \$7.18 \$38.49 Notes: Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:5 RIDE-ON MOTORIZED BUGGY OPERATOR \$14.65 \$0.00 06/01/2017 \$37.10 \$7.60 \$59.35 LABORERS - ZONE 1 \$14.65 \$0.00 12/01/2017 \$37.95 \$7.60 \$60.20 06/01/2018 \$14.65 \$0.00 \$38.90 \$7.60 \$61.15 12/01/2018 \$39.85 \$7.60 \$14.65 \$0.00 \$62.10 06/01/2019 \$14.65 \$0.00 \$63.10 \$40.85 \$7.60 \$14.65 \$0.00 12/01/2019 \$41.85 \$7.60 \$64.10 For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER" ROLLER/SPREADER/MULCHING MACHINE \$15.25 \$0.00 06/01/2017 \$45.93 \$10.00 \$71.18 OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4 \$15.25 \$0.00 12/01/2017 \$46.92 \$10.00 \$72.17 For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS" ROOFER (Inc.Roofer Waterproofing &Roofer Damproofg) 08/01/2017 \$14.80 \$0.00 \$41.36 \$11.20 \$67.36 ROOFERS LOCAL 33 02/01/2018 \$42.51 \$14.80 \$0.00 \$68.51 \$11.20 08/01/2018 \$43.61 \$11.20 \$14.80 \$0.00 \$69.61 02/01/2019 \$44.76 \$11.20 \$14.80 \$0.00 \$70.76

	Effecti Step	ve Date - percent	08/01/2017	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$20.68	\$11.20	\$3.44	\$0.00	\$35.32	
	2	60		\$24.82	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$50.82	
	3	65		\$26.88	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$52.88	
	4	75		\$31.02	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$57.02	
	5	85		\$35.16	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$61.16	
	Effecti	ve Date -	02/01/2018				Supplemental		
	Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50		\$21.26	\$11.20	\$3.44	\$0.00	\$35.90	
	2	60		\$25.51	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$51.51	
	3	65		\$27.63	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$53.63	
	4	75		\$31.88	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$57.88	
	5	85		\$36.13	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$62.13	
	Notes:	** 1:5, 2:6	1-10, the 1:10; Reroofing: 1:	4, then 1:1					
		•	2000 hrs.; Steps 2-5 are 1000 n Mechanics' receive \$1.00 h					İ	
	Appre	ntice to Jo	urneyworker Ratio:**						
		E / PRECA	AST CONCRETE	08/01/2017	7 \$41.61	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$67.61
OFERS LOCAL .	33			02/01/2018	\$42.76	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$68.76
				08/01/2018	\$43.86	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$69.86
For apprentice	rates see '	Apprentice- R	OOFER"	02/01/2019	\$45.01	\$11.20	\$14.80	\$0.00	\$71.01
EETMETAL				08/01/2017	7 \$43.83	\$11.45	\$24.03	\$2.38	\$81.69
ETMETAL WO	RKERS LO	OCAL 17 - A		02/01/2018	3 \$44.98	\$11.45	\$24.03	\$2.38	\$82.84

Page 27 of 33 **Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025

SIGN ERECTOR

PAINTERS LOCAL 35 - ZONE 2

Pension

\$7.05

\$7.07

\$0.00

\$39.93

**Total Rate** 

Step	ive Date - 08/01/2017 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40	\$17.53	\$11.45	\$5.61	\$0.00	\$34.59
2	40	\$17.53	\$11.45	\$5.61	\$0.00	\$34.59
3	45	\$19.72	\$11.45	\$10.76	\$1.26	\$43.19
4	45	\$19.72	\$11.45	\$10.76	\$1.26	\$43.19
5	50	\$21.92	\$11.45	\$11.71	\$1.35	\$46.43
6	50	\$21.92	\$11.45	\$11.96	\$1.36	\$46.69
7	60	\$26.30	\$11.45	\$13.61	\$1.54	\$52.90
8	65	\$28.49	\$11.45	\$14.56	\$1.64	\$56.14
9	75	\$32.87	\$11.45	\$16.47	\$1.82	\$62.61
10	85	\$37.26	\$11.45	\$17.87	\$2.00	\$68.58
Effect Step	<b>Date -</b> 02/01/2018 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Haalth	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
	percent					
1	40			Φ <i>E</i> <b>2.</b> 4	ድር ርር	¢24.60
1	40	\$17.99	\$11.45	\$5.24	\$0.00	\$34.68
2	40	\$17.99	\$11.45	\$5.24	\$0.00	\$34.68
2 3	40 45	\$17.99 \$20.24	\$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31	\$0.00 \$1.27	\$34.68 \$43.27
2 3 4	40 45 45	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27
2 3 4 5	40 45 45 50	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52
2 3 4 5 6	40 45 45 50 50	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78
2 3 4 5 6 7	40 45 45 50 50 60	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49 \$22.49 \$26.99	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46 \$13.02	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38 \$1.56	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78 \$53.02
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	40 45 45 50 50 60 65	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49 \$22.49 \$26.99 \$29.24	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46 \$13.02 \$13.93	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38 \$1.56 \$1.67	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78 \$53.02 \$56.29
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	40 45 45 50 50 60 65 75	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49 \$22.49 \$26.99 \$29.24 \$33.74	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46 \$13.02 \$13.93 \$15.74	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38 \$1.56 \$1.67	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78 \$53.02 \$56.29
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	40 45 45 50 50 60 65	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49 \$22.49 \$26.99 \$29.24	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46 \$13.02 \$13.93	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38 \$1.56 \$1.67	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78 \$53.02 \$56.29
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	40 45 45 50 50 60 65 75 85	\$17.99 \$20.24 \$20.24 \$22.49 \$22.49 \$26.99 \$29.24 \$33.74	\$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45 \$11.45	\$5.24 \$10.31 \$10.31 \$11.21 \$11.46 \$13.02 \$13.93 \$15.74	\$0.00 \$1.27 \$1.27 \$1.37 \$1.38 \$1.56 \$1.67	\$34.68 \$43.27 \$43.27 \$46.52 \$46.78 \$53.02 \$56.29

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 28 of 33

06/01/2013

\$25.81

06/01/2017

12/01/2017

\$45.93

\$46.92

\$15.25

\$15.25

\$10.00

\$10.00

\$0.00

\$0.00

\$71.18

\$72.17

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:3

For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"

STEAM BOILER OPERATOR

OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
TAMPERS, SELF-PROPELLED OR TRACTOR DRAWN	06/01/2017	\$45.93	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.18
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2017	\$46.92	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.17
TELECOMMUNICATION TECHNICIAN	09/01/2017	\$2.C.O.C	¢12.00	\$15.62	\$0.00	Ф <i>С</i> 5 5 0
ELECTRICIANS LOCAL 103	03/01/2017	\$36.96 \$37.61	\$13.00	\$15.02 \$15.93	\$0.00	\$65.58 \$66.54
	09/01/2018	\$37.61	\$13.00 \$13.00	\$15.96	\$0.00	\$60.34 \$67.47
	03/01/2019	\$39.40	\$13.00	\$15.98	\$0.00	\$68.38

Apprentice -	TELECOMMUNICATION TECHNICIAN - Local 103

	ive Date -	09/01/2017				Supplemental	
Step	percent		Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
1	40		\$14.78	\$13.00	\$0.44	\$0.00	\$28.22
2	40		\$14.78	\$13.00	\$0.44	\$0.00	\$28.22
3	45		\$16.63	\$13.00	\$12.55	\$0.00	\$42.18
4	45		\$16.63	\$13.00	\$12.55	\$0.00	\$42.18
5	50		\$18.48	\$13.00	\$12.82	\$0.00	\$44.30
6	55		\$20.33	\$13.00	\$13.10	\$0.00	\$46.43
7	60		\$22.18	\$13.00	\$13.39	\$0.00	\$48.57
8	65		\$24.02	\$13.00	\$13.66	\$0.00	\$50.68
9	70		\$25.87	\$13.00	\$13.95	\$0.00	\$52.82
10	75		\$27.72	\$13.00	\$14.22	\$0.00	\$54.94
	ive Date -	03/01/2018	Ammonting Dago Wago	Haalth	Danaian	Supplemental	Total Data
Step	percent	03/01/2018	Apprentice Base Wage		Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate
Step 1	percent 40	03/01/2018	\$15.04	\$13.00	\$0.45	Unemployment \$0.00	\$28.49
Step 1 2	percent 40 40	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04	\$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49
Step 1 2 3	40 40 45	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66
Step 1 2 3 4	40 40 45 45	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66
Step 1 2 3 4 5 5	percent 40 40 45 45 50	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92 \$18.81	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74 \$13.03	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66
Step  1 2 3 4 5 6	percent 40 40 45 45 50 55	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92 \$18.81 \$20.69	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74 \$13.03 \$13.32	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66 \$44.84
Step  1 2 3 4 5 6 7	percent  40  40  45  45  50  55  60	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92 \$18.81 \$20.69 \$22.57	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74 \$13.03 \$13.32 \$13.61	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66 \$44.84 \$47.01 \$49.18
Step  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	percent  40  40  45  45  50  55  60  65	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92 \$18.81 \$20.69 \$22.57	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74 \$13.03 \$13.32 \$13.61 \$13.90	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66 \$44.84 \$47.01 \$49.18
Step  1 2 3 4 5 6 7	percent  40  40  45  45  50  55  60	03/01/2018	\$15.04 \$15.04 \$16.92 \$16.92 \$18.81 \$20.69 \$22.57	\$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00 \$13.00	\$0.45 \$0.45 \$12.74 \$12.74 \$13.03 \$13.32 \$13.61	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$28.49 \$28.49 \$42.66 \$42.66 \$44.84 \$47.01 \$49.18

Apprentice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:1

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 30 of 33** 

							летрюушен	
TERRAZZO FI			08/01/2017	7 \$51.00	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$81.10
DRICKLATERS LO	CAL 3 - ML	ARDLE & TILE	02/01/2018	8 \$51.68	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$81.78
			08/01/2018	8 \$53.03	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$83.26
			02/01/2019	9 \$53.67	\$10.75	\$19.48	\$0.00	\$83.90
			08/01/2019	9 \$55.02	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$85.39
			02/01/2020	0 \$55.66	\$10.75	\$19.62	\$0.00	\$86.03
			08/01/2020	0 \$57.01	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$87.53
			02/01/202	1 \$57.65	\$10.75	\$19.77	\$0.00	\$88.17
			08/01/2023	1 \$59.05	\$10.75	\$19.93	\$0.00	\$89.73
			02/01/2022	2 \$59.64	\$10.75	\$19.93	\$0.00	\$90.32
	Effecti	ntice - <i>TERRAZZO FINISHER</i> ve Date - 08/01/2017				Supplemental		
	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$25.50	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$55.60	
	2	60	\$30.60	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$60.70	
	3	70	\$35.70	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$65.80	
	4	80	\$40.80	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$70.90	
	5	90	\$45.90	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$76.00	
	Effecti Step	ve Date - 02/01/2018 percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	
	1	50	\$25.84	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$55.94	
	2	60	\$31.01	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$61.11	
	3	70	\$36.18	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$66.28	
	4	80	\$41.34	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$71.44	
	5	90	\$46.51	\$10.75	\$19.35	\$0.00	\$76.61	
	Notes:							
		ntice to Journeyworker Ratio:1						
TEST BORING	Appre	ER		6 \$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$59.65
LABORERS - FOU	Appre	ER	1:3	5 \$37.70	\$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$59.65
LABORERS - FOU	Appre	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER	1:3		\$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$59.65 \$58.37
For apprentice TEST BORING LABORERS - FOUL	Appres G DRILL NDATION rates see " G DRILL NDATION	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER	1:3					
For apprentice TEST BORING LABORERS - FOUL	Appreis G DRILL NDATION rates see " G DRILL NDATION rates see " G LABOI	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" RER	1:3	6 \$36.42				
For apprentice  TEST BORING  LABORERS - FOUL  For apprentice  TEST BORING  LABORERS - FOUL  For apprentice	Appreis G DRILL NDATION rates see " G DRILL NDATION rates see " G LABOI NDATION rates see "	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" RER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER"	12/01/2016	6 \$36.42	\$7.60	\$14.35	\$0.00	\$58.37
For apprentice  TEST BORING  LABORERS - FOUL  For apprentice  TEST BORING  LABORERS - FOUL  For apprentice	Apprei G DRILL NDATION rates see " G DRILL NDATION rates see " G LABOI NDATION rates see "	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" RER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" LE STEAM GENERATORS	12/01/2016 12/01/2016 12/01/2016	6 \$36.42 6 \$36.30 7 \$45.93	\$7.60 \$7.60 \$10.00	\$14.35 \$14.35 \$15.25	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$58.37 \$58.25 \$71.18
For apprentice TEST BORING LABORERS - FOUL For apprentice TEST BORING LABORERS - FOUL For apprentice TRACTORS/PO OPERATING ENGL	Appres G DRILL NDATION rates see " G DRILL NDATION rates see " G LABOI NDATION rates see " ORTABI	ER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" ER HELPER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" RER AND MARINE Apprentice- LABORER" LE STEAM GENERATORS	12/01/2016 12/01/2016 12/01/2016 06/01/2017 12/01/2017	6 \$36.42 6 \$36.30 7 \$45.93	\$7.60 \$7.60	\$14.35 \$14.35	\$0.00	\$58.37 \$58.25

Effective Date Base Wage

Health

Pension

Classification

Supplemental

Unemployment

**Total Rate** 

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 Wage Request Number: 20170915-025 Page 31 of 33

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
UNNEL WORK - COMPRESSED AIR ABORERS (COMPRESSED AIR)	12/01/2016	\$48.58	\$7.60	\$14.75	\$0.00	\$70.93
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
UNNEL WORK - COMPRESSED AIR (HAZ. WASTE)  ABORERS (COMPRESSED AIR)	12/01/2016	\$50.58	\$7.60	\$14.75	\$0.00	\$72.93
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
UNNEL WORK - FREE AIR ABORERS (FREE AIR TUNNEL)	12/01/2016	\$40.65	\$7.60	\$14.75	\$0.00	\$63.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
UNNEL WORK - FREE AIR (HAZ. WASTE) ABORERS (FREE AIR TUNNEL)	12/01/2016	\$42.65	\$7.60	\$14.75	\$0.00	\$65.00
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"						
VAC-HAUL EAMSTERS JOINT COUNCIL NO. 10 ZONE A	12/01/2016	\$33.54	\$10.91	\$10.89	\$0.00	\$55.34
VAGON DRILL OPERATOR	06/01/2017	\$37.60	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$59.35
ABORERS - ZONE 1	12/01/2017	\$38.45	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$60.20
	06/01/2018	\$39.40	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$61.15
	12/01/2018	\$40.35	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$62.10
	06/01/2019	\$41.35	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$63.10
	12/01/2019	\$42.35	\$7.60	\$14.15	\$0.00	\$64.10
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LABORER"		•	*			• • • •
/ASTE WATER PUMP OPERATOR	06/01/2017	\$46.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$71.63
PERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL 4	12/01/2017	\$47.38	\$10.00	\$15.25	\$0.00	\$72.63
	12/01/201/					
For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- OPERATING ENGINEERS"	12/01/2017					
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER	03/01/2017	\$52.69	\$11.32	\$15.46	\$0.00	\$79.47
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)	03/01/2017	\$52.69 \$27.14	\$11.32 \$7.75	\$15.46 \$1.81	\$0.00	\$79.47 \$36.70
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"	·	·			
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"	·	·			
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  ABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  ABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017	\$27.14	\$7.75	\$1.81	\$0.00	\$36.70
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  ABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  ABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  PRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017	\$27.14	\$7.75	\$1.81	\$0.00	\$36.70
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  ABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  ABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  PRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45	\$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN - Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  UTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45	\$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53	\$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN - Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017 09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66	\$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN - Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  PUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  OUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER" 09/03/2017 09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66	\$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN -Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN -Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85 \$34.38
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN -Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  FOR apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  FOR APPRENTICE RATE AND APPRENTICE LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  FOR APPRENTICE RATE AND APPRENTICE LINEMAN"  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66 \$24.88	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85 \$34.38
VATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  Dutside Electrical - East  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  DRIVER / GROUNDMAN - Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CROUNDMAN	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66 \$24.88	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85 \$34.38
WATER METER INSTALLER PLUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  PRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  PRIVER / GROUNDMAN -Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  FOR apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  POUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66 \$24.88 \$38.45	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75 \$13.61	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85 \$34.38 \$59.81
WATER METER INSTALLER  LUMBERS & GASFITTERS LOCAL 12  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- PLUMBER/PIPEFITTER" or "PLUMBER  CABLE TECHNICIAN (Power Zone)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CABLEMAN (Underground Ducts & Cables)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CRIVER / GROUNDMAN CDL  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CRIVER / GROUNDMAN - Inexperienced (<2000 Hrs)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class A CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CQUIPMENT OPERATOR (Class B CDL)  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  For apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CROUNDMAN  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104  FOR apprentice rates see "Apprentice- LINEMAN"  CROUNDMAN  LUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	03/01/2017 /GASFITTER"  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017  09/03/2017	\$27.14 \$38.45 \$31.66 \$24.88 \$38.45	\$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75 \$7.75	\$1.81 \$9.53 \$9.44 \$1.75 \$13.61	\$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	\$36.70 \$55.73 \$48.85 \$34.38 \$59.81

Classification	Effective Date	Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate
JOURNEYMAN LINEMAN	09/03/2017	\$45.23	\$7.75	\$16.61	\$0.00	\$69.59
OUTSIDE ELECTRICAL WORKERS - EAST LOCAL 104		‡ .3. <u>-</u> 2	4			T 42 1 T 2

	Step	percent	Apprentice Base Wage	Health	Pension	Supplemental Unemployment	Total Rate	:
	1	60	\$27.14	\$7.75	\$3.31	\$0.00	\$38.20	
	2	65	\$29.40	\$7.75	\$3.38	\$0.00	\$40.53	
	3	70	\$31.66	\$7.75	\$3.45	\$0.00	\$42.86	
	4	75	\$33.92	\$7.75	\$5.02	\$0.00	\$46.69	
	5	80	\$36.18	\$7.75	\$5.09	\$0.00	\$49.02	
	6	85	\$38.45	\$7.75	\$5.15	\$0.00	\$51.35	
	7	90	\$40.71	\$7.75	\$7.22	\$0.00	\$55.68	
	Notes:							
	İ						i	
	Appre	entice to Journeyworker Ratio:1:2						
ΓELEDATA C OUTSIDE ELECT		PLICER RKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	01/01/2016	5 \$28.98	\$4.25	\$3.12	\$0.00	\$36.35
		N/EQUIPMENT OPERATOR PRKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	01/01/2016	5 \$27.31	\$4.25	\$3.07	\$0.00	\$34.63
		N/INSTALLER/TECHNICIAN RKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	01/01/2016	\$27.31	\$4.25	\$3.07	\$0.00	\$34.63
TREE TRIMM OUTSIDE ELECT		RKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	01/31/2016	5 \$18.51	\$3.55	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$22.06
operating, ma	intaining, o	es only to tree work done: (a) for a utility compor repairing the utility company's equipment, and apply to wholesale tree removal.		_				
TREE TRIMM		OUNDMAN PKERS - EAST LOCAL 104	01/31/2016	\$16.32	\$3.55	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$19.87

## Additional Apprentice Information:

Minimum wage rates for apprentices employed on public works projects are listed above as a percentage of the pre-determined hourly wage rate established by the Commissioner under the provisions of the M.G.L. c. 149, ss. 26-27D. Apprentice ratios are established by the Division of Apprenticeship Training pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23, ss. 11E-11L.

All apprentices must be registered with the Division of Apprenticeship Training in accordance with M.G.L. c. 23, ss. 11E-11L.

All steps are six months (1000 hours.)

Ratios are expressed in allowable number of apprentices to journeymen or fraction thereof, unless otherwise specified.

- \*\* Multiple ratios are listed in the comment field.
- \*\*\* APP to JM; 1:1, 2:2, 2:3, 3:4, 4:4, 4:5, 4:6, 5:7, 6:7, 6:8, 6:9, 7:10, 8:10, 8:11, 8:12, 9:13, 10:13, 10:14, etc.
- \*\*\*\* APP to JM; 1:1, 1:2, 2:3, 2:4, 3:5, 4:6, 4:7, 5:8, 6:9, 6:10, 7:11, 8:12, 8:13, 9:14, 10:15, 10:16, etc.

**Issue Date:** 09/15/2017 **Wage Request Number:** 20170915-025 **Page 33 of 33**